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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF
HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE?”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate
small and mid-sized companies to which a higher investment
risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential
risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small
and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that securities traded
on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than
securities traded on the main board of the Stock Exchange and
no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the
securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange
take no responsibility for the contents of this report, make no
representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim
any liability whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance
upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of PPS International
(Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually accept
full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard
to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries,
confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this report is accurate and complete in all material respects
and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report
misleading.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Director”), | am
pleased to present to shareholders the annual report of the Company
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 30 June 2018.

2018 was a year of challenging and improvement for the Group. During
the year, the Group failed to develop the new business operations in
the provision of financial regulated activities under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance in Hong Kong and provision of forex brokerage
services in New Zealand which costed the Group an additional operating
and development expenditures of approximately HK$7.0 million.
Nevertheless, we have succeeded in refining our business strategies that
enable the Group to focus on our profit making principal businesses of
the environmental and cleaning services and the money lending business
which were steadily improved and expanded with an additional net profit
contribution in the aggregate amount of approximately HK$11.3 million to
the Group. As a result, the net loss attributable to the Group significantly
decreased by HK$7.2 million from HK$15.5 million for the year ended 30
June 2017 to HK$8.3 million for the year ended 30 June 2018.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLEANING BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

The market of the environmental and cleaning services in Hong Kong
remains challenging and difficult for all market participants due to the
fierce competition in the pricing and the intense labor supply upon the
implementation of the Statutory Minimum Wage (the “SMW”) in Hong
Kong. During the year, we have taken various strategies including taking
more proactive approach to gain additional market share, negotiating
better terms for our contracts and implementing stringent costs control
procedures, to tackle such challenging and difficult market conditions.
Our environmental and cleaning business in Hong Kong, being our major
business segment, was able to expand its market share especially in
the commercial and residential sectors and maintain its position as one
of leading environmental and cleaning service providers in Hong Kong.
Together with our success in reducing our costs during year, the revenue
and the net profit from the environmental and cleaning services in Hong
Kong increased by approximately HK$14.8 million and HK$6.6 million
respectively for the year ended 30 June 2018.
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Looking forward, we would expand our service scope to enable
customers to use the Group as a ones-top cleaning contractor by cross-
selling other cleaning and waste management services to our customers
and consolidating our resources to focus on high value customers to
bring in additional revenue. To offset the increase in labor costs, the
Group is striving to transfer most of the increased labor costs to our
customers and implement more efficient working flows and stringent cost
control procedures. The Group is closely monitoring the labor turnover
rate and regularly reviews our remuneration package in order to maintain
sufficient labor force and cope with the changing environment.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND CLEANING BUSINESS IN THE
PRC

The growth in the environmental and cleaning business in Shanghai, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (the “Shanghai Operations”) was
remarkable and abundant during the year. With our enhanced brand
recognition, improved operating procedures, outstanding service quality,
we have demonstrated our ability to provide differentiating and high
quality environmental and cleaning services against our competitors in
the PRC and secured a number of new service contracts for the year.
During the year, the Shanghai Operations contributed an additional
revenue of approximately HK$17.8 million and achieved a net operating
profit of approximately HK$1.2 million.

We will continue to take a more proactive market approach to penetrate
into the PRC market. Together with the extensive business network and
operating experience possessed by the existing management of the
Shanghai Operations, the additional capital injection made by the Group
and the management and operating skills provided by our environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong, the Shanghai Operations is believed
to be another major source of income and profit of the Group in the
coming financial years.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

During the year under review, the Group continued with its efforts in
developing the money lending business. The Group’s average balance of
loans granted under the money lending business increased significantly
from HK$75.0 million as at 30 June 2017 to approximately HK$111.9
million as at 30 June 2018 and the resulted interest income and net
operating profit increased by approximately HK$14.8 million and
approximately HK$8.9 million respective for the year.

° PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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The global operating and economic environment is expected to be
challenging and unstable due to the fierce international trading disputes
as well as the downward pressure on the global economic growth.
In view of the uncertain economic outlook, the Group will pursue
opportunities and growth in a cautious manner with a high standard
of risk and credit management which ensures that the existing loans
portfolio and new loans granted by the Group are carefully assessed and
controlled in accordance with the Group’s stringent credit policies.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to
our valued customers, business partners, and shareholders for their
persistent support, and express my appreciation to the management
team and employees for their valuable contribution to the development of
the Group. Finally, | would like to express my sincere appreciation to the
officers of Stock Exchange for their guidance.

Yu Shaoheng
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

24 September 2018
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BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Continuing Operations

Environmental and Cleaning Services

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of environmental
services in Hong Kong and the PRC, which include the provision of
cleaning and related services for (i) public area and office cleaning
services which involve cleaning of public areas, carpets, floors, toilets,
changing rooms, lifts and escalators and emptying of garbage bins at
commercial buildings and their tenants, residential complexes, shopping
arcades, hotels and public transport facilities such as airport, ferries,
ferry terminal, cargo and logistics centre and depots; (ii) overnight
kitchen cleaning services mainly at private club and hotels; (i) external
wall and window cleaning services; (iv) stonefloor maintenance and
restoration services; (v) pest control and fumigation services; (vi) waste
management and disposal solutions which mainly involve collection,
transportation and disposal of household waste, construction waste and
trade waste and sales of recyclable waste such as paper, metal and
plastic waste collected during our operations; (vi) housekeeping services
where we provide housekeeping services to carry out professional daily
housekeeping and cleaning services at local boutique hotels, hostels
and serviced apartments; (vii) secure and confidential waste destruction
for commercial clients; (ix) sanitation solution for yacht; (x) cleaning and
waste management solution for renovated apartment; and (xi) airline
catering support services.

Money Lending Business

The Group conducted its money lending business under the money
lenders licences granted by the licensing court in Hong Kong pursuant to
the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(the “MLO").

Discontinued Operations

Auto Beauty Services

The Group had engaged in auto beauty services for private cars under its
own brand name “E-Car” (formerly known as “Champion Auto Club”) in
Hong Kong during the period from 10 March 2015 to 11 January 2017.
The auto beauty services offered by E-Car includes auto-body cleaning
service, premium axing service, carpet and sofa steaming treatment,
auto compartment cleaning and vacuuming service, coating service
and unrivalled air-purifying service. The whole business of E-Car was
disposed by the Company on 11 January 2017.

° PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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Property and Car Park Management Services

On 11 April 2016, the Company completed the acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of Logon Clean Energy Limited (the “Logon
Acquisition”). Logon Clean Energy Limited, through its subsidiaries,
(collectively referred to as the “Logon Group”) is principally engaged in the
provision of property and car park management services in Shenzhen,
the PRC. The Logon Group was disposed by the Company on 3 March
2017.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Continuing Operations

Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

Compared to the revenue of approximately HK$258.1 million for the
year ended 30 June 2017, the Group’s revenue from the environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong slightly increased by approximately
HK$14.8 million to approximately HK$272.9 million for the year ended 30
June 2018.

Revenue by Service Sector

The following table sets forth the breakdown of our revenue by different
sectors which reflect the target clients of our environmental and cleaning
services in Hong Kong:

Year ended
30 June 2018
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HK$’000
FET
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Commercial
Hospitality
Residential
Transportation
Others

128,000
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51,158
16,628

272,933
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The increase in the revenue from the commercial sector was mainly
due to renewal of existing contracts on better terms during the year.
Most commercial contracts are for the provision of cleaning and related
services at commercial buildings where customers traditionally demand a
higher service quality and are also willing to pay a premium price. Aimost
all of the commercial contracts enable the Group to provide additional
services for the tenants in the tenanted area of the buildings with
contracts on a regular, ad-hoc or one-off basis which further enhance our
revenue stream.

The increase in the revenue from the residential sector was mainly due to
secure of additional several service contracts for private housing estates
during the year. As one of the important service sectors, the Group has
allocated more resources to gain services contracts from the respectable
property owners and management companies. During the year, the
Group has continued to add to its portfolio of providing hygiene services
to premium private housing estates.

The Group recorded a slight decrease in the revenue of the transportation
sector due to reduction in the scope of services rendered to the existing
customers of which the revenue was charged based on the amount of
services we provided.

During the year, the Group was providing hygiene and related services
to several respectable transportation operators including a toilet cleaning
contract at the airport of Hong Kong, a bus and bus depot cleaning and
fuel refiling contract, as well as the provision of cabin dressing in which
the Group provides the cleaning and restocking bathroom and seat
amenities for one of the largest airline operators in Hong Kong. These
contracts further strengthen our Group’s portfolio in the transportation
sector and our reputation and the ability to provide 24/7 around the clock
environmental services.

Most of the revenue from other sector is recurring and service price is
reviewable on an annual basis.

Results

During the year, the Group has (i) taken a more proactive approach to
gain additional market share in the environmental and cleaning services
industry in Hong Kong; (ii) strived to transfer most of the increased
labor costs to our customers upon renewal of and securing the
services contracts; and (i) implemented more efficient working flows
and stringent cost control procedures to reduce significant direct labor
and manpower services costs as well as administrative and operating
expenses. Environmental and cleaning business in Hong Kong achieved
a gross profit of approximately HK$26.2 million (2017: approximately
HK$24.5 million) and a net profit of approximately HK$12.8 million (2017:
approximately HK$6.2 million) for the year ended 30 June 2018.

° PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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Environmental and Cleaning Services in Shanghai, the PRC

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Shanghai Operations
contributed revenue of approximately HK$26.1 million (2017:
approximately HK$8.3 million) to the Group’s total revenue as several
new service contracts were secured by the Shanghai operations.
The Shanghai Operations also recorded a net operating profit of
approximately HK$1.2 million (2017: a net operating loss of approximately
HK$0.5 million) for the year ended 30 June 2018.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in Shenzhen, the PRC

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group started commencing its
environmental and cleaning services business in Shenzhen, the PRC (the
“Shenzhen Operations”) which it contributed revenue of approximately
HK$2.2 million and recorded a net operating loss of approximately
HK$5.6 million.

As the Shenzhen Operations was not performing as expected, the Group
ceased the Shenzhen Operations and disposed of its entire interests at
approximately HK$0.2 million on 31 May 2018.

Investments in Financial Assets

The Group’s investment strategy is to review the investment portfolio
continuously and make appropriate adjustments (by acquisition or
disposal) according to the market situation, with an aim to generate
reasonable returns. During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group did
not invest in any financial assets.

During the year ended 30 June 2017, the Group recorded a net fair value
gain of approximately HK$0.5 million from the investments in financial
assets.

Money Lending Business

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group granted several loans
in the aggregate principal amount of HK$111.9 million (2017: HK$75.0
million) to independent third party borrowers with interest bearing at
rates ranging form 10%-22% (2017: 18%-22%) per annum. The money
lending business became one of the sources for the Group’s profit for
the year ended 30 June 2018. The interest income and the operating
profit from the money lending business for the year ended 30 June
2018 amounted to approximately HK$18.6 million (2017: approximately
HK$3.8 million) and approximately HK$11.7 million (2017: approximately
HK$2.8 million) respectively.
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Discontinued Operations

Auto Beauty Services

With the fierce competition, E-Car still has not achieved positive results
since the date of completion of the acquisition and suffered net operating
loss of approximately 1 million for the period from 1 July 2016 to 11
January 2017. Having considered the unsatisfactory performance of
the business of E-Car. On 11 January 2017, the Group disposed of the
entire auto beauty services business. After this disposal, the Group is no
longer engaged in the business of provision of auto beauty services in
Hong Kong. Gain on the disposal of the auto beauty services business
of approximately HK$3.0 million was reflected in the results of the auto
beauty services for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Property and Car Park Management Services

According to the terms of the Logon Acquisition, amongst other things,
(i) certain key management personnel employed by the Logon Group
prior to the Logon Acquisition has been retained as the key management
personnel of the Logon Group (the “Retained Management”) for a period
from the date of the Logon Acquisition to 30 June 2019; (ii) the vendor
irrevocably and unconditionally warrants and guarantees to the Company
that the audited consolidated net profit before tax of the Logon Group for
the period from the date of the Logon Acquisition to 30 June 2017 and
two years ending 30 June 2018 and 2019 (the “Guaranteed Periods”)
will reach certain amounts of profit before tax (the “Guaranteed Profits”);
(iii) the vendor is required to compensate the Company the amounts
(the “Compensations”), being the difference between the Guaranteed
Profits and the actual profits before tax of Logon Group or the sum of the
Guaranteed Profits and the actual net loss before tax of Logon Group
if there is any shortfall in the Guaranteed Profits; and (iv) the Company
has the right at its own discretion to sell the entire issued share capital of
Logon Clean Energy Limited back to the vendor at a cash consideration
of HK$30.9 million after deducting any Compensations paid by the
vendor if Logon Group does not reach the Guaranteed Profits in any two
of the Guaranteed Periods (the “Buy Back”).
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During the period from 1 July 2016 to 3 March 2017, the Logon Group
contributed revenue of approximately HK$8.7 million to the Group’s total
revenue and profit before tax of approximately HK$0.2 million to the
Group’s total profit before tax. It is noted that the financial performance
of the Logon Group has been at a decreasing trend since October 2016
due to an unexpected decline in the renewal of the leasing contracts
by the tenants who are attracted by the newly opened shopping malls
located around the shopping malls managed by Logon Group.

As the property and car park management service has not been
performing as expected and its contribution is minimal. On 3 March 2017,
the Company disposed of the Logon Group at a cash consideration of
HK$32 million. After this disposal, the Group is no longer engaged in the
business of provision of property and car park management services
in Shenzhen, PRC. Gain on the disposal of the property and car park
management services business of approximately HK$4.2 million was
reflected in the results of the property and car park management for the
year ended 30 June 2017.

Financial Services

As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 5 June 2017,
the Group started to develop the businesses of provision of financial
regulated activities under the Securities and Futures Ordinance in
Hong Kong and provision of forex brokerage services in New Zealand.
The development of such businesses which incurred expenses of
approximately HK$10.3 million during the year ended 30 June 2018
was ceased in December 2017 due to the unsatisfactory development
progress, in particular the difficulties encountered on obtaining the
relevant licences and/or approvals.

OUTLOOK
Environmental and Cleaning Services in Hong Kong

The Group was successful in renewing and securing a number of
new material environmental services contracts. We believe that these
contracts shall be used as the backbone to support our Group’s business
growth. We have secured several new contracts in the commercial
sector and the residential sector as well as secured several new and
renewed contracts on better terms. As such, we have demonstrated our
ability to provide large scale environmental and cleaning services, and we
have also strengthen our reputation as one of the largest environmental
services providers in Hong Kong.
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Labor market competition Hong Kong has intensified with the
implementation of the SMW which is set to be reviewed every two years
and shall be adjusted upward in may 2019. The Group is also facing
higher labor turnover rate in the environmental services industry as more
labor tend to work in other less laborious industries such as the security
guard service industry under the same SMW rate. To offset the increase
in labor costs, the Group is striving to transfer most of the increased
labor costs to our customers and implement more efficient working flows
and stringent cost control procedures. The Group is closely monitoring
the labor turnover rate and regularly reviews our remuneration package
in order to maintain sufficient labor force and cope with the changing
environment. We would continue to enhance the quality of services by
providing training to our front line staff.

Looking forward, we would strengthen our marketing effort in hope
to expand our market shares in the commercial, transportation and
residential sectors and continue to consolidate our resources to focus
on high value customers to bring in additional revenue by cross-
selling other cleaning and waste management services to our existing
customers. We believe this strategy may not only improve our revenue
per customer but also increase our profit margin as we could leverage
our existing manpower to perform services at location where we
already have presence. We would explore other new environmental and
cleaning services to expand our service scope to enable customers to
use the Group as a onestop cleaning contractor. We would continue to
streamline our operations in order to simplify and improve our operation
efficiency. We believe that our success in serving different sectors will
further build up the confidence for new clients to select our cleaning
services in the coming future.

Environmental and Cleaning Services in the PRC

Together with the extensive business network and operating experience
possessed by the existing management of the Shanghai Operations,
the additional capital injection made by the Group and the management
and operating skills provided by our Group, the Shanghai Operations is
expanding as expected. The Shanghai Operations has secured several
new services contracts and achieved operating profit during the year,
the Shanghai Operations will implement the same quality control and
training program as the same in Hong Kong. It is expected that the
quality of service provided by the Shanghai Operations will further be
improved. The management of the Shanghai Operations will also refine
its marketing strategies in order to attract more new customers to utilize
our cleaning services in Shanghai, PRC. The Shanghai Operations is
believed to be another major source of income and profit of the Group
in the coming financial years. Through the experience of the Shanghai
operations, it is believed that the Group would accelerate its expansion of
the environmental and cleaning services into the PRC.
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Investments in Financial Assets

A cautious and prudent approach is continued to be the key direction
of our investment strategies that only companies listed on the Stock
Exchange with valuable prospects would be considered and invested by
the Group in the future.

Money Lending Business

The Group continues to adopt the money lending policy and procedure
manual which provide guidelines on handling and monitoring of money
lending procedures according to the MLO. A cautious and prudent
approach is the key direction of our money lending strategies that
only borrowers with sound financial abilities would be considered and
approved by the Group in the future.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group reported a total revenue
of approximately HK$319.9 million (2017: approximately HK$270.2
million), representing an increase of approximately 18.4% mainly due
to (i) increase in the revenue from the environmental and cleaning
services business in Hong Kong by approximately HK$14.8 million to
approximately HK$272.9 million for the year ended 30 June 2018 (2017:
approximately HK$258.1 million) as a result of regular price increment
for renewed services contracts and successful bid and renewal of a
number of significant services contracts for commercial complexes
and residential estates in Hong Kong; (ii) additional contribution of
the revenue of approximately HK$17.8 million (2018: approximately
HK$26.1 million; 2017: approximately HK$8.3 million) from the Shanghai
Operations; and (i) contribution of the additional interest income of
approximately HK$14.8 million (2018: approximately HK$18.6 million;
2017: approximately HK$3.8 million) from the money lending business.
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Gross profit EF
Year ended 30 June 2018 Year ended 30 June 2017
BE-Z2-—N\H§ HE—_ZT—+F
RNAB=+HLEE NAZTHIEFE
Gross Gross
Gross profit/(loss) Gross profit/(loss)
profit/(loss) margin profit/(loss) margin
ER, EFE EF, ERES
(E8) (BEEXR) (E#8) (EEX)
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
THET THETT
Environmental and cleaning &E#& &5 &
services in Hong Kong 52 iR 7 24,541 9.5
Shanghai Operations FEER 1,753 21.0
Shenzhen Operations FIE - -
Money lending business MEE® 3,828 100
30,122 111

For the year ended 30 June 2018, the gross profit from the environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong increased by approximately HK$1.6
million while its gross profit margin maintained at the stable as compared
with that in 2017 are mainly attributable to the successful bid and renewal
of a number of significant services contracts on better terms during the
year.

For the Shanghai Operations, the gross profit significantly increased by
approximately HK$2.8 million but its gross profit margin decreased by
3.6% for the year ended 30 June 2018 as a result of the implementation
of a more proactive market approach taken by the Group to gain
additional service contracts and market share in the environmental and
cleaning business in Shanghai, the PRC during the year.

The significant increase in the gross profit from the money lending
business for the year ended 30 June 2018 is attributable to the significant
increase in the interest income generated as a result of more loans
granted by the Group during the year.
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Selling and Marketing Expenses, Administrative Expenses
and Other Losses

The Group’s selling and marketing expenses, administrative expenses
and other losses increased by approximately HK$3.5 million to
approximately HK$47.2 million (2017: approximately HK$43.7 million) for
the year ended 30 June 2018. The increase was mainly due to the net
effect of the below expenses and losses for the year:

()  One-off impairment losses of approximately HK$6.4 million on the
refundable purchase deposit for the possible acquisition made in
2017,

(i) decrease in the selling and marketing expenses and administrative
expenses, including but not limited to staff costs, rental expenses,
advertising and promotion expenses, travelling expenses and
general office expenses of the Group’s headquarters and
environmental and cleaning services in Hong Kong, as a result of
the implementation of the tight costs control procedures in 2018;

(i) additional general selling marketing expenses and administrative
expenses incurred by the Shanghai Operations and the money
lending business of which the businesses and operations were
further expanded during the year;

(iv) additional administrative, operating and development expenses of
approximately HK$7.0 million incurred for the development of the
businesses of provision of financial regulated activities under the
Securities and Futures Ordinance and provision of forex brokerage
service in New Zealand which was ceased in December 2017; and

(v) additional administrative and operating expenses and loss on
disposals with an aggregate amount of approximately HK$6.8
million incurred for the ceased Shenzhen Operations during the
year.

Finance Costs

The finance costs of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018
increased by approximately HK$6.0 million to approximately HK$6.8
million (2017: approximately HK$0.8 million) was mainly due to
recognition of the interest expense of approximately HK$5.9 million on
the convertible bonds issued in August 2017.
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Income Tax Expenses

The Group’s income tax expenses increased by approximately HK$3.6
million from approximately HK$1.8 million for the year ended 30 June
2017 to approximately HK$5.4 million for the year ended 30 June 2018 is
mainly due to the increase in the current Hong Kong profit tax provision
as a result of significant improvement in the operating profit generated by
the environmental and cleaning services in Hong Kong and the money
lending business in Hong Kong for the year.

Capital Structure and Fund Raising Activities

The shares of the Company are listed on the GEM of the Stock
Exchange. The Company’s share capital comprises only ordinary shares.

Rights Issue

On 11 April 2018, the Company announced its proposal to raise not less
than HK$48.6 million before expenses by way of a rights issue by issuing
270,000,000 rights shares on the basis of one rights share for every
one shares held by the qualifying shareholders at a subscription price of
HK$0.18 per rights share (the “Rights Issue”). 173,024,800 rights shares
are underwritten by Lamtex Securities Limited and Mr. Yu Shaoheng (“Mr.
Yu”), the controlling shareholder of the Company under the GEM Listing
Rules, the chief executive officer of the Company and the executive
director of the Company, pursuant to the underwriting agreement dated
11 April 2018 (the “Underwriting Agreement”) entered into between the
Company with each of Lamtex Securities Limited and Mr. Yu subject to
the terms and conditions set out in the Underwriting Agreement.

The Rights Issue was completed on 9 July 2018. The Rights Issue raised
approximately HK$46.7 million after deduction of expenses by issuing
270,000,000 rights shares.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the Rights Issue
as to (i) approximately HK$37,700,000 will be utilized for the Group’s
existing businesses, in particular the money lending business; and (ii)
approximately HK$9,400,000 will be utilized for potential investment
opportunities as and when identified by the Group and/or for general
working capital of the Group.

Details and results of the Rights Issue are set out in the announcements
of the Company dated 11 April 2018 and 5 July 2018, the circular of the
Company dated 11 May 2018, the resolution set out in the notice of the
extraordinary general meeting dated 11 May 2018 and the prospectus of
the Company dated 12 June 2018.
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CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to the subscription agreement and the supplemental extension
letter dated 15 June 2017 and 16 August 2017 respectively, Wui
Wo Enterprise Limited (the “Subscriber”) has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue the
zero coupon convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$50 million
(the “Convertible Bonds”), which entitle the Subscriber to convert the
Convertible Bonds into a maximum of 128,205,128 conversion shares
at the conversion price of HK$0.39 per conversion share (as adjusted
by the share consolidation completed on 26 July 2017 and the Rights
Issue completed on 9 July 2018) during 1 year commencing from the
date of the completion of the subscription of the Convertible Bonds (the
“Subscription”). The principal amount of the Convertible Bonds of HK$50
million payable by the Subscriber is satisfied by cash. The Subscription
was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 26 July 2017 and completion
of the Subscription took place on 21 August 2017 (the “Issue Date”) with
the net proceeds of approximately HK$49.2 million received.

The Company intends to apply the net proceeds from the Convertible
Bonds as to (i) as to approximately HK$5.0 million for the set up costs
of the group companies engaging in the margin securities and forex
brokerage business; (i) as to approximately HK$11.0 million the deposits
(the “Deposits”) to be maintained in the prime broker accounts to carry
out the margin securities and forex brokerage businesses; (iii) as to
approximately HK$25 million for the Deposits to finance a loan facility as
disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 8 November 2017;
(iv) as to approximately HK$4.0 million for the development of the online
trading platform for the margin securities and forex brokerage business;
and (v) as to approximately HK$4.0 million for the general working
capital of the Company, including but not limited to the remuneration of
the management and the operating expenses of the group companies
engaging in the margin securities and forex brokerage business.

The net proceeds from the issuance of the convertible bonds on the
Issue Date of HK$49.2 million had been split into the liability component
and the equity component. As at the Issue Date, the fair value of the
liability component is approximately HK$43.1 million and the equity
component is approximately HK$6.1 million, net of the transaction
cost of approximately HK$0.8 million being allocated proportionally to
the liability component and the equity component. The fair value of the
liability component was calculated using market interest rates for similar
non-convertible bonds by an independent firm of professionally qualified
valuer, Norton Appraisals Holdings Limited. The liability component
is subsequently stated at amortised cost at the effective interest rate
of 14.2% per annum until extinguished on conversion or maturity of
the Convertible Bonds. The residual amount is assigned as the equity
component and included in the shareholders’ equity heading “Convertible
bonds equity reserve”.
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No Convertible Bonds had been converted as at 30 June 2018 and up to
the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.

The Company fully redeemed the Convertible Bonds on 20 August 2018,
being the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the Group had financed its
operations and capital requirements through operating cash flows and
net proceeds from debt and equity financings.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately HK$117.5 million (2017: approximately HK$52.9 million),
representing an increase of 122.1% from the year ended 30 June 2017.
The significant increase in the cash and cash equivalents as at 30 June
2018 is attributable to the remaining unused proceeds received from the
Convertible Bonds and the gross proceeds received in advance from the
Right Issue in June 2018.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group’s total current assets and current liabilities
were approximately HK$310.3 million (2017: HK$186.8 million) and
HK$159.0 million (2017: HK$49.2 million) respectively, while the current
ratio was approximately 1.95 times (2017: approximately 3.8 times) which
remains healthy.

As at 30 June 2018, the total debt of the Group were approximately
HK$59.1 million (2017: approximately HK$10.4 million) which include
obligations under finance leases of approximately HK$0.6 million (2017:
approximately HK$1.0 million), unlisted corporate bond of approximately
HK$9.6 million (2017: approximately HK$9.4 million) and the convertible
bonds of approximately HK$48.9 million. The gearing ratio of the Group
(calculated by dividing total debt by total equity) as at 30 June 2018
was approximately 39.3%, as compared to 6.9% as at 30 June 2017.
The significant increase was mainly due to the issue of the Convertible
Bonds of which the liability component of approximately HK$48.9 million
is recognised in the current liabilities of the Group as at 30 June 2018.
The Convertible Bonds were fully redeemed by the Group on 20 August
2018, being the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds. In view of the
significant amount of cash held by the Group and a healthy current
ratio of 1.95 times of the Group as at 30 June 2018, redemption of the
Convertible Bonds is not expected to cause financial stress or other
liquidity problems to the Group.

The Board is of the opinion that the Group is in a strong and healthy
financial position and has sufficient resources to support its operations
and meet its foreseeable capital expenditures and expansions.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

During the year, major portion of the Group’s operations are located
mainly in Hong Kong with most of the Group’s transactions, assets and
liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong Dollars. The Group is exposed
to foreign currency risk due to the exchange rate fluctuation of RMB
against HK$ arising from the our environmental and cleaning services
business in the PRC, especially from the Shanghai Operations. The
results of our operations in the PRC are translated from RMB into HK$
at the exchange rates approximating the rates ruling at the dates of the
transactions while their financial items are translated from RMB into HK$
at the closing rate ruling at the end of the reporting period, the resulted
exchange differences are recognised as other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in equity in the translation reserve of the
Company and will be reclassified to profit or loss until the disposal of
interests in such operations. Fluctuation of RMB against HK$ is moderate
to the Group during the year. The Group will review and monitor its
currency exposure from time to time, and when appropriate hedge its
currency risk.

Information on Employees

The Group had 1,233 employees (2017: 1,387) as at the end of the Year.
The Group’s remuneration practices are in line with the prevailing market
practice and are determined on the basis of performance, qualification
and experience of individual employee. The Group recognises the
importance of a good relationship with the employees by providing
competitive remuneration package to the employees including salaries,
allowances, insurance, discretionary bonus, and training for human
resources upskilling. Total staff costs and related expenses (including
Directors’ remuneration) for the year ended 30 June 2018 increased
by approximately 5.3% to approximately HK$178.2 million over that for
the same period in previous year. The increased was mainly due to the
net effect of (i) additional staff costs incurred by the environmental and
cleaning businesses in the PRC.

Significant Investments Held

There were no significant investments held by the Group as at 30 June
2018 and 30 June 2017.

Capital expenditure and Capital Commitment

For the year ended 30 June 2018, our capital expenditures mainly
included additions in leasehold improvement and plant and equipment
amount to approximately HK$4.5 million (2017: approximately HK$4.9
million). These capital expenditures were funded by finance companies,
funds generated from our operating activities.
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Use of proceeds

FRERERR

Actual use of net proceeds

Date of as at 30 June 2018
announcements Description Net proceeds raised  Intended use of net proceeds R-E-NEXA=1H
AERH R FESNAERETE MENEFENREAR FERERENERAR
15 June 2017 & Connected transaction Approximately (i) as to approximately HK$5.0 milion (i) as to approximately HK$5.0 million
8 November 2017 in relation to HK$49 million for the set up costs of the group for the set up costs of the group
ZT—+FRA+H  subscription of #149,000,000/8 1T companies engaging in the margin companies engaging in the margin
ARk-Z—tfF convertible bonds securities and forex brokerage business; securities and forex brokerage
+—ANA under specific (i) as to approximately HK$11.0 million  businesses; (i) as to HK$25.0 million
mandate the deposits (the “Deposits”) to be for financing a loan facility as detailed
BRRBEHNEER maintained in the prime broker accounts  in the announcement of the Company
BUARESOE to carry out the margin securities dated 8 November 2017; {ii) as to
EX S and forex brokerage businesses; (i) approximately HK$3.0 million for the

as to approximately HK$25 million

for the Deposits to finance a loan
facility as disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 8 November
2017; (iv) as to approximately HK$4.0
million for the development of the online

trading platform for the margin securities

and forex brokerage business; and

(v) as to approximately HK$4.0 million
for the general working capital of the
Company, including but not limited to
the remuneration of the management
and the operating expenses of the
group companies engaging in the
margin securities and forex brokerage
pbusiness
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development of the online trading
platform for margin securities and
forex brokerage businesses; and (iv)
as to approximately HK$2.3 million for
the remuneration of the management
and the operating expenses of the
group companies engaging in the
margin securities and forex brokerage
business
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Charges on the Group’s Assets

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had obligations under finance leases of
approximately HK$0.6 million (2017: approximately HK$1.0 million), of
which approximately HK$0.3 million (2017: approximately HK$0.4 million)
was repayable within one year. Such obligations under finance leases
were secured by the relevant motor vehicles.

As at 30 June 2018, the Group had bank deposits of approximately
HK$13.0 million (2017: approximately HK$12.9 million) pledged to banks
as security for due performance under environmental service contracts
and banking facilities granted to the Group.
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(a) Performance bond (a) BHRE
As at As at
30 June 30 June
2018 2017
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HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T

Guarantees on performance bonds in MIRERBE B ORE

respect of environmental service contracts KR 12,920

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued
for due performance under several environmental service contracts.

As at 30 June 2018, restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$13.0 million (2017: approximately HK$12.9 million) were
pledged to banks as security for () bank facilities of approximately
HK$12.9 million (2017: HK$12.9 million) granted to the Group; and (i)
bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued.

The effective period of performance bond is based on the service
period and the contract terms as specified in these environmental
service contracts. The performance bonds may be claimed by
customers if services rendered by the Group fail to meet the
standards as specified in these environmental service contracts.
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(b) Litigations — Employees personal injuries

During the year, the Group may from time to time be involved in
litigations concerning personal injuries by its employees or third
party claimants. In the opinion of the Directors, the Group had no
any significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations as all
potential claims made by these employees and third party claimants
are accounted for in the consolidated financial statements and
covered by insurance protection.

Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries

There were no acquisitions of subsidiaries made by the Group during the
year ended 30 June 2018.

Disposal of subsidiaries by the Group during the year ended 30 June
2018 is set out as below:

Disposal of Celestial Faith Investments Limited (“Celestial Faith”)

On 1 June 2018, Jumbo Green Trading Limited (“Jumbo Green”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party purchaser, pursuant
to which Jumbo Green agreed to sell and the purchaser agreed to
acquire the entire issued share capital of Celestial Faith at a cash
consideration of approximately HK$195,000. Celestial Faith, through its
subsidiaries, is principally engaged in the provision of the environmental
and clearing services in Shenzhen, the PRC. The loss on the disposal of
approximately 1.2 million was reflected in the results of the Group for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

Future Plans for Material Investments or Capital Assets

As disclosed in the prospectus of the Company dated 12 June 2018
in relation to the Rights Issue, the Company intends to apply the net
proceeds of approximately HK$9.4 million from the Rights Issue for
potential investment opportunities as and when identified by the Group
and/or for general working capital of the Group. As at the date of this
annual report, the Group has not identified any potential investment
opportunities and is still exploring potential acquisition of other
environmental business which can provide synergy effect to the current
environmental cleaning business.
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DIRECTORS

As at the date of this annual report, the Board currently consists of five
Directors comprising two executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors.

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (Mr. Yu), aged 33, was appointed as executive
Director on 28 October 2016 and the chief executive officer of the
Company on 28 November 2017. He served as non-executive director
of China New Energy Power Group Limited (Ff B4R 8 hEE B A
R 2 A]) (now known as Lamtex Holdings Limited), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1041) from 14
March 2016 to 30 August 2016. He is currently the chairman of Bt 78
=2 E ¥ B[R A 7l (Shaanxi Hengze Industrial Corporation Limited®),
which is principally engaged in investment in and development of energy,
mining, environmental-preservation, real estate, and tourism businesses.
Furthermore, he is a supervisor of S RMMEZMB[BERE T A
Al (Ulaanchab Kejie Gas Limited Liability Company*), a company which
China National Petroleum Corporation (/R B A ji & %X S, 5= B A 7)) has
indirect interest in it, which principally engaged in (i) construction and
re-construction of city gas infrastructures; (i) design and engineering of
expansion work and related installation and development management;
(i) transportation, sale, provision of aftersale service, research and
development of technologies and provision of consultancy service in
relation to city gas; (iv) construction and operation of various types of
gas station; (v) sale of petroleum and natural gas related equipment;
and (vi) construction, operation management of compressed natural gas
projects. Both Mr. Yu and & B 50 1 B2 #E /B BR A 7] (Ulaanchab
Kejie Gas Limited Liability Company*) have been members of the China
Gas Association (F B AR ).

Mr. Lai Tin Ming (“Mr. Lai”), aged 33, was appointed as an executive
Director on 31 July 2018. He graduated from the Lingnan University,
Hong Kong with a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration in 2008.
He joined our Group in July 2010 as a sales and marketing executive
of Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS”), a main operating
subsidiary of the Company engaging in the provision of environmental
and cleaning services in Hong Kong. He was promoted to the general
manager of PPS in February 2018 and is primarily responsible for all
aspects of our group’s environmental and cleaning services business
including the recruitment of personnel, approval of budgets, quality
control of cleaning projects, procurement of cleaning materials and
equipment, workplace safety and site supervision.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching Jack (“Mr. Kwong”), aged 35, was appointed
as independent non-executive director (the “Director”) of the Company
and a Chairman of each of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company on 25 April
2016 and 31 July 2018 respectively. He received his degree of Master
of Laws in commercial and corporate law from King’s College London,
United Kingdom in November 2006 and his Postgraduate Certificate
in Laws and degree of Bachelor of Laws from City University of Hong
Kong in July 2005 and November 2004 respectively. He was admitted
to practise as a solicitor in Hong Kong in October 2008. He is practising
in Hong Kong and is currently an associate of a firm of solicitors in Hong
Kong.

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong (“Mr. Wong”), aged 49, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director, a member of each of the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company on 21 March 2018. He has extensive experience in securities
and futures contracts trading and investment. He was appointed as the
associate director of China Finance KAB Limited (formerly known as KAB
Asia Securities Limited) during the period from January 2005 to January
2007, a licenses company under Securities and Futures Ordinance to
carry on Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
and Type 4 (advising on securities) regulated activities. From 2007 to
2012, he was promoted to the chairman of the investment committee
and associate director of KAB International Holdings Limited, the then
holding company of China Finance KAB Limited, mainly responsible
for the risk management for the investment and group restructuring for
the companies in the PRC. Since 2014, he has been working as the
chief executive officer of £ /& i+ % & B R 2 & (Hebson Investment
Limited®), a company listed on Shanghai Equity Exchange with stock
code “202421” and is principally engaged in performing market research,
formulating market strategies, cultural and artistic products design and
marketing.

Mr. Meng Enhai (“Mr. Meng”), aged 32, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of each of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee of Company on 31 July 2018. He obtained a bachelor degree
in laws from Xian University of Technology (75 % 3 T K £) in July 2010.
He joined BX 7 5K 3 15 £ B = 7 BT (ShanXi Yong Jia Xin Law Office*)
(“Yong Jia Xin Law Office”) in 2010 and serves, at present, as a senior
practicing lawyer and a partner of Yong Jia Xin Law Office for providing
legal services to listed companies in the PRC. He was once the author of
several books relating to the commerce law proceedings and the stock
listing in the PRC.

*  For identification purpose only
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Our senior management comprises our executive Directors and our
company secretary.

Mr. Chan Woon Wing (“Mr. Chan”), aged 37, was appointed as the
company secretary of the Company on 3 October 2016. He is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has over
10 years of experience in financial reporting and auditing. Prior to joining
the Group in 2014, Mr. Chan had served at the audit department of an
international audit firm for six years. Mr. Chan joined the Group in 2014
as a senior accounting manager and is also responsible for overseeing
the financial reporting and internal control review of the Group.
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The Directors present this annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are (i) the provision of environmental and cleaning services
in Hong Kong and PRC; and (i) the provision of money lending services.

The principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out
in note 32 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by operating
segments is set out in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s results for the year ended 30 June 2018 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from pages 92 to 93 of this annual report. The Board does not
recommend the payment of a final dividend for the year ended 30 June
2018.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A detailed review on the Group’s business performance and the material
factors underlying its financial position, as well as the development and
likely future prospects of the Group’s business are provided throughout
this annual report and in particular shown in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section from pages 8 to 24 of this annual report.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks,
including some of which are specific to the Group or the industries in
which the Group operates. The Directors have established a policy to
ensure that significant risks which may adversely affect the Group, are
identified, reported, monitored, and managed on a continuous basis.
The Group has identified the following key risks that are considered to
be significant to the Group, which may adversely and/or materially affect
the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of operations and
growth prospects. Key risks relating to the Group’s businesses and to
the industries in which the Group operates are including but not limited
to:

Environmental and Cleaning Services

Customers

() A majority of the service contracts have fixed service terms that
range from one to three years and many of them are granted to
the Group by way of tendering. There is no assurance of the grant
of new contracts nor renewal of the existing contracts and these
uncertainties may have negative impact on the financial results.
Moreover, in the competitive tendering process, the Group may
have to lower the service charges in the bids in order to increase the
competitiveness of the tenders and the Group may encounter great
pressure on the profit margins if the Group is unable to reduce the
costs accordingly. In such event, the financial results and profitability
would be materially and adversely affected.

(i) If the Group fails to accurately estimate the costs or fail to execute
fixed-price contracts within the cost estimates, the results of
operation would be adversely affected. All the service contracts are
fixed-price contracts, under which the Group provides the cleaning
and related services at a pre-determined price. As a result, the
Group may not be able to adjust the service fees nor recover any
cost overruns, which may in turn adversely affect the reputation,
financial conditions, profitability or liquidity.
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(i)  The aggregate revenue generated from the five largest customers
of the environmental and cleaning services represented nearly
45.4% of the total revenue of the environmental and cleaning
services for the year ended 30 June 2018. The Group does not
enter into long-term service contracts with any of theses customers,
which the Directors believe is in line with the market practice of the
environmental services industry in Hong Kong. These customers
may terminate their business relationships with the Group upon
expiry of the service contracts. If any of the key customers, including
these five largest customers, substantially reduces the volume
and/or value of services procured from the Group or terminates its
business relationship with the Group, there is no assurance that
the Group would be able to find substitute customers or to secure
comparable contracts to replace any such loss of revenue. If any
of the above happens, the business and performance would be
materially adversely affected.

Customer-oriented principle is adopted across the business operation
of the Group. We places great emphasis on quality control. We have
obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and OHSAS 18001, and are committed
to delivering professional services and achieving customer satisfaction.
To understand clients’ needs, we conduct site assessments and
communicate with our clients before commencing services. We have a
comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality Management
Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and objectives. During
the performance of our services, our employees will carry out regular
check on the service quality, including services delivered by the Group’s
own employees and third-party service providers, and record occasions
of substandard performance and any follow-up actions taken.

Budgeting is the key factor of our business operations. To formulate the
reasonable and competitive pricing, we carefully prepare, review and
discuss, among the management and operation teams, the details of
budget for every service contract based on our 20 years more experience
in the environmental and cleaning industry and latest market information.
During the performance of our services, any deviations from the budgets
are seriously investigated and monitored for, if any, remedy actions and
recorded for our reference in coming budgeting.

Service mix, service quality and competitive pricing, which are regarded
as key to good relationship with our customers, are continuously
reviewed with the aim to cater for our customers’ fast-changing needs
and enhance their satisfactions and business relationship with the Group.
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Employees

U

The Group is exposed to litigation claims including employees’
compensation claims and common law personal injury claims and
the insurance coverage may not adequately protect us against
certain risk. Employees who suffer from bodlily injuries or death as
a result of accidents or diseases occurred during the course of
their employment are entitled to claim damages and compensation
against the Group under the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
as well as under the common law. The Group has taken out
insurance policies to cover these potential claims, including
employees’ compensation insurance and public liability insurance.
However, the outcome of any claim is subject to the relevant parties’
negotiation or the decision of the court or the relevant arbitration
authorities, and the result of any of the outstanding claims may
be unfavourable to the Group. As a result, the Group may have to
pay out of the own resources for any uninsured financial or other
losses, damages and liabilities and litigation that could materially
and adversely affect the business, financial conditions and results of
operations.

The Group has experienced high turnover rate of the operation
team and the operation could be adversely affected by difficulties
in recruiting and retaining sufficient workforce to meet the needs.
As the environmental and cleaning services industry is a labour-
intensive industry, this exacerbated after the implementation of the
SMW in Hong Kong as workers have more choices, such as security
guards, which may drive workers away from the cleaning industry.
If the Group is unable to maintain the stability of the staff or retain
sufficient number of staff members to perform the service contracts
or fill the vacancies with suitable staff or services from suitable
third party service providers, the quality of services, operation and
financial results would be adversely affected.

The fact that employees are crucial assets of the Group is of no doubt.
The Group strives to enhance employees’ loyalty and sense of belongings
to the Group through various policies and practice. It emphasises the

importance of labour diversity and equal opportunities in recruitment
process. It also provides staff with a caring, safe and healthy working
environment. In order to help cater for the continuous development of the
employees, professional trainings and self development sponsorships are
provided. The Group values any feedback from employees and hopes to
maintain open communication with the latter, which favours a good and
long-lasting relationship.
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Money Lending Business

U

(i)

Any adverse changes in macroeconomic conditions and fluctuation
of market variables such as gross domestic product, exchange
rates, equity prices and property prices in Hong Kong may generally
affect market demands and the repayment abilities of customers
which may lead to adverse impact on the Group’s revenue and
liquidity. The Group would from time to time fine-tune the Group’s
business strategies, policies and procedures, in particular the loan
approval procedures, according to the market situation.

Non-compliance with or any changes in the relevant laws and
regulations may bring various consequences to the Group, including
but not limited to the revocation or suspension of the money lenders
licence and/or the imposition of penalties resulting from the offence.
Relevant operation policies and procedures have been adopted
and in place to ensure that the daily operation of the Group is
in compliance with the relevant requirements. Internal reporting
procedures have been established and when any suspected case
of employees and customers’ misconduct and/or fraud arises, any
staff can report directly to the management. The staff handbook
has also stipulated that employees and customers’ misconduct and
fraud are prohibited.

In addition, the financial risk management objectives and policies of the
Group are shown in note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company is committed to operating in a sustainable manner while
balancing the interests of various stakeholders including the Group’s
employees, customers, suppliers and the community.

Further details about the Group’s policies and relationship with its
various stakeholders are set out in the paragraph headed “Social” in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” section from pages 69
to 79 of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES

The Group is committed to building an environmentally-friendly
corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural resources.
The Group strives to minimise our environmental impact by raising
energy efficiency and encouraging recycle of office supplies and other
materials such as the adoption of paperless systems and practices in
its daily operations, the duplex printing and copying, and the recycling
of ink cartridges and toner cartridges, etc. In addition, the Group has
adopted environmentally-friendly service procedures in providing the
environmental and cleaning services to its customers for which the Group
has obtained certificates and awards from different environmentally-
oriented organisations.

Further details of about the Group’s environmental policies are set out in
the paragraph headed “Environmental” in the “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” section from pages 64 to 69 of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The operations of the Group are based in Hong Kong and the PRC and
the Company itself is listed on GEM. In light of this, the Group upholds
high corporate governance standards and strives to ensure that its
business practice complies with all relevant laws and regulations in the
respective jurisdictions. Reviews on regulatory compliance of its business
operation are conducted from time to time. During the year under
review and up to the date of this annual report, the Group has been in
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on its listing status in Hong Kong, the environmental and cleaning
services and the money lending business which mainly include but
not limited to the GEM Listing Rules, the Employment Ordinance, the
Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
and the MLO.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to approximately HK$16,000.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year are set out in note 11 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REBX
AEBYNBEREERERNERNRRERD
- AKEEBRTERI G LBBERE
AMAERBHEREMYE  PIMRERFEZ
BRRABRCESRNEE EELEEDR
KA - mYaEa himas B8R
MY RBERNFZERERE - 1IN K&
BEREFFPREHERE LB RRBEEDRSK
RENRBEF BAXAEBEE B TRNERE
ARG B ERGRE MR -

ERASERERRNVE - FHFBENAF
HEO4E69A R - HEREAHRE ] —H
[RIF|—B -

BFEREESR
AEENEBURBERPE  MARAN
FRAINGEM £ - BER U REBERFS
KENERERFE U NEFREEBE
BIFf & & REAER MM A RBER AR -
AEEINRHEXBLEENEESRBRE
TEE -REOBEFEARBEAFHRAH
AEE-BEETHHEERBN EMMLM IR
BRBRBRBARBEXRBEERFZENN
FERNMER  ETE2EEEITRNGEM LM
BMA BEED REIEGD EEWME
{1 B DR 15 o

B

FR AKEFELENEZEREMBRSL
16,000 7T ©

M BERRE

FA-AEENYE BEIRIEHOESF
BERGEMBRRMEE -

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 @



DIRECTORS’ REPORT &€&

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the reasons, classes and consideration received for the issue
of shares during the year are set out in the paragraph headed “Capital
Structure and Fund Raising Activities” in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” section on page 18 of this annual report.

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the year
are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Movements in reserves of the Group and the Company during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on pages
96 and 97 of this annual report and note 31(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2018, the Company’s reserves available for distribution
to shareholders amounting to approximately HK$59.0 million (2017:
HK$120.1 million) calculated in accordance with the Companies Law
Chapter 22 of the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the Group’s results and financial position for the past five
financial years is set out on page 196 of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of the Group’s revenue and subcontracting costs
attributable to the Group’s major customers, subcontractors and
suppliers respectively for the year ended 30 June 2018 is as follows:
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Revenue &

The largest customer BREF 15.5%
Five largest customers in aggregate ARBEFEF 42.7%
Subcontracting costs DERAR

The largest subcontractor BRNDEH 28.4%
Five largest subcontractors in aggregate AR BEER 68.6%

During the year, none of the Directors, their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest in any of the
Group’s five largest customers, subcontractors and suppliers.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

FA-BETAEZES RENETHEAL
TR (BEFMAHEE AR FD HITRA
S5%A L) EREAEBARER - 2B #t
FER (R



DIRECTORS’ REPORT X234

Executive Directors

BITES

Mr. Yu Shaoheng
RATRAE

Mr. Lai Tin Ming
RREASLLE

Mr. Ye Jingyuan
ERIREE

Ms. Mui Fong
iEPsR g

Mr. Yang Yifan
B—MMEE

Mr. Yeung Yat Chuen
BHREE

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BAFHTES

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching Jack

BFizsxt

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong
TEEMELE

Mr. Meng Enhai
mEEEE

Mr. Yu Xiufeng
THIESRLE

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert

BEEC kA

appointed on 31 July 2018 for a director fee of HK$846,000 per annum
MRZZE-NFLA=T—RAEBZE FF5HES /T F846,000%8 T

resigned on 28 November 2017
RZF—t&F+—AZ+N\BEE

resigned on 28 November 2017
R-ZE—tF+—A-+N\BHEHE

appointed on 28 November 2017 for a director fee of HK$396,000 per annum
RZB—+EFE+—AZ+/\BEZE EFHE/ETF396,0008T
resigned on 28 June 2018

RZE—NFARAZ+NAEE

appointed on 13 February 2018 for a director fee of HK$1,092,000 per annum
RZZB-N\F_R+=BEZE FFHRE/TF1,092,000% T
resigned on 31 July 2018

RZE—NFEA=+—HEE

appointed on 21 March 2018 for a director fee of HK$120,000 per annum
R-Z-N\FZA-+—BEZET EEHRLAEF120,000/8T

appointed on 31 July 2018 for a director fee of HK$120,000 per annum
RZZE-N\FELA=T—HEZF EFFH0E£AEETF 120,000 T

retired on 29 December 2017
RZE—tF+_AZ+hBEMAE

resigned on 31 July 2018
RZE-—NFELA=+—HEMF
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All newly appointed executive directors and independent non-executive
directors are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the
Company’s annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles of
Association of the Company.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not terminable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

During the year and up to date of this annual report, the executive
Directors, Yu Shaoheng and Lai Tin Ming are also directors in certain
subsidiaries of the Company. Other directors of the Company’s
subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of this annual report
include Mr. Chan Woon Wing, Mr. Chan Chok Fun, Mr. Lu Yi, Mr. Yang
Guang Wei and Mr. Yang Yifan.

RESIGNATION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Ye Jingyuan (“Mr. Ye”) resigned as the Chief executive officer, an
executive Director, the authorised representative, a member of the
Remuneration Committee and a member of the Nomination Committee of
the Company due to his other business commitments and engagements
with effect from 28 November 2017. Mr. Ye has confirmed that he has
no disagreements with the Board and there are no other matters relating
to his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock
Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

Ms. Mui Fong (“Ms. Mui”) resigned as an executive Director of the
Company with intention to devote more time to pursue her business
commitments and engagements with effect from 28 November 2017.
Ms. Mui has confirmed that she has no disagreements with the Board
and there are no other matters relating to her resignation that need to be
brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the shareholders of
the Company.

Mr. Yang Yifan (“Mr. Yang”) resigned as an executive Director and the
authorised representative of the Company with effect from 28 June
2018 to devote more time to his other business commitments and
engagements. Mr. Yang has confirmed that he has no disagreements
with the Board and there are no other matters relating to his resignation
that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the
shareholders of the Company.
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Mr. Yeung Yat Chuen (“Mr. Yeung”) resigned as an executive Director and
the authorised representative of the Company in order to devote more
time to his business commitments and engagements with effect from
31 July 2018. Mr. Yeung has confirmed that he has no disagreements
with the Board and there are no other matters relating to his resignation
that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock Exchange and the
shareholders of the Company.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert (“Mr. Chui”) resigned as an independent non-
executive Director and a chairman of each of the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee of the
Company due to his other business commitments and engagements
with effect from 31 July 2018. Mr. Chui has confirmed that he has no
disagreements with the Board and there are no other matters relating
to his resignation that need to be brought to the attention of the Stock
Exchange and the shareholders of the Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group as at the date of this report are set out in the “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 25 to 27 of this
annual report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Group was entered into or existed during the year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Connected Transaction”, no
contract of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during
the year.

REMUNERATION POLICY

Remuneration is determined with reference to the nature of job,
performance, qualifications and experience of individual employees, as
well as the result of the Group and the market trend. The Group carries
out staff performance appraisal once a year and the assessment result is
used for salary reviews and promotion decisions.

The Group recognises the importance of staff training and thus regularly
provides internal and external training for its staff to enhance their skills
and knowledge. The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to the duties and level of responsibilities of each Director, the
remuneration policy of the Group and the prevailing market conditions.
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SHARE OPTIONS
(1) Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the date of adoption, after which period no further options will be
offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect
to options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the Board and shall be at least the highest of (i) the
closing price per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheet on the offer date; (i) the average of the closing
prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the offer
date; or (iii) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Person
concerned for such period as determined by the Board, being a
date not later than ten business days after the offer date by which
the Eligible Person must accept the offer or be deemed to have
declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the Share
Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the Board to the grantee which the Board may in its absolute
discretion determine, save that such period shall not be more than
ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer (subject to the
provisions for early termination in accordance with the Share Option
Scheme).

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance of
the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the Board.

The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) in
respect of which the share options may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme is not permitted to exceed 10% of the Shares in issue at
the date of the annual general meeting of the Company on 29 December
2017 at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all the share options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme.

The maximum number of the Shares in respect of which share options
may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together with any
options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company in issue
shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage as may be allowed
under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number of the Shares in issue
from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
share options granted to each Eligible Person (including both exercised
and outstanding options under the Share Option Scheme) in any twelve-
month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the
Company. Where any further grant of the share options to an Eligible
Person would result in excess of such limit shall be subject to the
approval of the shareholders at general meeting with such Eligible Person
and his associates abstaining from voting.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, no share options were granted
under the Share Option Scheme.

As at 30 June 2018, the total number of shares of the Company available
for issue under the Share Option Scheme was 27,000,000 shares,
representing 10% and 5% of the Shares in issue as at 30 June 2018 and
24 September 2018, being the date of this annual report, respectively.
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DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2018, none of the Directors and
the chief executive and their respective associates had or was deemed to
have any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or its associated corporations (within of the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO); (b) pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein; or (c) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.68
of the GEM Listing Rules.

EERFTRTHRAEBREAQARGR
HEROEERAE

BRIXHIEEEN R N\FEXNAZT
H SEFRFTEBTHRABRFESS G
ZATBENR QR KEERZE (FERE
FREBERD ([EFHRBEEH]) EXVED)
MR - AR O RESTPER S ERIERE
BQEEFSLRBEKRMEXNVBETRSS
ECRY AR TE B NS AR A R R B A BT A R {a) B 5
FARR (BIEREESFRIPEED B BIEX
HEWEERBERBENERSELAE) + (0)IR
BEAE K E G0 5352 5 8 0 8 0 X & P
R Z R M EMEREIOAR - () RIE
GEM ET R BIZE5.46 16 = F5.68 BN T A
DA SRR TR TS SRR o

Percentage of
Name of the Total number total issued
company in which of ordinary Long/short share capital
Name of Director interest is held Capacity shares position  in the Company
REHHR ERARZH
=B BENLATER 54 EERAH WE/%E ERTRFEIL
Mr. Yu Shaoheng The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 96,975,200 Long 35.92%
RETEE /NS Fe@Es (Fett) e
Note: HtaF

1. Mr. Yu Shaoheng is the son of Mr. Yu Weiye and the step-son of Ms. Mui
Fong.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Save as disclosed below, as at 30 June 2018, no person other than
certain Directors or chief executive of the Company had any interests
or short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company as recorded in the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, or
which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or indirectly
interested in 5% or more of the nominal value of any class of share
capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general meetings of
any member of the Group.

FERR

BRTIXHAEREEIN RCT—\FRA=T
B #BEEAAL(RARRETEEFREIET
BA BRI RARB B - D RMEFH
THE YERERARAREBEZSFLHPE
EHIEB6HEMEFENTERRECLMOE
MERIORE - HRBES KB FRGIEXV
ME2REINFHNHREARANRFEENT
MEmIAR  XNHERXEEEREERE
BB (B 5 AT AR B TR AN SR EHE A
BRAIMBERAE LRENEN) HEES%

KA b o
Number of
underlying
shares Percentage of
Name of the Total number interest under total issued
Name of company in which of ordinary the Convertible Long/short share capital
Shareholder interest is held Capacity shares Bonds position in the Company
RETRRES
REHRKEE BREERN HERR2H
RRER RENARER &% EERAH HERGEAE #E/%& BREIRAEAML
Mr. Yu Weiye The Company Beneficial owner (Note 1) 54,431,400 - Long 20.16%
REERE NG ERBAA (1) e
The Company Interested in controlled - 83,333,333 Long 30.86%
YN corporation (Note 1) #E
REEEER (1)
Ms. Mui Fong The Company Interests of spouse (Note 2) 54,431,400 83,333,333 Long 51.02%
bk NG RBRs (Mt2) e
Notes: Bt -

1. Mr. Yu Weiye (“Mr. Yu”) beneficially owns 54,431,400 shares (the “Shares”) of
the Company and the entire issued share capital of Wui Wo Enterprise Limited
(“Wui Wo”). Therefore, Mr. Yu is also deemed to be interested in 83,333,333
underlying Shares which may be issued upon the exercise of the conversion
rights attaching to the convertible bonds issued by the Company to Wui Wo in
the principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (at the conversion price of HK$0.60
per conversion share). Accordingly, Mr. Yu is deemed to be interested in
137,764,733 Shares in accordance with the Securities and Futures Ordinance.

2. Ms. Mui Fong (“Ms. Mui”) is the wife of Mr. Yu. Ms. Mui is deemed to be
interested in 137,764,733 Shares owned by Mr. Yu in accordance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance.

1.

FREFXEE((REE)ESZHE AR A
54,431,400 B 1n ([R5 ]) REM X B R
AF([EF]) 2HEEITRA - AL &%
ENWEARARNRARREMETRASRE A
50,000,000 7T (3% %5 #2 (8 & IR B 42 A% 19 0.60
EIT) 2 AR (E S KT i 2 B R TR ]
F817#) 83,333,333 IR HRBARR (h P HE B 1S o
it RIEFHRBEGN  RAEEHERA
7 137,764,733 kAR (5 P HEE A S o

wrEZLt (Bt BREEZET - BE
BHELEEKRY  BRITERARRLER
B 137,764,733 % I {7 Rk B #E RS o

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 G



DIRECTORS’ REPORT &€&

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE SHARES

During the year ended 30 June 2018, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Shares.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public during the year ended
30 June 2018.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association and the laws of Cayman lIslands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the reporting period and up to date of this annual report, none of
the Directors, controlling shareholders and their respective associates as
defined under the GEM Listing Rules is interested in any business which
competes or is likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with the business
of the Group.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Convertible bonds

Pursuant to the subscription agreement and the supplemental extension
letter dated 15 June 2017 and 16 August 2017 respectively, Wui
Wo Enterprise Limited (the “Subscriber”) has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for and the Company has conditionally agreed to issue the
zero coupon convertible bonds in the principal amount of HK$50 million
(the “Convertible Bonds”), which entitle the Subscriber to convert the
Convertible Bonds into a maximum of 128,205,128 conversion shares
at the conversion price of HK$0.39 per conversion share (as adjusted
by the share consolidation completed on 26 July 2017 and the Rights
Issue completed on 9 July 2018) during 1 year commencing from the
date of the completion of the subscription of the Convertible Bonds (the
“Subscription”). The principal amount of the Convertible Bonds of HK$50
million payable by the Subscriber is satisfied by cash.
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As at the date of the subscription agreement, the Subscriber is wholly-
owned by Mr. Yu Weiye, a controlling shareholder of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules who was beneficially interested in 972,211,500
Shares (representing approximately 36.01% of the total issued share
capital of the Company) of which 427,897,500 Shares were owned by
the Subscriber (representing approximately 15.85% of the total issued
share capital of the Company). Accordingly, the Subscriber was an
associate of Mr. Yu Weiye and a connected person of the Company
under the GEM Listing Rules. The Subscription constitutes a connected
transaction of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules and was
subject to the announcement, reporting and Independent Shareholders’
approval requirements pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules. The
Subscription was approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 26 July 2017 and
completion of the Subscription took place on 21 August 2017 (the “Issue
Date”) with the net proceeds of approximately HK$49.2 million received.

Details of the reasons and consideration received for the Subscription
are set out in the paragraph headed “Capital Structure and Fund Raising
Activities — Convertible Bonds” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section from pages 19 to 20 of this annual report.

Vessels Cleaning Service Contract

On 30 December 2016, Pollution & Protection Services Limited (“PPS”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a vessels cleaning
service contract (the “Service Contract”) with Niko Cleaning Services
Limited (“Niko”) to outsource and engage Niko to provide the vessels
cleaning and pest control services for Customer X of PPS in Macau for
a contract term of two (2) years from 1 January 2017 to 31 December
2018.

Niko is owned as to 60% by Mr. Fan Shek Cheong, Allan (“Mr. Fan”),
and 40% by Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria (“Ms. Fan”). Mr. Fan was the
chairman, an executive director and a substantial shareholder of the
Company until 2 December 2014 and the father-in-law of Mr. Wong
Yin Jun, Samuel (“Mr. Wong”). Ms. Fan was a non-executive director
and a substantial shareholder of the Company until 26 September 2014
and 2 December 2014 respectively, the daughter of Mr. Fan and lawful
wife of Mr. Wong. Mr. Wong was the key management personnel of the
Group and the director of PPS until 17 April 2017 and 17 February 2017
respectively. Accordingly, Niko was a connected person of the Company
and the vessels cleaning services contemplated under the Service
Contract constituted a continuing connected transaction of the Company
for the period from 1 July 2017 to 16 April 2018 pursuant to the GEM
Listing Rules.
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For the period from 1 July 2017 to 16 April 2018, the total amount
of vessels cleaning services fee paid under the Service Contract was
approximately HK$4.3 million. The vessels cleaning services fee was
determined by PPS and Niko after arm’s length negotiations with
reference to (i) the historical transaction amounts in relation to the
vessels cleaning services between Customer X and Niko; (ii) the historical
transaction amounts in relation to the vessels cleaning services between
Customer X and PPS; {iii) the historical transaction amounts in relation to
the vessels cleaning services between PPS and Niko; (iv) the scope of
the vessels cleaning services; and (v) the prevailing growth in labour cost
and other expected costs including material and equipment costs.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have reviewed
the continuing connected transaction and have confirmed that the
continuing connected transaction were entered into (i) in the ordinary and
usual course of business of the Group; (i) on normal commercial terms
or, if there are not sufficient comparable transactions to judge whether
they are on normal commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the
Group than terms available to or from (as appropriate) independent third
parties; and (iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

The Company’s auditors, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited (“Baker Tilly”),
were engaged to report on the Group’s continuing connected transaction
above in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Review of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditors have issued their unqualified
letter containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transaction disclosed above by the Group in accordance with
Rule 20.54 of the GEM Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Saved as disclosed above, there are no related party transactions as
set out in note 30 to the consolidated financial statements that falls
under the definition of “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” under the GEM Listing Rules during the year.

The material related party transactions are set out in note 30 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the Group’s corporate governance practices are set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” section on pages 46 to 59 of this annual
report.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
Rights Issue

The Rights Issue was completed on 9 July 2018. The Rights Issue raised
approximately HK$46.7 million after deduction of expenses by issuing
270,000,000 rights shares.

Redemption of the Convertible Bonds

The Convertible Bonds were fully redeemed by the Group on 20 August
2018, being the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was or is,
any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of the
directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or otherwise)
or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by Baker Tilly,
who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming AGM. Having been approved by the Board upon the
Audit Committee’s recommendation, a resolution to re-appoint Baker
Tilly as the auditors of the Company and to authorise the Directors to fix
their remuneration will be proposed at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

Yu Shaoheng
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 24 September 2018
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to maintaining high standards of corporate
governance in order to uphold the transparency of the Group and
safeguard interests of the Shareholders.

The Board hereby presents this Corporate Governance Report for the
year ended 30 June 2018.

The Company has applied the principles and code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (the
“Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In the opinion of the Board, the Company has complied with the Code
and the GEM Listing Rules for the year ended 30 June 2018 and up to
the date of this annual report, except for the deviations of the following
Codes and GEM Listing Rules.

(i)  Under the Code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed
by the same individual. During the year under review and up to the
date of this annual report, no chairman of the Board is appointed
by the Company and the chief executive officer of the Company
is performed by the executive Director, Mr. Yu Shaoheng. The
Company considered that under the supervision of its Board and
its independent non-executive Directors, a balancing mechanism
existed so that the interests of the Shareholders were adequately
and fairly represented. The Company considered that there was no
imminent need to change the arrangement.

(i) The Code provision A.4.1 stipulates that all non- executive Directors
should be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election.
Currently, all non-executive Directors, including the independent
non-executive Directors are not appointed for a specific term. They
are, however, subject to the retirement by rotation and re-election
of directors in the articles of association of the Company. Since their
appointment will be reviewed when they are due for re-election, the
Board considers that sufficient measures have been taken to ensure
that the Company’s corporate governance practices are no less
exacting than those set out in the Code.
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(iiy Following the retirement of Mr. Yu Xiufeng (“Mr. Yu”) as the
independent non-executive Director (the “INED”) of the Company
at the annual general meeting held on 29 December 2017, the
Company has two INEDs and two audit committee members, the
number of which falls below the minimum number required under
Rules 5.05(1), 5.05(2), 5.05A and 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules.
On 21 March 2018, Mr. Wong Hiu Fong was appointed as the INED
and the member of the audit committee of the Company pursuant
to Rules 5.06 and 5.33 of the GEM Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors on terms which are the same as the required
standard of dealings set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

The Company periodically issues notices to its Directors reminding them
of the general prohibition on dealing in the Company’s listed securities
during the blackout periods before the publication of announcements of
financial results.

The Company has confirmed, having made specific enquiry of the
Directors, that all the Directors have complied with the required standards
of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
Directors throughout the period under review. The Company was not
aware of any non-compliance in this respect throughout the year ended
30 June 2018.

RESPONSIBILITIES, ACCOUNTABILITIES AND
CONTRIBUTIONS OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is accountable for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and effective manner.
Each Director has a duty to act in good faith and in the best interests of
the Company. Matters reserved for the Board include, but not limited to:

e approval of the Group’s long term strategy, policies and annual
budgets;

e oversight of the Group’s operations and management;
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e approval of any significant changes in accounting policies or
practices;

e approval of major changes to the Group’s corporate structure,
management and control structure;

° approval of quarterly, interim and annual results;
e responsible for internal control and risk management; and

e approval of matters in relation to Board membership and Board
remuneration.

As at 30 June 2018 and the date of this annual report, the Board
comprised five Directors, including two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, of which one independent non-
executive Director has appropriate professional qualifications, or
accounting or related financial management expertise in order to achieve
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance, as set out
below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yu Shaoheng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Lai Tin Ming

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong
Mr. Meng Enhai

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” section on pages 25 to 26
of this report.

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance covering for its
Directors.

There are no relationships (including financial, business, family or other
material or relevant relationships) among other members of the Board.

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to
Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the
independent non-executive Directors are independent. None of the
independent non-executive Directors has served the Company for more
than 9 years.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions specified in Code
Provision D.3.1, which include reviewing the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, the continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management, our Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements (including the GEM Listing Rules) and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a director of the
Company and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Company.

The Directors are aware of the requirement under the code provision A.6.5
of the Code regarding continuous professional development. During the
year, the Company had arranged a training session to all Directors
in regards to director’s duty which was conducted by an external
professional firm. In addition, Directors also reviewed the reading
materials related to corporate governance and regulations that provided
to them concerning latest developments in corporate governance
practices and relevant legal and regulatory developments.

DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENTS, RE-ELECTION AND
REMOVAL

Each of the executive Directors and the independent non-executive
Directors were appointed without a specific employment tenure, but
subject to retirement by rotation and re-election at the AGM pursuant to
the articles of association of the Company.

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company, at each
AGM one third of the Directors for the time being shall retire from office
by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Such retiring Directors may,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM. All Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office until the
first general meeting of Shareholders after their appointment and be
subject to re-election at such meeting and all Directors appointed by the
Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold office only until the
next following AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election.
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In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in other clauses in the articles of
association of the Company or in any agreement between the Company
and such Directors (but without prejudice to any claim for damages under
any such agreement), the Directors can be removed from office by notice
in writing served upon him or her signed by not less than three-fourths in
number of the total number of Directors then in office (or, if that is not a
round number, the nearest lower round number) and for the avoidance
of doubt, the counting of the total number of Directors then in office shall
include such Director subject to the proposed removal.

None of the Directors has a service contract with any member of the
Group which is not determinable by the relevant employer within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely audit committee (the
“Audit Committee”), nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”)
and remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), to oversee
particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. Their respective terms of
reference are set out in the Company’s website.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Audit Committee on 28 May 2013 with
terms of reference in compliance with paragraph C3.3 of the Code.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee include, among other things,
reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal
control systems, as well as the overall risk management of the Group,
reviewing the consolidated financial statements and the quarterly, interim
and annual reports of the Group, and reviewing the terms of engagement
and scope of audit work of the external auditors. In this regard, members
of the Audit Committee will liaise with the Board, the senior management
and auditors. The Audit Committee will also consider any significant or
unusual items that are, or may need to be, reflected in such reports and
accounts and give consideration to any matters that have been raised by
the accounting staff, compliance officer or auditors.
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The composition of the Audit Committee during the year and up to the
date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert
(resigned as Chairman on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
(redesignated as Chairman on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Yu Xiufeng
(retired on 29 December 2017)
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong
(appointed on 21 March 2018)
Mr. Meng Enhai
(appointed on 31 July 2018)

The members of the Audit Committee possess diversified industry
experience and the chairman of the Audit Committee has appropriate
professional qualifications and experience in accounting matters.

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the management of the Group
the financial and accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group, its internal controls and financial reporting matters and the above
audited annual results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2018.

The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the Audit Committee meetings are as follows:

AC Meeting
Members Attend/
Eligible to attend
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 4/4
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 4/4
Mr. Yu Xiufeng 2/2
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong 1/1
Mr. Meng Enhai 0/0

Nomination Committee

The Company has established the Nomination Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph A.5.2 of
the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board, identifying
and nomination of directors and making recommendations to the Board
on appointment and reappointment of Directors.
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The composition of the Nomination Committee during the year and up to
the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert

(resigned as Chairman on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Ye Jingyuan

(resigned on 28 November 2017)
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack

(redesignated as Chairman on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Yu Xiufeng

(retired on 29 December 2017)
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong

(appointed on 21 March 2018)
Mr. Meng Enhai

(appointed on 31 July 2018)

The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance in compliance with
paragraph A.5.6 of the Code.

When identifying suitable candidates for directorship, the Nomination
Committee shall carry out the selection process by making reference to
the skills, experience, education background, professional knowledge,
personal integrity and time commitments of the proposed candidates,
and also the Company’s needs and other relevant statutory requirements
and regulations. Qualified candidates then be recommended to the
Board for approval.

The Nomination Committee held three meetings during the year under
review. Details of the attendance of the Nomination Committee meeting
are as follows:

NC Meeting

Members Attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 3/3

Mr. Ye Jingyuan 1/1

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 3/3

Mr. Yu Xiufeng 1/1

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong 0/0

Mr. Meng Enhai 0/0

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee on 28 May
2013 with terms of reference in compliance with paragraph B.1.2 of the
Code.
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The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among
other things, formulating and making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration policy, determining the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management and making
recommendations to the Board of the remuneration of non-executive
Directors.

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the members of the senior management (other than
the Directors) whose particulars are contained in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2018 by band is set out as follows:

Remuneration band (in HK$) Ho#EHE (Bx)

HE B Qe BWE A LD aE) HlET
ERFMBEENEFE L RERSE BT
FRATEEREMEREH ARSI
MEHFATEENHHOEERELER
3 -

BIBECEERTAEBASK  KFEEHEC
T-NEFERA=ZTHLEFESRERAEZ
FARERAFRIEZ NS REEABREE]
—8 SREEAR (BEFHRIN WFEHM
MBEHINN T

Number of individuals

A

Nil to 1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000

The composition of the Remuneration Committee during the year and up
1o the date of this annual report is as follows:

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert

(resigned as Chairman on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Ye Jingyuan

(resigned on 28 November 2017)
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack

(redesignated as Chairman on 31 July 2018)
Mr. Yu Xiufeng

(retired on 29 December 2017)
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong

(appointed on 21 March 2018)
Mr. Meng Enhai

(appointed on 31 July 2018)

The Remuneration Committee held three meetings during the year
under review. Details of the attendance of the Remuneration Committee
meetings are as follows:

RC Meeting

Members Attend/
Eligible to attend

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 3/3

Mr. Ye Jingyuan 11

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 3/3

Mr. Yu Xiufeng 11

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong 0/0

Mr. Meng Enhai 0/0
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ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF MEETINGS

The Board is scheduled to meet regularly at least four times a year,
and Directors shall receive at least 14 days prior written notice of such
meetings in compliance with paragraph A.1.1 of the Code. Agendas and
accompanying papers are sent before the Board meetings to ensure that
the Directors are given sufficient time to review the same.

During the year under review, the Board held 12 regular board meetings
and 1 general meeting. The Directors attended those meetings in person,
by phone or through other electronic means of communication.

The individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings during
the year under review is set out below:

Members Attend/
Eligible to attend
Board General

Name of Directors Meeting Meeting

Executive Directors

Mr. Ye Jingyuan (resigned on 28 November 2017) 5/5 0/0

Mr. Yu Shaoheng 12/12 0/1

Ms. Mui Fong 5/5 0/0
(resigned on 28 November 2017)

Mr. Yang Yifan (appointed on 28 November 2017 and 77 1/1
resigned on 28 June 2018)

Mr. Lai Tin Ming (appointed on 31 July 2018) 0/0 0/0

Mr. Yeung Yat Chuen (appointed on 13 February 2018 and 3/3 0/0

resigned on 31 July 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert 12/12 11
(resigned on 31 July 2018)

Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack 12/12 11

Mr. Yu Xiufeng 2/6 0/1
(retired on 29 December 2017)

Mr. Wong Hiu Fong 2/2 0/0
(appointed on 21 March 2018)

Mr. Meng Enhai 0/0 0/0

(appointed on 31 July 2018)

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings and written
resolutions are kept by the Company Secretary and are available to all
Directors.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Audit Committee has reviewed with the Board on the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the accounts
and presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive assessment for
the Group’s performance, position and prospects. The Directors are
not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern.

The Company’s auditors, Baker Tilly, acknowledge their reporting
responsibilities in the independent auditor’s report to the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 30 June 2018,
which are set out in “Independent Auditors Report” section on pages 87
to 91 of this report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The fees charged by Baker Tilly in respect of audit services and non-audit
services for the year ended 30 June 2018 amounted to approximately
HK$650,000 and HK$68,000 respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that proper and
effective risk management and internal control systems (the “RMIC
System”) of the Group are maintained. The senior management of the
Company is delegated with the responsibility to design and implement
an internal control system to manage risks. The senior management of
the whole Group, including but not limited to, the directors, executives
and super of the major operating units of the Group, maintains, monitors
and implements the risk management and internal control systems on an
ongoing basis.

The Group’s RMIC System include a defined management structure
with specified limits of authority, which are designed to achieve business
objectives and goals, safeguard assets against unauthorised use or
disposition, control over operating and capital expenditures, ensure
the maintenance of proper books and records for providing reliable
financial information used for internal or publication purposes, and ensure
compliance with relevant legislation and regulations.

The risk management and internal control systems are designed to meet
the Group’s particular needs and risks to be exposed, and to provide
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss, and to manage rather than eliminate risks of failure in operations
systems achievement of the Group’s objectives and goals.
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The Group is committed to maintaining and upholding good corporate
governance practice and RMIC System. The Group has established
controlling teams (the “Controlling Teams”) nominated by the Board and
the Audit Committee comprising the directors, executives and supervisors
of the major operating units of the Group to take up the responsibilities
of monitoring the day-to-day operational management, risk management
function, and internal control systems of all operating units of Group,
integrating with the systems of monthly and annual planning and
budgeting process, counter-approval and implementation and control
process, identifying any risk or possible failure of the operating units, and
reporting and making suggestions on how each operating unit to achieve
the objectives and goals set. The controlling teams meet regularly with
the Board and the Audit Committee and report on matters to be updated
to the Board and the Audit Committee timely.

Risk Management Approach

The Group strives to identify and assess the key risks faced by the Group
based on the following risk management approach:

(i) Risks Identification

—  The Controlling Teams are responsible for identifying potential
risks, through periodically reviewing the Group’s business and
financial data, testing the effectiveness of the Group’s existing
internal control procedures and policies; and

— All staff are required and encouraged to report any risks,
particularly those risks that are material weaknesses and
deviation in the Group’s existing internal control procedures
and policies, to the Controlling Teams or the Board and the
Audit Committee.

(i) Risks Assessment and Measurement

— Risks identified or reported are further evaluated and
scrutinised, through consolidating, filtering and prioritising
processes by the Controlling Teams;

—  Material risks that may seriously affect the business, operational
or financial aspects of the Group are immediately handled by
the Controlling Teams, the Board and the Audit Committee;
and

—  Immaterial risks that are acceptable to the Group will be closely

monitored the Controlling Teams to ensure that the level of risk
will not increase to an unacceptable level.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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(iii) Risks Control and Mitigation

Considering and weighting the benefits and costs of all
available solutions and choosing the appropriate ones;

Elimination of the material risks entirely by taking immediate
remedy actions such as modifying the Group’s existing
business strategies, internal controls and operational
procedures; and

Mitigation of the material risks by reducing their impact as
much as possible such as transferring the impact of the risks
to third parties and implementing alternative procedures and
policies.

(iv) Risks Monitoring

The Board and the Audit Committee in conjunction with the
Controlling Teams closely monitor the risks identified and the
progress of the remedy actions taken to ensure that the level
of risk will not increase to an unacceptable level; and

Risk assessment report and internal control review report are
submitted by the Controlling Teams to the Board and the Audit
Committee annually for their review.

During the year, the Controlling Teams has summarized the risks
identified and reviewed the effectiveness of the RMIC System. The
findings have been summarised and submitted to the Board and the
Audit Committee for review. The Board and the Audit Committee
concluded that the RMIC System is effective and adequate and the
principal risks identified have been adequately controlled.

The principal risks identified and related control procedures are set out in
the paragraph headed “Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the “Directors’
Report” section from page 29 to 32 of this annual report respectively.
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PROCEDURES AND INTERNAL CONTROLS FOR
THE HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF INSIDE
INFORMATION

The Group discloses inside information to the public as soon as
reasonably practicable unless the information falls within any of the safe
harbours as stated in the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed to
the public, the Group ensures the information is not false or misleading
as to a material fact, nor false or misleading through the omission of a
material fact in view of presenting information in a clear and balanced
way, which requires equal disclosure of both positive and negative facts.
If the Group believes that the necessary degree of confidentiality cannot
be maintained or that confidentiality may have been breached, the Group
would immediately disclose the information to the public.

Certain policies and procedures have been taken by the Group to
ensure that proper safeguards exist to prevent a breach of a disclosure
requirement in relation to the Group, which include but not limited
to (i) trainings or briefings are provided to employees who will be in
possession of inside information to ensure that they are fully conversant
with their obligations to preserve confidentiality with reasonable care;
(i) confidentiality documents are kept by the designated personnel
and placed in the designated locked areas; (i) transmission of inside
information in electronic form should be password-protected; and (iv)
access of inside information is restricted to designated employees on a
need-to-know basis.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary is responsible for facilitating the Board’s process
and communications among Board members and with the Shareholders
and the management, and advising the Board and its committees on
all corporate governance matters. He reports to the Board and/or the
Managing Director and his selection, appointment or dismissal shall be a
Board decision.

The Directors have accessed to the advice and services of the company
secretary to ensure that board procedures and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed. The company secretary took more than 15
hours’ professional training for the year ended 30 June 2018.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting and to put forward proposals at
Shareholders’ meeting

Any one or more Members holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit
the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the
Board shall reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures by which enquiries may be put to the Board

Shareholders may send their enquiries and concerns to the Board
by addressing them to the Board or the company secretary of the
Company by mail at 24/F, SUP Tower, 75-83 King’s Road, North Point,
Hong Kong. The company secretary of the Company is responsible for
forwarding communications relating to matters within the Board’s direct
responsibilities to the Board and communications relating to ordinary
business matters, such as suggestions and inquiries, to the relevant
executive officer of the Company.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency
and employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information
to the Shareholders and the investing public. The Company’s corporate
website is www.ppsintholdings.com.

All corporate communication materials published on the GEM website
(http://www.hkgem.com) are posted on the Company’s corporate
website as soon as practicable after their release. The Company’s
constitutional documents are also available on our website. No significant
changes were made to these documents during the year ended 30 June
2018. Information on the website shall be updated on a regular basis.

Share registration matters shall be handled for the Shareholders by the
Company’s share registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 22,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.
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The Company is delighted to present its second Environmental, Social
and Governance (“ESG”) Report (the “ESG Report”). This ESG Report
herein focuses on providing an overview of the environmental and social
aspects of the Group, and outlines how we continually improve our
operational strategy in regard to our environment and society in order to
cope with the global standards of sustainability.

During the process of preparing this ESG Report, the Group has
conducted thorough review and evaluation of the existing policies and
practices. Unless otherwise stated, this ESG Report covers the data of
all operating units, i.e. the money lending business and the environmental
and cleaning services business, of the Group.

REPORT SCOPE AND BOUNDARY

The Report is prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting Guide
(“Guide”) as set out in Appendix 20 to the GEM Listing Rules.

In order to comply with the disclosure obligations of “comply or explain”
provisions, this ESG Report has outlined the overall Group’s performance
in environmental protection, human resources, operating practice and
community involvement for the financial year ended 30 June 2018
(“Reporting Period”). HKEX’s Guide for this ESG Report from page 80 to
86 of this annual report is provided for cross-referencing purpose.

The Group acknowledges the importance of proper disclosure of
business activities, believing it as the key to building trust with investors
and shareholders. This ESG Report will highlight the following aspects:

e  Emissions, use of resources and generation of waste;
e Employment and Labour Practices;

e Operating Practices; and

e Community Investment.

For details on corporate governance of the Company, please refer to
the “Corporate Governance Report” section from page 46 to 59 of this
annual report.

For details in relation to our financial performance during the Reporting
Period, please refer to the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section and the audited financial statements together with related
notes from page 8 to 24 and page from 92 to 195 of this annual report
respectively.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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Materiality Assessment

To ensure prompt and proper management of key sustainability
issues, our Group has compiled and prioritized material aspects
relating to business operations. Material aspects are those that reflect
the Group’s significant economic, environmental and social impacts;
or that substantially influence the assessments and decisions of our
stakeholders. In addition, we have included key performance indicators
(“KPI") in the Report in order to provide our stakeholders and the public
a more comprehensive and profound understanding of the effectiveness
of the implemented operational strategies in pursuing environmental
sustainability. These priorities allow us to uphold our commitment to our
stakeholders while managing the impacts we have on the society and
environment.

OUR STAKEHOLDERS

As stakeholders play a crucial role in sustaining the success of
our business, we make use of various communication channels to
understand and engage our stakeholders. We believe that stakeholder
engagement helps us in better understanding the needs and concerns
of all our key stakeholders. The probable points of concern of the
stakeholders and the way of our communication and responses are listed
below.
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Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

B#HE Tl BERAE B BB E e

HKEX Compliance with listing rules, and timely and Meetings, training, workshops, programs, website
accurate announcements. updates, and announcements.

EBR S WP ETRA RERERMTIEAE - G Fl ITEY GHE BUBEREAE -

Government Compliance with laws and regulations, Interaction and visits, government inspections,
preventing tax evasion, business ethics, and tax returns, ongoing communication with relevant
social welfare. government departments, and other information.

B BFEREERO DB A ERANIIE EERFD  BARE A% AR - EBEREK

Investors and
shareholders

Corporate governance, business strategies and
performance, and investment returns.

BREERKRR TEER  FHRBEERR - UEEREDOR -

FFEBPIR B B A R AL B HYL -

Briefing sessions and seminars, interviews,
shareholders’ meetings, issue of financial reports
or operation reports for investors, ESG report,
and media and analysts.
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Stakeholders Probable Points of Concern Communication and Responses

BHE AJRE R X B BB E

Media & Public Corporate governance, environmental Newsletters on the Company’s website.
protection, and human rights.

HER AR PERER RERRAKE- TEZR X R 485 B IRER ©

Suppliers Corporate reputation, payment schedule, and Site visits.
stable demand.

HrEm ERE . NFFBEREBESK - B R -

Customers Service quality, service delivery schedule, After-sales services.
reasonable prices, service value, and personal
data protection.

BP REE & - RIGIREE - aEER R  EEBRE-

BE R EABURRE -

Employees Rights and benefits of employees, Union activities, trainings, interviews with
compensation, training and development, work  employees, internal memos, and employee
hours, occupational health and safety, and suggestion boxes.
working environment.

(= EEMERNRERN ME BIEFEE T IE5d Bl -EEFH FEAXETS
TERSE  BERBER L2 AR TR - EBRVEEERME-

Community Community environment, employment Community activities, employee voluntary
opportunities, community development, and activities, and community welfare subsidies and
social welfare. donations.

Zan HERRER - EERE HRERIMAEGREMN - HRED EEHXIED HEBHHERL RIBHE -
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

BERET

Our outstanding business performance has earned us various industry ~ FFfISHAEEE N RMHRERZITEEE -
awards which have further reinforced our position in the market. The #—#FEE TR AT IHE AL o 2N &= [FH #
Group continues to be recognized for its efforts to promote corporate  BRB O #HETEELSETMESRA - T
social responsibilities. The following table shows what we have achieved — & 7I/RF PR HE RIS HIK R -

during the Reporting Period.

Organisers

WA

Awards

#®1g

Association of China Commercial Enterprise

Management

TEREXEXREERERES

Association of China Commercial Enterprise

Management
PHEECEEERE

Association of China Commercial Enterprise

Management

TEBREXEERE

Environmental Protection Department
RIBREE

Green Council
RIRBESR

Environmental Campaign Committee
REEHEESG

Environmental Campaign Committee
REEDEESR

Business Environment Council
ARRRE

The Hong Kong Council of Social Service
EELERGHE

South China Morning Post
(FZER )

Qualification Level Certificate of China Cleaning Industry —
National 1st Level Qualification

PEIFBRBRITESREE -—BHR K

Enterprise Qualification of China Cleaning Industry

RENERITEREEE

2017 China Top 100 Cleaning Service Enterprises

R FHBEBRRBEITEEREE

Certificate of Commendation
REHE

Hong Kong Green Purchasing Charter
EERREBLHOEKE

Wastewi$e — Excellence Level

MEEEE — AT

Environmental Initiatives and Participation — Hong Kong Awards
for Environmental Excellence

REFRRTEFELE N R2E-FERREBALE

Certificate of Membership of Business Environment Council
BARRERNEEEESE

Caring Company
AR E

Best HK Professional Services Brand (Publicly-listed)
ERREZRRG @M (EmARER)

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 °
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ENVIRONMENTAL
Overview

As a money lender and an environmental protection and cleaning
services enterprise, the Group values environmental sustainability and has
been striving to integrate the concept into every part of its daily business
operations. We are committed to increasing the efficiency of resources
utilization and enhancing our environmental performance by adopting
world-class environmental protection practices in our business dealings.

We strive to work towards a ‘green’ and sustainable working environment
by improving energy efficiency, addressing waste management,
supporting environmental education and promoting the idea of recycling
and reusing. The operation and administrative department constantly
reviews our internal operational practices to ensure that they are in line
with the concept of sustainable corporate development. Policies and
measures were strengthened and improved this year so as to effectively
manage undesirable environmental impact.

The Group is currently undergoing an expansion of the environmental
and cleaning services business in the PRC, especially in Shanghai, the
PRC. It is expected that the scale and quality of services provided by our
operations will be further increased and improved in the following years.
Since the Group’s businesses are mainly based in Hong Kong during the
Reporting Period, this ESG Report will mainly focus on the environmental
issues and relevant measures that are applicable to the operating units in
Hong Kong.

To achieve the environmental goals, the Group has implemented the
following measures:

e Comply with all applicable environmental laws and regulations;

e I[dentify, assess and mitigate all potential environmental impacts
associated with the Group’s activities;

e Commit leadership and develop a strong culture of environmental
stewardship within the entire workforce; and

e  Make resources and systems available, with the provision of

necessary training to empower our employees to fulfill our
environmental responsibilities.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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Compliance and Grievance

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant environmental
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including but
not limited to Environmental Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-
compliance incidents or grievances were noted by the Group in relation
to environmental issues.

Emissions

The Group’s greenhouse gas (“GHG”) emissions mainly resulted from
three types of activities, including but not limited to direct vehicle
emissions, direct air-conditioning at offices and factories, and indirect
emissions from employees travelling by air.

In the absence of production process, the direct GHG emissions
generated from our business activities are minimal, and our services
provided do not make direct nor material impacts on the environment.

Nevertheless, we have implemented various measures to minimize
emissions, thus reduce the impact on the environment.

Motor vehicles

During the Reporting Period, we owned a fleet of 25-27 vehicles for
transporting our management team members, guests and clients, as
well as for our business operations that would consume a considerable
amount of fuel.

At the end of each month, we would obtain a summary of fuel
consumption from our service provider in order to monitor the usage
of fuel of all our vehicles. Furthermore, regular maintenance checks are
performed for all the vehicles to enhance fuel consumption efficiency,
to ensure road safety and to keep carbon dioxide emission at their
minimum.

The total mileage travelled of the vehicles was 436,761.42 kilometers.
The total fuel consumption of the vehicles was 145,925.45 liters; the total
nitrogen oxides and sulphur oxides emissions were 32,626.08 grams
and 2,338.96 grams respectively; while the total particle emission was
2,402.19 grams; and the total carbon dioxide emission was 387,080.27
kilograms.
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Air-conditioning

Employees are encouraged to set the offices’ air-conditioners at a
comfortable temperature (best at 25.5 degrees Celsius) and all the air-
conditioners that are not in use should be switched off. The Group
has also put reminder notices at prominent places to raise employees’
awareness of electricity consumption and energy conservation.

Travelling by air

During the Reporting Period, the total number of business air trips by
the employees was 32 times and the total CO2 emissions were 3,827.6
kilograms. Employees are only required to travel by air when necessary,
otherwise, we would arrange telephone or video conference calls instead
of face-to-face meetings to reduce the carbon emissions that are
indirectly caused by air travel.

Data on Greenhouse Gas Emission
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Carbon emission (CO2) in kg

Year ended 30 June 2018 BE-E-N\EXA=1THLEE DFmstEMERER (ZE i)
Motor vehicles RE 387,080.27
Disposal of paper BEIR AR OR 1,944
Business travel by air S ZE IRTT 3,827.60
Total emission of GHG BERBAHEN 392,851.87

Use of Resources

We always endeavor to promote sustainability and aim to cease
resources wastage that provokes detrimental harm to the environment.
Various measures have been implemented to attain the goal of
using resources efficiently. These measures have been effectively
communicated to all levels of staff, ensuring all staff members understand
clearly the importance of conserving energy and make full use of the
available resources at work.

The Group has formulated policies and educated the employees on
the efficient use of resources including energy, water and other raw
materials in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations. Internal
environmental review has been conducted regularly to assess the
environmental impact of the group business activities so that the energy
and water usage can be closely monitored. Measures that have been
taken to minimize the usage of resources are detailed below.
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Water Usage

We strictly comply with local laws and regulations regarding water
discharge, such as the Water Pollution Control Ordinance and
Waterworks Ordinance in Hong Kong. Although we do not have any
issue in sourcing water, and the existing supply of water meets our daily
operational needs, we strive to reduce water usage and increase overall
water usage efficiency.

We encourage our employees working in the headquarters to consume
resources only where appropriate, and turn off the faucets tightly. We
also fix dripping taps immediately, and install flow restrictors and spray
nozzles where possible.

Our on-site employees are required to follow a standard water pollution
control procedure in order to reduce water pollution. Wastewater
containing bleach, buffering cream or specific detergent is diluted before
it is discharged into sewers. To enhance our employees’ knowledge of
wastewater discharge, relevant ordinances and environmental measures
are introduced to our employees.

As the water bills for our head office in Hong Kong are included in the
estate maintenance fee and we are not able to record the water usage
on sites, thus we are not able to collect and disclose the relevant data.

Electricity and Energy Usage

In consideration of the potential environmental threats to the
communities, the Group has made steady progress in reducing its
carbon footprints across the business. As the electricity bills for our Hong
Kong head office are included in the estate maintenance fee, thus we are
not able to collect and disclose the relevant data. Nevertheless, as part
of our many initiatives to reduce energy consumption, we have adopted
and implemented the following measures to preserve energy and reduce
electricity usage:

e Turn off lighting and appliances that are not in use to reduce energy
consumption;

e Turn off air conditioners and lights during non-office hours and in
idle rooms;

° Employees are required to put computers and other devices into
sleeping mode or turn them off when they are not in use (such as
during customer visit and lunch time) during business hours;

° Regular maintenance of office equipment such as air conditioners,
computers, lights, refrigerators, etc. to ensure they are operating
efficiently;
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e  Printing machine in the office is set at energy-saving mode by
default, and the sleeping mode is automatically turned on, when not
in use for a certain time interval;

° Used printer cartridges at the head office are sent back to the
manufacturers for recycling; and

e  Place posters “Saving Electricity; Turn off the Light when Leaving”
at prominent places to encourage employees to reduce energy
consumption.

Generation of Waste

Solid waste is mainly generated from the Group’s day-to-day operations,
including, but not limited to office-use paper, office waste and waste
generated from the provision of our cleaning service. In order to alleviate
the pressure on landfills and promote environmental friendliness within
the Group, we have implemented various measures to encourage
recycling of office supplies and other materials.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited
to the Waste Disposal Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed material
non-compliance incidents or grievances were noted by us.

We have a comprehensive guideline on procurement of detergents,
pesticides and other products related to our business. Only a minimal
amount of chemical or clinical hazardous waste was generated during
the performance of our service, therefore, the data of hazardous waste
was not included in the calculation. Moreover, no packing materials were
used for the business operations, and thus, no data in this respect is
available.
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Total non-hazardous waste generated for the year ended 30 June EHZF_—FE—\FEAXA=FHILFEFELR
2018 EEEYHEE

Data (kg)

gE(TR)

Paper 45K 405

Towels EmM 10,463

Gloves F= 8,016

Scouring cloth B 311

Total weight BEE 19,194.72
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Reduction of printing and paper usage

We require our staff members to make full use of office paper before
its disposal and have incorporated various measures into our business
operations. For example, we implement the policy of double-sided
printing and copying, and disseminate information by electronic means
whenever possible to reduce the consumption of paper. We encourage
our employees to avoid the use of disposable and non-recyclable
products, and to use refillable stationeries instead of one-off stationeries.
Recycling bins are also available to collect used products, such as waste
papers and cartridges toners, at the headquarters. We will continue to
leverage the use of technology for communication with our employees
and customers, aiming to go paperless.

Reduction of waste generated from the provision of our services

Our employees are encouraged to organize, maintain and clean the
garbage and recycled waste holding areas; recycled waste is sorted
into appropriate receptacles. Appropriate signage is placed on the bins,
stating what type of waste or recyclables should be put in the bin.

Moreover, our Group policy requires employees to bring back all the
bottles provided them. If cleaning chemicals have been used up,
employees are not allowed to dispose of the empty bottles that keep
the cleaning chemicals without proper consent. Empty bottles must be
collected and refilled with cleaning chemicals for reuse.

SOCIAL
Employment and Labour Practices

We value our employees and focus on building a safe and pleasant
working environment for them. We offer attractive remuneration packages
as well as provide plenty of internal and external training opportunities for
our employees, in order to attract, motivate and retain the right people.

Before the start of employment, employees are required to enter into an
employment contract, where the duties and responsibilities of his or her
role are clearly stated. Moreover, we have a set of personnel policies
and procedures as well as a staff handbook that set out our standard
internal procedures relating to recruitment and promotion, working
hours, holidays, equal opportunities, compensation, dismissal, diversity
of origins, anti-discrimination and other human resources treatments and
benefits of our employees, etc. The relevant policies for employment and
labour practices are listed as follows.
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Compliance and Grievance

We strictly comply with the requirements of the Employment Ordinance,
the Minimum Wage Ordinance, the Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
as well as other relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong which cover
employment protection and benefits. During the Reporting Period, we
complied with all laws and regulations in relation to employment that
have a significant impact on us. No confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances were noted by the Group.

Employment

Employees are valuable assets to the Group and the key driving force
of our sustainable performance. We welcome people with different
backgrounds to join our team to add value to our pool of professional
expertise of the industry and bring in innovative ideas. As of 30 June
2018, the Group employed a total of 1,233 members of staff in
Hong Kong and the PRC, consists of 885 full-time and 348 part-time
employees.

The following table sets forth the breakdowns by gender, age group and
nationality of our employees:
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As of 30 June 2018, a total of 1,058 members of staff were dismissed or
resigned from their positions in Hong Kong and the PRC. The statistics
for employee turnover rates are as follows.

Employee turnover rate by age group
RERAEREDHNEERAR

18-25
18%255%
26-35
26Z355%
36-45
36Z455%

W 46-55

46ZE555%

56-65

56Z£655%

W 65 or above
65mEA E

3% 5%
15%

15%

31%

31%

Anti-discrimination and integrity

The Group strives to create a fair and impartial working environment
where all employees are treated equally and respectfully. Any kinds of
discrimination or harassment based on the employees’ gender, age,
marital status, race, sexual orientation and religion at our workplace are
strongly prohibited. Employees are entitled/to equal opportunity in terms
of treatment and promotion. A set of policies and procedures is in place
detailing the aim, complaint procedure, and appeal procedure on equal
opportunities. During the recruitment process, we only focus on the
capability and attitude of the interviewee, thus people with disabilities are
also welcome to be part of our Group.

We always listen and respond to the requests of our employees. It is the
goal of the Group to create a friendly and peaceful working environment.
We encourage our employees to provide feedback in relation to
any employment-related matters, especially when they encounter
any unpleasant or undesired treatments from colleagues or senior
management. Employees may report issues to his or her department
head and lodge a formal complaint. Any complaints received will be kept
confidential. If any unfair treatments and harassments are found and
confirmed, the Group will issue a warning in written form to the employee
who has done the wrongdoing and may dismiss him or her depending on
the seriousness of the incident.

Employee turnover rate by gender
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Attract and retain talents

Our employees are our most valuable asset and we value their rights
and welfare. Our remuneration policies are in line with the prevailing
market practices and are determined on the basis of the competency,
qualifications and experience of the individual employees. Management
has been constantly reviewing the staff remuneration package and
employees’ promotion opportunities. Adjustments will be made
periodically, to conform with the market standard in order to retain talents
and ensure the offer is competitive as compared to our competitors in
the industry. A standard package includes basic salary and the statutory
pension benefit such as the Mandatory Provident Fund (“MPF”) in Hong
Kong, the social insurance and housing provident fund in the PRC. We
also offer discretionary bonus based on the individual performance of the
employees and our financial performance.

Welfare and benefits

To increase the employees’ sense of belonging, we offer various welfare
and benefits to our employees. For instance, employees are entitled
to all public holidays as well as paid leave in accordance with the
Employment Ordinance and their job level. Long service award is offered
as an appreciation for the contribution and dedication of long-serving
employees. In addition, we offer discounted dental care plan to our
employees, which their spouse and children can also enjoy.

We emphasize the unity and harmony at work. Over the years, our
Human Resources Department has made efforts in organizing activities
to strengthen the bonding of employees within the Group. Annual dinner
and casual gatherings were organized this year, which provide a platform
for our employees to mingle and have fun.

Health and Safety

We aim to provide a safe and healthy working environment to our
employees, and encourage them to achieve a balance between work
and a healthy lifestyle. The Group complies with the relevant laws and
regulations in relation to safety, as well as hygiene and health. Our safety
management system is accredited to the leading international standard of
OHSAS 18001.

G PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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To ensure all accidents and injuries are properly recorded, and are
handled accordingly by the relevant employees, The Group has a
comprehensive policy for accidents reporting procedures. During the
Reporting Period, there were a total of 61 cases of work-related injuries
and a total of 1,688 lost days due to work injury; no record of work-
related fatality was recorded. Since the provision of our services may
expose our employees to a certain degree of occupational hazards, all
work-related health and safety performance, including work procedures,
working at height, occupational road risk, and machinery safety, are
closely monitored by the Operation and Administrative Department of the
Group.

All staff members are required to familiarize themselves with and follow
our “Occupational Health and Safety Plan”, which details the safety
requirements when performing services. For instance, the use of personal
protective equipment such as proper gloves, safety goggles, masks, use
of appropriate tools for picking up garbage, proper use of chemicals as
per standards etc., to reduce the risk of accidental injuries.

Safety rules are translated into various languages to cater for the
different needs of our employees. The Operation and Administrative
Department provides updates on health and safety issues to the staff
members on a regular basis. The Group has incorporated safety
management awareness into every stage of our operations. Our safety
culture and policies are also introduced to our contractors and partners
by incorporating safety requirements into the terms of the service
agreements.

Development and Training

We believe that investing in employees through training will help
promote job satisfaction, work motivation and staff loyalty. Different
types of training are provided to employees to make sure that they
are acknowledged with updated information and possess sufficient
knowledge and skills to provide quality services to our customers. For
instance, training includes but is not limited to driving safety, business
writing, operational training, orientation, as well as information technology
security.
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The total number of training hours for the Reporting Period was 23,044.5
hours. The average number of training hours completed by each male
and female employee were 77 hours and 47 hours respectively. The
percentage of employees trained by gender is as below:

The percentage of employees
trained by gender

EMRBsNZIESES T

63%
37%

Male

B
M Female

it

Continuous education enhances the competitiveness of the employees
as well as the Group in the industry. The Group is committed to providing
our employees resources and opportunities, so that they can have clear
career goals to progress within the Group.

Labour Standards

We are committed to complying with the Employment Ordinance and
other relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC in relation
to employees’ protection and benefits. Every employment is subject
to a stringent internal review process that involves a well-established
procedure to verify a candidate’s personal information, in order to avoid
misrepresentation and employment of child labour. For instance, the
staff member responsible for recruitment collects the identity proofs
from the candidates to ensure that the age of the candidates fulfill the
requirements as stipulated by the law.

The employment of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited. If
management discovers there is any employment of forced or child
labour, we will immediately terminate the employment concerned. During
the Reporting Period, all employees are over the age of 18, and have
been properly employed in accordance with the requirements of all
applicable laws and regulations. No confirmed non-compliance incidents
or grievances were noted by the Group.

Q PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

BRI IRT T I B RAEBE RN P
HoAREBNARARKARRAE &
BETTIRROFLE R NAEENF
MBS -

T XA

AN R E TR IR IR A R E B K+ B
BREBRERENOEMHERERRER -
BRERHABTEENADEZBRE B
PHRBNAZERBEREEEAEZ KA
MRERF NERRERALERET - fin -
BERENTHEABREREENSHESR -
UiERERENFRTEIZERENER

AEBBRREILRESTRNETTR - WHWE
BEXREMAERAEIXBRASLIHNITR
B AR IR R RERER - RS HIf
PRERESM18E  WEREMAERER

FOERMRELRER - AEBEYESHNTF
EEMHERNT AR B IIRF -



ENVIORNMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT %1% « 2R ERHRE

Operating Practices

Supply Chain Management

The Group places emphasis on supply chain management, which
is achieved by maintaining long-term relationships with credible and
reputable suppliers that offer quality products and services. Environmental
and social factors are taken into considerations when choosing our
suppliers. Suppliers with certain qualifications, such as certification of ISO
14001 or ISO 9001 Quality Management System Certification or OHSAS
18001 or other accreditation, etc. will be given preference.

In addition to the quality of product or service, the suppliers’
environmental value and awareness of occupational health and safety
are considered during supplier selection. We have a guideline on
procurement of detergents, pesticides and other work-related materials,
and set out clear considerable factors when choosing suppliers’
products.

We continuously evaluate the Group’s suppliers and sub-contractors in
respect to products supplied, service quality, reliability, environmental
performance and occupational health and safety. We also consider
the principle of green procurement and constantly evaluate the use of
materials to avoid overstocking and squandering resources.

It is our wish to collaborate with our suppliers in the development
and application of innovation, participation in production process
enhancement for the continuous optimization of supply chain capabilities
as well as fulfilment of our responsibilities in social and environmental
protection.

Product Responsibility

At the Group, our primary focus is to provide high quality services to our
customers. We value the importance of confidentiality of our customers
by protecting their personal information. For advertising, we strictly
comply with all relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and in the
PRC to avoid conveying any incorrect messages to the public.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations, and no complaints were received in relation to our services
provided. No non-compliance issues or grievances were noted by the
Group.
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Customer Management

For the environmental protection business, the Group places great
emphasis on quality control. We have obtained ISO 9001, ISO 14001 and
OHSAS 18001, and are committed to delivering professional services
and achieving customer satisfaction. To understand clients’ needs, we
conduct site assessments and communicate with our clients before
commencing services.

We have a comprehensive set of policies and procedures on “Quality
Management Plan”, a framework that focuses on business goals and
objectives. During the performance of our services, our employees will
carry out regular check on the service quality, including services delivered
by the Group’s own employees and third-party service providers, and
record occasions of substandard performance and any follow-up actions
taken.

Moreover, management members would hold regular meetings with
on-site employees to review and discuss various aspects of operations
to ensure that the services provided meet clients’ expectations. We
continuously collect feedback from clients about service quality,
environmental and workplace safety performance, and application of
material and tools. To enhance clients’ confidence in the Group, we
promptly investigate the root cause of unsatisfying services, provide
corrective solutions and carry out immediate remedial and preventive
actions in response to the complaints received from our clients.

For the money lending business, we provide one-on-one service to our
customers and design loan repayment schedule which best suits the
needs of our customers. Service features, terms and conditions, and any
associated risks are clearly communicated to the intending borrowers
by the Group’s employees. We understand that good customer service
is essential in maintaining long-term relationships with our customers.
The mission of our customer service emphasizes the provision of quality
services, effective communication and responsive solution. The interests
of our customers are placed at top priority.

Business Ethics

In order to build customer trust and loyalty, we have set out rules
to reduce the risk of employees leaking confidential information. For
instance, every employee is required to enter into a confidentiality
agreement which forbids him/her to disclose confidential or proprietary
information to parties outside the Group, either during or after
employment, without the Group’s authorization.
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EREH

MEREBME AEBTHEREEERE -
P92 151SO 9001 ~ ISO 14001 K& OHSAS
18001 RF W IR EHEERBEESE
FPhE BTHREPHMTR HMAEHKBIE
MR ETRIGTETEEFES -

BPESIE—BERMIEEEEE (LTS
—EFEEIREFBFERRENER) HBR &
B -ERBHUTHE ZfiNEESTH
BERBEE (BEAKEESREERFE =)
ARG PT R A IRTS) - YRCERRB AR ZE
REVER KPR E R ETTE -

o BEEEXRE ST MRRGEERTE
#oUNEHENwEENSESE  ERA
RENREHEEPOME - I TE W E
EFARRBEE RERIESHLER
BUEMBRTARBIRE - RIEREF
BAKE®NEL RASRETPORGEF -
MR A E B RS RERRIR - ARH
BRIETTE) M7 BN T R TR 3 -

AHEEBME  HMe/RELPEM—H—
HBRT - LR RUAEP B ROEFER
el - AKERESEAERMNMERARRE
EERBTE - RR SR IA RAE A2 RS R
o RARM RENEFPRGHERFER
FREHBEERER - BHAXPREHNE
R HEERYE ARABALERER
R ER - PR EP R mMEEN

B FIRT

REIEPEEREHRE  RMFCH EHEH
MAI - URE R B RBER T ER AR - flm -
BUREAARIREHZ  EFELER
ABAEERZNBA TN EAHBHELER
AREEINBALTHEREXEEER -



ENVIORNMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT %1% « 2R ERHRE

The confidentiality agreement specifies the content and scope of
confidentiality, obligations of the employees, and liability for the breach
of agreement. Disclosing or copying any of the Group’s trade secret
without the consent from management is strictly prohibited. If there are
any employees discovered of misappropriating customers’ private data,
the Group will dismiss the employees concerned and reserve the right to
legal proceedings.

We endeavor to protect the information system, prevent virus attack and
the leakage of clients’ information. Training relating to cyber security and
relevant risk management is provided to our employees to enhance the
employees’ awareness of cyber security.

Since our employees have access to personal data of the customers,
it is important for us to ensure the privacy of customers’ information.
The Group continues to monitor, review and, when necessary,
update its privacy principles and policies to ensure they are complying
with all relevant laws and regulations. During the Reporting Period,
the Group complied with all relevant law and regulations in relation
to data protection, including but not limited to the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance (“PDPQ”) and Intellectual Property (Miscellaneous
Amendments) Ordinance in Hong Kong. No confirmed non-compliance
incidents or grievances were noted by the Group.

Advertising

The Group recognizes the importance of compliance with regulatory
requirements. During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but
not limited to the Trade Description Ordinance in Hong Kong, which
constitutes a significant influence to the Group’s business.

The Group strictly complies with the advertising requirements. All kinds
of advertisements, such as leaflet or websites, are carefully drafted and
avoiding the use of false descriptions to mislead customers. Al final drafts
of the advertisement must be approved by our management before bulk
printing.

Moreover, we have designated employees to monitor notices, news
and information in the media in connection with tenders relating to
environmental hygiene services and airline catering support services
works to ensure that we strictly comply with local laws and regulations
regarding advertising and labelling.

During the Reporting Period, no confirmed non-compliance incidents or
grievances were noted by the Group.
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Trademark Management

We have registered trademarks which are important to our business. We
regularly monitor whether our trademarks are being infringed. We are
committed to protecting intellectual property rights which we handle with
great care during our daily operations.

Anti-corruption

We clearly understand that financial crime can have significant
consequences to our customers and us. Moreover, the community and
the economies in which we operate in can also be greatly impacted.
Therefore, we are committed to making efforts to address the issues of
corruption, bribery and money laundering.

We maintain and implement our own anti-bribery, anti-corruption and
anti-fraud practices and procedures. We do not support, nor tolerate,
any corrupt practices and making or receiving of bribery payments. We
have established a clear policy to guide our employees in this regard. In
addition, the employment contracts of our employees include the code
of conduct for them to follow. All employees are expected to discharge
their duties with integrity and self-discipline, and they should abstain from
engaging in bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering activities or
any activities which might exploit the Group’s or client’s interests.

Directors of the Company should declare in writing for any business
which he/she has any direct or indirect financial interest in, which
competes with the Group or the Group has business dealings with. The
Group will take disciplinary action against the employees who breach the
rules. The employees may also be subject to termination of employment.
Where criminality is suspected, a report will be made to the relevant
regulators or law enforcement authorities if necessary.

Whistle-blowers can report verbally or in writing to immediate supervisor
or Audit Committee members for any suspicious activities, including any
request, receipt or acceptance of any forms of benefits from any persons,
companies or organizations that may cause conflict of interest with the
Group, and misconducts which are related to bribery, extortion, fraud
and money-laundering. The whistle-blower’s identity remains anonymous
and is protected throughout the investigation; the whistle-blower should
also not be placed into any disadvantaged position in relation to the
employment.
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In particular to our money lending business, we perform due diligence
and Know-Your-Customer procedures on all customers before accepting
loan applications. Documents, including ID/passport, address proof,
etc., will be obtained before entering into business relationships with
our customers. The Group strictly follows the Anti-Money Laundering
and Counter-Terrorist Financing guideline issued by the Hong Kong
S.A.R. Licensed Money Lenders Association Limited to ascertain the
background of the customers, to identify suspicious money-laundering
behaviours, and to report any suspicious transactions. Under the
current practice, when it comes to the attention of the employees that a
customer may be involved in any money laundering activities, the case
will be reported to a member of senior management who will then decide
whether it should be reported to the Joint Financial Intelligence Unit.

During the Reporting Period, we complied with all relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on us, including, but not limited
to the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance in Hong Kong. There was no
corruption or bribery incident reported within the Group.

Community Investment

The Group believes that corporate social responsibility is the backbone
of corporate values, and continues to dedicate time and effort to give
back to the local community. For the ten consecutive years, we have
been named a “Caring Company” by The Hong Kong Council of Social
Service in recognition of our contributions to support community building,
environmental conservation, and people development.

During the Reporting Period, the Group supported several charities, such
as Fu Hong Society and Richmond Fellowship of Hong Kong by making
donations. Furthermore, our employees actively participate in community
services, growing a corporate culture of caring and respect. Our social
commitment and efforts made do not only help to make a difference to
the people in need, but also that also help to foster care and harmony
within the community.
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HKEX’S GUIDE TO THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BERXZMEBRE HEREBRERES

Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE—RIKRE i

Disclosed in this

ESG Report

EARE - HERER
BEFPWHEBEVE

Remarks

B

A. Environmental
A BE

Aspect A1: Emission
BEAT : PEr

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on

Environmental — Overview,
Emissions

RIR—BE - By

the issuer
—RRIREE
B
@ BX: &
(b)) BTFHETABERTENE@EEER
Rt
B & K
A1 The types of emissions and respective Emissions
emissions data 2347
HEm iR $A S B A HE B R
Al1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total Emissions — Data on
BERBEENE Greenhouse Gas Emission
Y- BB EREY
) B
A1.3 | Total hazardous waste produced Generation of Waste As the chemical or clinical hazardous
FTEAXABEREYES EAEEY waste generated from the operations
is minimal and immaterial, thus we
did not record the relevant data in the
Reporting Period.
HREEMEENLERBRES
BEEDRD MRS HANRML
BB EUE -
A1.4 | Total non-hazardous waste produced Generation of Waste
EFEEREEYES EHREREY
A1.5 | Description of measures to mitigate Emissions
emissions and results achieved 13587
HORRPE R E R b R FTIS R
A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non- Generation of Waste
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction | EE £ REEY)
initiatives and results achieved
HEEEERBEZEZEMNTE
BRE & 8 B8 i R PRISECR
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE—RIKEE it

Disclosed in this

ESG Report

EXRERE - HERER
BEPHHEBENCE

Remarks

i

Aspect A2: Use of resources

BEA2 : BB

General Disclosure

Policies on the efficient use of resources,
including energy, water and other raw materials.
—MEE

BERFERAER(BERER  KEREMERME)
BUER e

Use of Resources

BIRE

A21 Direct and/or indirect energy Use of Resources
consumption by type in total BEREFER
REREYHEER HHEEERR
=
A2.2 | Water consumption in total and intensity | Use of Resources — Water As the water bills for our head office in
BFEKENZE Usage Hong Kong are included in the estate
BIREE A — AKX maintenance fee and we are not able
to record the water usage on sites,
thus we are not able to collect and
disclose the relevant data.
HREFEBETEKRETAYE
HEED  RPIERBFISLHEAK
B ERMEANE RRBRAAZUE -
A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency Use of Resources — As the electricity bills for our Hong
initiatives and results achieved Electricity and Energy Kong head office are included in the
0l BE R B A ER s T B TS AR Usage estate maintenance fee, thus we are
BIRER—B N &R not able to collect and disclose the
1 A relevant data.
HRBMEBEITNEET AME
HEED - WBPIEERERIRE
TR BUE -
A2.4 | Description of whether there is any issue | Use of Resources — Water
in sourcing water that is fit for purpose, Usage
water efficiency initiatives and results BIRER—FK
achieved
SR EGE KR _E R A E R RE -
AR R TR s 5T 81 R PTG A R
A2.5 | Total packaging material used for Not applicable As we provide cleaning services and
finished products A3 financing services, the Group does
BRRFTAREMENES not produce any tangible products
that require packaging.
BRE MRS RS R &R -
BMASRET N EERNEERED
BWER -
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Disclosed in this

Aspects/General disclosures/Description ESG Report Remarks
EXRRE - HERER
BE—REE il BEPHEBENVE ok
A3: The environmental and natural resources
A3 IRIERRAER
General Disclosure Environmental
Policies on minimizing the issuer’s significant RIE
impact on the environment and natural resources.
— BRI
BMIRBITAHRBERARAAREREKNEAZEN
BUR ©
A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of Environmental
activities on the environment and natural | &%

resources and actions taken to manage

them

M EBEHHRERAAERNE
FERDHENEREESENTH

B. Social
B.#&

B1: Employment
B1: &%

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

Relating to compensation and dismissal,

recruitment and promotion, working hours,

rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-

discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.

— MR

EAF R RE  BERE  TERE - RE

FE#E Znll  RIBBAREMFBRE

A :

@ BX: &

) EBFHBETABERZENEBERER
R

&R

Employment and Labour
Practices
ERESTER

B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment
type, age group and geographical region
RIER - EREDR - FEAERI K= 2
DHE B R

Employment

&=

B1.2 | Employee turnover rate by gender, age
group and geographical region

BRI FRANRMERESHES
MK &

Employment

&=
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE—RIKEE it

Disclosed in this

ESG Report
EXRERE - HERER
BEPHHEBENCE

Remarks

i

B2: Health and Safety
B2 : ML R

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on
the issuer

Relating to providing a safe working environment

and protecting employees from occupational

hazards.

—RIKEE

BRRELZ2TERBERREREEE RBEN

EER

@ BE: R

b) BFHBTABERTZENHEBEZER
bRt

&

Health and Safety
fREEE S

B2.1 Number and rate of work-related
fatalities

ETEREREMILT M AR K

Health and Safety
ERELT R

B2.2 Lost days due to work injury Health and Safety
EIGELXIIEE [y

B2.3 | Description of occupational health and Health and Safety
safety measures adopted, how they are | 2 FEZ 2

implemented and monitored
B PTER AN R BRI R B 2 46 e
AN ABREIMIT R EER A

B3: Development and Training
B3 : & KIFH

General Disclosure

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

—MRIXER
BRRTEEBRITLIEBE N MB LRI
% o HMIEINES -

Development and Training
e R IF D

B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by | Development and Training Only the percentage of employees
gender and employee category R EEI trained by gender is disclosed.
RERNREERANEIS>NZIEER EEREBEREMNESOZIEER
e D e

B3.2 | The average training hours completed Development and Training Only the average training hours

per employee by gender and employee
category
mrURINRESERE D
B2 )1 6 T 15 B 2R

FHREE T

R LI

completed per employee by gender is
disclosed.
EERERUENE P NERER T
RE TR -
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE,—RKE it

Disclosed in this

ESG Report

EARE HERER
BEPHEBENVE

Remarks

i3

B4: Labour Standards
B4 : & T 4R

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have significant impact on
the issuer

Relating to preventing child and forced labour

—MRIXE

BEARIEE T kR 64 Th) -

@ BX: &

b) BTHETABEAFEMNEBELIZR
#2151

#E R

Labour Standards
& TR

B4.1 Description of measures to review
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

s IR E A AR RET
Ko 58185 T

Labour Standards
4T 8

B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate
such practices when discovered
HMERREZ R BN EREHEBR
PR ERER ) 25 B

Labour Standards
2 T AR

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 : fLEHEIR

General Disclosure

Policies on managing environmental and social
risks of the supply chain

—MRIREE
EEHEENIRE MG RRIKE

Supply Chain Management
HEEE R

B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical
region

iR e DA

Not disclosed

REEKE

B5.2 | Description of practices relating

to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being
implemented, how they are implemented
and monitored

B R R HERNED - mEHR
TEBEMNNHEREE  ULEH
BRI RITRER A

Supply Chain Management
e
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Disclosed in this

Aspects/General disclosures/Description ESG Report Remarks
EXRERE - HERER

BE,/ —RHEE il BEPHHEBENCE ok

B6: Product Responsibility
B6 : Emm A fE

General Disclosure Product Responsibility

Information on: EmEE

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer

Relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress

—RIKEE

BHMREEMNRENERELZS BS

BEIALBEEA BRI ER

@ BE: R
b) BFHBTABERTZENHEBEZER
bRt
BB R
B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or Not applicable As we provide cleaning services and
shipped subject to recalls for safety and A3 A financing services, we do not have
health reasons any physical products to sell.
E’ﬁiakkémﬁ@%{ﬂfﬂlﬁ {2 BRI /af‘%ﬂﬂ&i\“&mﬂéﬁﬁk
RIEHMALKRNE D RPN R AR ENERER °
B6.2 Number of products and service related Product Responsibility
complaints received and how they are EmAF
dealt with
RENEmMRIBHRFEE AR
& 77 0%
B6.3 | Description of practices relating to Product Responsibility
observing and protecting intellectual EmEf
property rights
e B RSB EEE AN
Al
B6.4 | Description of quality assurance process | Not applicable As we provide cleaning services and
and recall procedures TEMA financing services, we do not have
S SRERE REBBGE T any physical products to sell.
HREMREF RIS R &R -
RPN AR ENERER °
B6.5 | Description of consumer data protection | Product Responsibility
and privacy policies, how they are EmEE
implemented and monitored
faUH B EERRERILBBE - A
NMAABIT R ER A
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Aspects/General disclosures/Description

BE,—RKE it

Disclosed in this

ESG Report

EARE HERER
BEPHEBENVE

Remarks

i3

B7: Anti-corruption
B7: RES

General Disclosure

Information on:

(@ The policies; and

(b) Compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on

the issuer
Relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering
—RIXEE
BN ILFRES - B1R - WGEF A BN
@ BX: &
) EBFHETABERZENEBEREN
padl
& #

Anti-Corruption
RES

B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices brought
against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the
outcomes of the cases
RBmEHANBEETARHESREY
EEENESHARGNEE RFR

+
h

Anti-Corruption
k&S

B7.2 Description of preventive measures and
whistle-blowing procedures, how they
are implemented and monitored

B E R b M B AR T A N AE R
MITRERT A

Anti-Corruption
RES

B8: Community Investment
B8 : (tEIKE

General Disclosure

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests
—MEE

BN RBERTREEMELRTFEME
REXBKZDGERLENZNBE

Community Investment

HERE

B8.1 Focus areas of contribution Community Investment
HIXE RS HEREE

B8.2 | Resources contributed to the focus area | Community Investment
EETSHBEMBAEIR MHERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY B EH S

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

PPS INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of PPS
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”) set out on pages 92 to 195, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June 2018, and
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 30 June
2018 and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s responsibilities for
the audit of the consolidated financial statements” section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY B E

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

How the matter was addressed

The Key Audit Matter in our audit

FEENFEE)

FEENER AMEEEF AN &

Valuation and existence of loans and interest receivables
Refer to Notes 2.10(), 2.13, 2.14, 16, 27(a) and 35(c) of the audited consolidated financial

statements

The Group recognised loans and interest
receivables recorded initially at fair
value and subsequently at amortised
cost in the consolidated statement of
financial position. As at 30 June 2018,
the carrying amount of the loans and
interest receivables was approximately
HK$113,145,000.

The assessment of any impairment on
loans and interest receivables requires
estimates and significant judgement to be
applied by the management which means
that changes to key inputs in the estimates
and/or the judgements made can result in
a material change to the valuations on an
individual loan or in aggregate.

Further, because loans and interest
receivables are made up of a number of
individual loan balances, there is a risk that
net assets could be misstated should any
individual loans not exist.

Our audit procedures in this area included:

obtaining and reviewing the loan
agreements and agreeing the principal
amount, interest rates, maturity dates
and other information to the Group’s
accounting records;

testing controls designed and applied in
the process of approving and granting
loans, the subsequent monitoring
of repayment status and of any loan
extension;

recalculation of loan interest income
recognised;

obtaining direct confirmation of loan
balances from the borrowers; and

reviewing subsequent settlement
records and corroborating enquiries
with management about reasons for
not considering a provision against any
unsettled past-due balance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY B EH S

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon (the “other information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs
issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY B E

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

— ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BY B EH S

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

—  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 24 September 2018
Tong Wai Hang

Practising certificate number PO6231
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

A4S 32 For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZE_-Z— \FENA=1THILFE
% A Eﬁ% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (JA#T517R)

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 5 FERT FHET
Continuing operations BERSEER
Revenue Weas 3 319,851 270,224
Cost of services AR 75 R 2R (270,730) (240,102)
Gross profit E7 49,121 30,122
Other income, other gains and losses and  E AUz A ~ Efth i sk &2
impairments Es18 LA KORE 4 (3,945) (5,653)
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHMAT (2,416) (2,259)
Administrative expenses THRZ (38,772) (35,119)
Finance costs BhE AR 5(a) (6,753) (843)
Loss before taxation R AT ES 18 5 (2,765) (13,752)
Income tax expense FrBHiAx 6 (5,412) (1,854)
Loss for the year from continuing REBECEER
operations ZEANEE (8,177) (15,606)
Discontinued operations BRILEEEK
Profit for the year from discontinued REERIEREEK 2
operations F AE T 7 2,118
Loss for the year FRER (8,177) (13,488)
Attributable to: BUT AL B
— owners of the Company —ARNREAA (8,289) (13,386)
— non-controlling interests — IR 112 (102)
(8,177) (13,488)
(Loss)/earnings per share sR (58 BA 10
HK cents HK cents
Al AL
(Restated)
(&%)
From continuing and discontinued REFBERDRIEEEES
operations
— Basic and diluted —EAR R #E (5.44)
From continuing operations REFELEET
— Basic and diluted —HEARRH#E (6.32)
From discontinued operations KEBRIELEER
— Basic and diluted —EARR#E 0.88

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
neRRERkAMEEKRGER o orason i Hong Ko ol (A 51

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
[ihg=3 FHExT FHET
Loss for the year FREE (8,177) (13,488)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income, HM 2 (EiE) K
net of nil tax MBRERHIE
ltems that may be reclassified HEgnfeEM o BEEER
subsequently to profit or loss: 2B -
Exchange differences: MW R
- on translation of financial statements of ~—#E G INER 2 B HRE
foreign operations 203
- release upon disposal of discontinued ~ — R H & B4R 182 2 5
operations 7 BR 7 (884)
— release upon disposal of subsidiaries —FAHEHTE R R R 28(e) -
— release upon deregistration of —REUERERM B A AR
subsidiaries 7 bR 12 -
Total comprehensive loss for the year FAZHEIEHAEE (7,121) (14,169)
Attributable to: LR AL :
— owners of the Company —KRRNFIHEBA (7,233) (14,067)
— non-controlling interests — VAR AE 112 (102)
(7,121) (14,169)
Total comprehensive (loss)/income AKARER AEGEE
attributable to owners of the Company (B18) /WEsmEk s -
arises from:
— continuing operations —FELEE (7,233) (15,812)
— discontinued operations —BERIEEEER - 1,745
(7,233) (14,067)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEMIBIsF @A L 45 A M ERERO—2 5 °
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
%%Eﬁﬁ%ﬂﬁ;ﬂ% As at 30 June 2018 R=ZF— \FXxA=+H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 )

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
Notes HK$’°000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FHETT
Non-current assets kREBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - WEREE 11 4,916 9,505
Intangible assets mEE 12 92 1,172
Goodwil Bk 13 2,932 2,932
Restricted bank deposits ZRERITFER 17 1,378 10,843
9,318 24,452
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 426 142
Trade receivables =Y e QL] 14 61,730 49,841
Deposits, prepayments and other we Bl FEL
receivables o FE YR IE 15 5,901 6,288
Loans and interest receivables FEWE R F B 16 113,145 75,450
Restricted bank deposits Z PR HIERTTIER 17 11,601 2,105
Cash and cash equivalents HeRReEEY 17 117,491 52,932
310,294 186,758
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B 5 EMNFIE 18 10,872 14,880
Accruals, deposits received and EstER 2RSS
other payables T E i JE A SR IE 19 92,477 33,113
Convertible bonds AR E S 20 48,950 -
Obligations under finance leases BhE M E AR 21 297 428
Current tax payable BIVEA & < 7 18 23(a) 6,410 752
159,006 49173
Net current assets REBEEFE 151,288 137,585
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBAEE 160,606 162,037
Non-current liabilities FREBEE
Bond BE% 22 9,551 9,442
Obligations under finance leases BhE TR EAE 21 296 593
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIE B E 23(b) 326 577
10,173 10,612
NET ASSETS BEEFE 150,433 151,425
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

As at 30 June 2018 R=ZE—N\FA=1H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7515 )

e BRI R

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

2018

—E-N\F

Notes HK$’000

I3 FExT
26

26(a) 2,700

147,698

Total equity attributable to owners of

the Company
Non-controlling interests

ERBEE AEEERS

150,398
35

TOTAL EQUITY

150,433

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 24

September 2018:

Yu Shaoheng
Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

Lai Tin Ming

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FH T

2,700
148,802

151,502
(77)

151,425

R-ZZE—N\FhLhA-TNBEKEESHER

BT E

RAEZ
EBEF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

GREERBER

Notes
(iR

Share
capitel
[hus
HK$ 000
T

Attributable to owners of the Company
RAAEEAER

Exchange
reserve
ERGE
HK$ 000
TR
(note
260)v)
(Hst
26(0))

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #HZE —Z— \FNA=+tHILEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 )

Share Non-
option  Accumulated controling
reserve losses Total interests Total

BRERE  ZHER g FhREs st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK§'000

FiEn T T TR Tk
(note
26()vi)
fifst
26(0))

1,800

(600

At1 July 2016 RIB-AE
tA-A
Changes in equity “E-tEER
for 2017: 28
Loss for the year EMEE

Exchange differences: EAEE:
-ontranglation of fnancial R EEHEHK
statements of oreign LHBRE
operations
- release upon disposal of ~ ~RHERKHE
dscontinued operations ~~ ££EERE 70

208

(684

Total comprehensive loss for  FM2EEELE
the year

lssue of shares pursuantto — REARETRA

rights issue 26(a)i
Transaction costs forrights ~ #RZ A
issue 26a)(i

De-recogntion of non- HEBRIERE
controling interestupon B BUERR
disposal of discontinued ~ FEFERIEZ

900

(681)

900

(681)

operations Tle)
Releaseuponlapseand  REREXMREH
cancelation of share options 7% &5 %
At 30 June 2017 RIB-t&
~AZTH

2,700

(1,281)

6459 (19890 118683 e 118423
- 339 (133 (102 (13488
- - 203 - 203
- - (68) - (684
- (330 (14067 (10 (14169
- T - 4860
- - (1714 - (1,714
- - - 25 25
(6.459) 6,459 - - -
6459 690 32819 18 33002
- B8 151502 7 1514
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
%QE%—E@E% For the year ended 30 June 2018 ®HE_ZT— \FXA=1+HILEFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T 5157 )

Attributable to owners of the Company

FRRERARL
Convertible Non-
Share Share Other Contribution bonds  Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital  premium reserve surplus reserve reserve losses Total interests Total
TRRES
Bx  ROEE  EtRE  40EH R EiRk  RHEE fi  FERER @it
Notes HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKH000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKH000  HK$000
i3 TR TEn Tén Tén TR Tén Tihn Tén TEn Tén
(note (note (note (note (note
B)i) 260 B0 B))  26b)0)
(3 (s (Pya (Bt (3
2(b)(j) 260)i)  26()ii)  26b)iv) 26(b)(v))
At1 July 2017 RZE-tE
+A-H 154,500 21,400 (1281) (26817 151,502 151,425
Changes in equity RZ2-NE
for 2018: ERgE:
(Loss)iprofitfortheyear — EA(EE) /7 (8,289) (8,289)
Exchange oifferences: EXER:
-ontranglation of frencial  —BEESHER
statements of foreign LHBRE
operations
-release upon disposal of -~ ENELA
subsidiaries 5330 28(e)

- release upon deregistration  —REERANE

of subsidiaries

NARER

Total comprehensive income/ A2 R 4E/

(loss) for the year (E8) (8,289) (7,239)
lssue of convertble bonds BT B 20 6,233 6,233
Transaction costs for ARRERR SN
convertible bonds 20 (104) (104)
1,056 (8,289) (1,104) (992)
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NE
~BZtA 2,700 154,500 (225) (35,106) 150,398 150,433
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated — BEMIH T iER It S5 S B IBMEN —Z 5 o

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

AL o~ —]1 For the year ended 30 June 2018 HZE_—Z— \FE XA=Z+HILFE
2 N = }Eﬁ)}lbiﬂ% (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T57R)

2018 2017
—E2-N\EF Tt
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B &E FET FHEIT
Operating activities KR E
Loss before taxation: BRI AT ESE -
— From continuing operations —RERBELEERS (2,765) (13,752)
— From discontinued operations —REERIEEEETE = (5,085)
Adjustments for: FEATEIE -
— Interest income from money lending —EER 2 FBUWA 3 (18,592) (3,828)
- Bank interest income —R1TH BURA (62) (74)
— Impairment losses on deposits and —R& R EAMERFIERE
other receivables E5ia 4 6,366
— Impairment losses on goodwill —EEREEE 3,763
— Impairment losses on intangible assets ~ — & 2 & E R E &5 1B 4 -
- Loss on disposal of property, plantand  —HEME - BE MREZ
equipment, net E51BF 5 13
— Net realised and unrealised gains on —RAVEFAER ISR
financial assets at fair value through EEZEERLAEE
profit or loss Wz 55 4 (489)
— Finance costs — B & R AN 940
— Amortisation of intangible assets —E A 5(0) 111
— Depreciation of property, plant and —ME - BEMEETE
equipment 3,580
— Loss on disposal of subsidiaries —HEWENFERDRIELK
not classified as discontinued BEBIMBRARZE
operations B 5(c) 1,203 -
— Write-off of property, plant and — % - BB MR A
equipment 5(c) 197 13
— Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss —HNE (Wzs) /B 1BFE (196) 218
Operating loss before changes in EEESBB A KEEHE
working capital (3,905) (8,194)
Increase in inventories FEEm (283) (79)
Increase in trade receivables 2 5 e IR N (12,548) (5,807)
Decrease in deposits, prepayments and &% ~ T8/ FUB K& H th fE YR
other receivables TE Rk 374 7,169
Increase in loans and interest receivables & UL & 3k & | 218 hn (37,695) (75,000)
Decrease in financial assets at fair value 2 AP EFABRZZ ¢ rREE
through profit or loss L = 18,943
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables Z S EMFIECRL) (4,000) 2,654
Increase/(decrease) in accruals, deposits  [EFTE A « BEiZ e K EfbfE
received and other payables RERIER I, CRA) 60,056 (3,728)
Decrease in deferred revenue Bz D = (1,793)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KESTEREL(FTA)
operations REeRHE (65,845)
Interest received from money lending ERREEBL 2 FIE 3,378
Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded, net BEENEREDFE 225
Net cash generated from/(used in) BESEETES, (FrA)
operating activities Be&3E (62,242)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

" _\éiﬁﬁﬁiﬂ%

For the year ended 30 June 2018 #Z —-=

—\FXA=1+HILFE
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T 5157 )

2018 2017
—E-N\F Tt
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET FHET
Investing activities REEH
Interest received 2R S 62 74
Increase in restricted bank deposits PR HIERTT A BIE AN (31) (5,807)
Payment for purchase of property, plant BB E Y% - BE MR EZ MR
and equipment 18 (4,479) (4,946)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant £ & %% « HE &R EFTER
and equipment 17 320 12
Net cash inflow from disposal of HEDBRIELCEEK 2BER
discontinued operations A FE 7(9) 30,813
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from disposal of HE&MB AR ZEE (Rt)
subsidiaries MA T 28(f) () 2,783
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE(FTA) FEE
investing activities REFHE (4,133) 22,929
Financing activities AEEE
Proceeds from issue of convertible bonds 2577 A] #2 A% (& 5 15 2B 20 50,000 -
Transaction costs for convertible bonds ~ AJ R {E %32 5 Ak 2K 20 (836) -
Capital element of finance lease rentals BENBERAERENERIHD
paid (428) (516)
Interest element of finance lease rentals BN EVEHEH & T B35
paid (29) (43)
Interest paid BAFIE (700) (797)
Proceeds from issue of shares pursuant AR IR TR (D AT 15 K78
to rights issue 26(a)(iii) 48,600
Transaction costs for rights issue HAE 2 5 AR 26(a)(ii) (1,714)
Proceeds from obligations under finance &4 & T & & EAT1S A
leases 708
Repayment of borrowings EEEX (2,610)
Net cash generated from financing METBHMELERESFE
activities 43,628
Net increase in cash and cash RekReEEYEMFE
equivalents 4,315
Cash and cash equivalents at REINEESRBESZEY
beginning of the year 48,747
Effect of foreign exchange rate IEEESENWLE
changes (130)
Cash and cash equivalents atend of RERNEERBEELEEY
the year 117,491 52,932
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated ~ B&MI M s AR Lt B4R & B IMK A — &5 -

financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

1

COMPANY INFORMATION

PPS International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) is an
exempted company with limited liability incorporated and domiciled
in the Cayman Islands on 31 May 2012 and its shares are listed
on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) since 17 June 2013.

The Company has its registered office and principal place of
business at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand
Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman lIslands and 24/F., SUP Tower, 75 — 83
King’s Road, North Point, Hong Kong, respectively.

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 32.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2018
comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”).

The consolidated financial statements are presented in thousands
of units of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000") unless otherwise stated.
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$") is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group’s presentation currency.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
2.1 Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These consolidated
financial statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by
the Group is set out below.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.2

2.3

Basis of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements is the historical cost basis
except that the financial instruments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are stated at fair value
(see note 2.6).

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the
application of policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities
that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results
may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 35.

Changes in accounting policies

The HKICPA has issued a number of amendments to HKFRSs
that are first effective for the current accounting period of
the Group. None of these developments have had a material
effect on how the Group’s results and financial position for the
current or prior periods have been prepared or presented.

The Group has not applied any new standard or interpretation
that is not yet effective for the current accounting period (see
note 36).

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ESiHE (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.4 Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

24 MEBARAIRFEERER

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances and transactions and any unrealised profits arising
from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the
same way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there
is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the owners of the Company. Non-
controlling interests in the results of the Group are presented
on the face of the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit or
loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see
note 2.10(ii).

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of:

() the aggregate of the fair value of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s previously
held interest in the acquire; over

(i)  the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities measured at the acquisition date.

When (ii) is greater than (i), then its excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a gain on a bargain purchase.

Non-controlling interests may be initially measured either at fair
value or at the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share
of the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The
choice of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-
transaction basis.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
Goodwill arising on a business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash-generating units, that
is expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination
and is tested annually for impairment (see note 2.10(ji)).

On disposal of a cash-generating unit during the year, any
attributable amount of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Investments in equity securities held-for-trading are classified
as current assets. Any attributable transaction costs are
recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At the end of each
reporting period the fair value is remeasured, with any resultant
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss.

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the
Group commits to purchase/sell the investments or they
expire.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ESiHE (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.7 Property, plant and equipment

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

2.7 % BERRZRE

Items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses (see note
2.10(ii)).

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of
property, plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight line method over their estimated
useful lives as follows:

Furniture and fixtures 2 to 7 years
Equipment and machinery 210 7 years
Motor vehicles 4 years

Computer equipment 3to 4 years

Leasehold improvement Over the term of lease
Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of the item is allocated
on a reasonable basis between the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Both the useful life of an asset and its
residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an
item of property, plant and equipment are determined as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item and are recognised in profit or loss on the
date of retirement or disposal.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TFE2iHRE(H)
(CONTINUED)

2.8 Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

28 BREE (HEKRM)

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated
at cost less accumulated amortisation (where the estimated
useful life is finite) and impairment losses (see note 2.10(ii)).
Expenditure on internally generated goodwill and brands is
recognised as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is
charged to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
estimated useful lives. The following intangible assets with finite
useful lives are amortised from the date when they are available
for use and their estimated useful lives are as follows:

Customer relationship 5 years
Contract backlog 3 years

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed
annually.

Intangible assets, including money lender license, are not
amortised while their useful lives are assessed to be indefinite.
Any conclusion that the useful life of an intangible asset is
indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events
and circumstances continue to support the indefinite useful
life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the
useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in accordance with
the policy for amortisation of intangible assets with finite lives
as set out above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines
that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset
or assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment
or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based
on an evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

@

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under
finance leases, the amounts representing the fair value
of the leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments, of such assets are included
in property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost of the assets over the
term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the Group
will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the asset,
as set out in note 2.7. Impairment losses are accounted
for in accordance with the accounting policy as set out
in note 2.10(ii). Finance charges implicit in the lease
payments are charged to profit or loss over the period of
the leases so as to produce an approximately constant
periodic rate of charge on the remaining balance of the
obligations for each accounting period. Contingent rentals
are charged to profit or loss in the accounting period in
which they are incurred.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.9 Leased assets (continued)

(iij) Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in the profit
or loss as an integral part of the aggregate net lease
payments made. Contingent rentals are charged to
profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

2.10 Impairment of assets

(i)

Impairment of financial assets

Investments in financial assets that are stated at cost or
amortised cost are reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there is objective evidence
of impairment. Objective evidence of impairment includes
observable data that comes to the attention of the Group
about one or more of the following loss events:

— significant financial difficulty of the debtor or
borrower;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

- the Group, for economic or legal reasons relating
to the borrower’s financial difficulty, granting to the
borrower a concession that the lender would not
otherwise consider;

— it becoming probable that the debtor or borrower will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

- significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an adverse
effect on the debtor or borrower; and

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 FEZ:EZE(HE)
(CONTINUED)
2.10 Impairment of assets (continued) 2105 E R E (&)

() THEEREH)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

—  Observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows
from a portfolio of financial assets since the initial
recognition of those assets, although the decrease
cannot yet be identified with the individual financial
assets in the portfolio, including:

(1) adverse changes in the payment status of
borrowers in the portfolio; and

(2) national or local economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on the assets in the
portfolio.

If any such evidence exists, the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original effective
interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition of these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This assessment is made
collectively where these financial assets share similar
risk characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and have not been individually assessed as impaired.
Future cash flows for financial assets which are assessed
for impairment collectively are based on historical loss
experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an impairment
loss decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively
to an event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised, the impairment loss is reversed through profit
or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in
the asset’s carrying amount exceeding that which would
have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of assets (continued)

0]

(i)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Impairment losses are written off against the
corresponding assets directly, except for impairment
losses recognised in respect of trade receivables,
and loans and interest receivables whose recovery is
considered doubtful but not remote. In this case, the
impairment losses for doubtful debts are recorded using
an allowance account. When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount considered irrecoverable
is written off against these financial assets directly and
any amounts held in the allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance account. Other changes
in the allowance account and subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off directly are recognised in
profit or loss.

Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period to identify indications
that the following assets may be impaired or, except
in the case of goodwill, an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased:

- property, plant and equipment;

- intangible assets;

- goodwill; and

— investments in subsidiaries in the Company’s
statement of financial position.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of assets (continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets (continued)

If any such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. In addition, for goodwill and
intangible assets that have indefinite useful lives, the
recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

—  Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater
of its fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent
of those from other assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generates cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-
generating unit).

—  Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss
if the carrying amount of an asset, or the cash-
generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment losses recognised
in respect of cash-generating units are allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating unit (or group of
units) and then, to reduce the carrying amount of the
other assets in the unit (or group of units) on a pro
rata basis, except that the carrying value of an asset
will not be reduced below its individual fair value less
costs of disposal (if measurable) or value in use (if
determinable).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TFE2iHRE(H)
(CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

2.10 Impairment of assets (continued) 2105 E R E (&)
(i) Impairment of other assets (continued) (i) EMEERE (&)
- Reversals of impairment losses —  JRIEEIERED]
In respect of assets other than goodwill, an MEE(HERIINME -
impairment loss is reversed if there has been fil AEEE AU Bl & 58 /)

a favourable change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount. An impairment
loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the
asset’s carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised
in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses are
credited to profit or loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

2.11 Inventories

Inventories, which represent consumable goods, are stated at
the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted average cost formula
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and
other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present
location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less the estimated costs of completion and
the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the related revenue is recognised. The amount of any write-
down of inventories to net realisable value and all losses of
inventories are recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal of any
write-down of inventories is recognised as a reduction in the
amount of inventories recognised as an expense in the period
in which the reversal occurs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M{I‘E‘I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ESiHE (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.12 Trade and other receivables

212E 5 R E i EWRKIE

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair
value and thereafter stated at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see note 2.10(j)), except where the receivables
are interest-free loans made to related parties without any
fixed repayment terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost
less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts.

2.13 Loans receivable

Loans receivable are loans granted to customers in the
ordinary course of business. If collection of loans receivable
is expected in one year or less, they are classified as current
assets, or if not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Loans receivable are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment (see note 2.10())).

2.14 Interest receivables

Interest receivables are interests derived from loans granted
to borrowers in the ordinary course of business. If collection
of interest receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-
current assets.

Interest receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment (see note 2.10()).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TFE2iHRE(H)
(CONTINUED)

2.15 Convertible bonds

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

215 R E %

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holder, where the number of shares
that would be issued on conversion and the value of the
consideration that would be received at that time do not vary,
are accounted for as compound financial instruments which
contain both a liability component and an equity component.

At initial recognition the liability component of the convertible
bonds is measured as the present value of the future interest
and principal payments, discounted at the market rate of
interest applicable at the time of initial recognition to similar
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. Any excess
of proceeds over the amount initially recognised as the
liability component is recognised as the equity component.
Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a compound
financial instrument are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to the allocation of proceeds.

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost. The interest expense recognised in profit or loss on the
liability component is calculated using the effective interest
method. The equity component is recognised in the convertible
bonds reserve until either the note is converted or redeemed.

If the convertible bonds are converted, the convertible bonds
reserve, together with the carrying amount of the liability
component at the time of conversion, is transferred to share
capital and share premium as consideration for the shares
issued. If the convertible bonds are redeemed, the convertible
bonds reserve is released directly to accumulated losses.

2.16 Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised initially at fair
value less attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between the amount initially
recognised and redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective interest method.

HR BB TEITOROEE &
#FREBWHKEEEERITESE
AR A NEBEE R AK A&
BESFZESMAABRN RERA
MOMEEERITEAIIR -

RINBERE - AIRRESFNAE
B ThEt BAERKFE RAS MK
MIRME - IR WA FER R E AR
W EEHREERNFABREZTS
MRAEIR - PIISFKIAR N FHER
RBERRD TR BUE AR D D iR
REAEBD - BARBETESESHT
BENRZRATIIRFAEFRASBCLL
PIEC E B E KA -

BEDERIZEHK AT - 5
B E R 105 F k5 1R M SR A A B
FXTIABBRME AT E - lRAE
MIERNRAIRBESHE BEE
EFEERAER QL

i Al AR B i - AR RAE
FiEmERNESRENBENRMERER
EeBEEMARBMRE  FR
P37 B D OB - fin AT IR AR E 55
EER ATBRERESFBSER
BARFER

2.16fff B & =K

Bt B SRR HE 14 B LA X (B R B 1
RGEATER - NI AR % - KT
BE B A S SR AN BR - T VA R
REeFERBEREBE M2 EME=5E -
ERITMNEMHMERER KAE
BRARAEANERPARNEBREER
PR e

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.17 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value, having been within three
months of maturity at acquisition.

2.19 Deferred revenue

Deferred revenue represents contractual billings/amount due in
excess of recognised revenue resulting from services yet to be
rendered or in respect of the unexpired terms of the relevant
contracts/arrangements, or for which the applicable revenue
recognition criteria are not yet satisfied. Revenue is recognised
and deferred revenue is released to profit or loss when the
relevant services are rendered or on a time proportion basis
over the terms of the relevant contracts/arrangements, or when
the applicable revenue recognition criteria are satisfied.

2.20 Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual leave, contributions
to defined contribution retirement plans and the cost of
non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by employees.
Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are stated at their
present values.

The Group operates a mandatory provident fund scheme
in Hong Kong and defined contribution government
pension schemes in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

0]

(i)

Short term employee benefits and contributions to
defined contribution retirement plans (continued)

Contributions to mandatory provident fund as required
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance, are recognised as an expense in
profit or loss as incurred.

The employees in the PRC are members of the retirement
benefit scheme organised by the government in the PRC.
The Group is required to contribute, based on a certain
percentage of payroll, to the retirement benefit scheme to
fund the benefits. The only obligation of the Group with
respect to the retirement benefit scheme is to make the
required contributions under the scheme. Contributions
to this retirement benefit scheme are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss as incurred except to the extent
that they are included in the cost of inventories at the end
of the reporting period.

Long service payments payable on cessation of
employment

The Group’s net obligation in respect of the long service
payment payable on cessation of employment in certain
circumstances under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance is the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned in return for their service in the current
and prior periods. The obligation is calculated using the
projected unit credit method, discounted to its present
value and reduced by entitlements accrued under
the Group’s retirement plans that are attributable to
contributions made by the Group.

Past service cost is recognised immediately to the extent
that the benefits have already been vested.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

2 FESTHEEE)

220 EEER ()

(i)

(i)

JEH B S 75 7 R B #F 1 1R
it & (&)

RIBEF LR RTES S &
PIMEmRBIEAEEELZ
HFAREEREBET AR
A

RABEZEESTEBMAME
WRKRBHEE 2K E - N&E
BAERHEZETED AR
RIE T BIEH #5K - BEF
RHUES - AKEARERIKE
MEr 8z E—EERRIEE
TE P& 3K o M@ LR IR AR A
AEFR Z BN ELERER
SmPERRFAX - EAREE
HREFAAFEXNLAERR -

AL 1R b5 BT 2 R AR %
&

AEERBEERBHRIES
THRATRELEEREEMNZ
EURBE22ETFEREER
PR B Ko 3 1 HA Tt 1R 5 AR
BEREERE BRI KRR A &
Ze® - BHEEETRBEM
EEAFE BRREERER
MEREERAKTETEEE
R - B BN AN R
oz RS -

38 1 R 75 P A BB 3
M= TS

:2ES

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M{I‘E‘I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ESiHE (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.20 Employee benefits (continued)

220EEER ()

(iij) Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding
increase in share option reserve within equity.

The Company operates a share option scheme under
which the Group receives services or goods from its
directors, employees and other eligible participants as
consideration for share options of the Company. The
fair value is measured at grant date using the Trinomial
Option Pricing model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted.

The equity amount is recognised in the share option
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is
transferred to the share premium account) or the option
expires (when it is released directly to accumulated
losses).

2.21 Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities. Current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised
in profit or loss except to the extent that they relate to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
in which case the relevant amounts of tax are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period, and any adjustment to tax
payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible
and taxable temporary differences respectively, being the
differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their tax bases.
Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and
unused tax credits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TFE2iHRE(H)
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Income tax (continued)

221 5% ()

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabilities,
and all deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that
future taxable profits will be available against which the asset
can be utilised, are recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from
deductible temporary differences include those that will arise
from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority
and the same taxable entity, and are expected to reverse either
in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible
temporary difference or in periods into which a tax loss arising
from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward.
The same criteria are adopted when determining whether
existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax losses and
credits, that is, those differences are taken into account if they
relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a period, or periods, in
which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and
liabilities are those temporary differences arising from goodwill
not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets
or liabilities that affect neither accounting nor taxable profit
(provided they are not part of a business combination), and
temporary differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to
the extent that, in the case of taxable differences, the Group
controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future, or in the
case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they
will reverse in the future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on
the expected manner of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ESiHE (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.21 Income tax (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and is reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be

available to allow the related tax benefit to be utilised. Any such A BIFDREE R TE B E R BRE
reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable BE-HRHEUERERAER G
that sufficient taxable profits will be available. FLAIEHN - R B PTHIR R 858 o

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of I B 5 IR E AR EINTIS TR
dividends are recognised when the liability to pay the related EFER B m B EERERR T AR °
dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and
movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against
current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets against deferred
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities

0]

Financial guarantees issued

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the
issuer (i.e. the guarantor) to make specified payments to
reimburse the beneficiary of the guarantee (the “holder”)
for a loss the holder incurs because a specified debtor
fails to make payment when due in accordance with the
terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee, the fair
value of the guarantee is initially recognised as deferred
revenue within trade and other payables. The fair value
of financial guarantees issued at the time of issuance
is determined by reference to fees charged in an arm’s
length transaction for similar services, when such
information is obtainable, or is otherwise estimated by
reference to interest rate differentials, by comparing the
actual rates charged by lenders when the guarantee
is made available with the estimated rates that lenders
would have charged, had the guarantees not been
available, where reliable estimates of such information can
be made. Where consideration is received or receivable
for the issuance of the guarantee, the consideration
is recognised in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no such
consideration is received or receivable, an immediate
expense is recognised in profit or loss on initial recognition
of any deferred revenue.

The amount of the guarantee initially recognised as
deferred income is amortised in profit or loss over
the term of the guarantee as income from financial
guarantees issued. In addition, provisions are recognised
in accordance with note 2.22(ii) if and when (i) it becomes
probable that the holder of the guarantee will call upon
the Group under the guarantee, and (i) the amount of that
claim on the Group is expected to exceed the amount
currently carried in trade and other payables in respect
of that guarantee i.e. the amount initially recognised, less
accumulated amortisation.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.22 Financial guarantees issued, provisions and
contingent liabilities (continued)

(i) Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group or the Company has a
legal or constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more future events are also
disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

2.23 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Provided it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably, revenue is
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

(i) Provision of environmental cleaning and car beauty
services

Service income received or receivable from customers
when the environment cleaning service contracts or car
beauty packages, which relates to routine environmental
and cleaning services and auto beauty services, are
entered into, which is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the term of the service contract as the work
is performed. Receipts in respect of service income for
which the relevant services have not been rendered
are deferred and recognised as deferred revenue in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.23 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Provision of property management services

Revenue from the provision of property management
services are recognised when the services have been
rendered to customers. Receipts in respect of the building
management income for which the relevant services
have not been rendered are deferred and recognised
as deferred revenue in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. When a loan and interest
receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying
amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective
interest rate of the instrument, and continues unwinding
the discount as interest income. Interest income on
impaired loan and receivables are recognised using the
original effective interest rate.

Dividend income

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised
when the share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

2 FESTHEEE)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 ESiHE (&)
(CONTINUED)

2.24 Translation of foreign currencies

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

2249 E

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling
at the transaction dates. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies that are stated at fair value
are translated using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
dates the fair value was measured.

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates approximating the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items, including goodwill and
any fair value adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities arising on the acquisition of foreign operations
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of the reporting period.
The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of
the exchange differences relating to that foreign operation is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss when the profit or loss
on disposal is recognised.

2.25 Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of an asset which necessarily takes
a substantive period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 2 TFE2iHRE(H)
(CONTINUED)

2.26 Discontinued operation

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

2260 R ILIEEET

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group’s
business, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and which
represents a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is part of a single coordinated plan to
dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical
area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with
a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon disposal
or when the operation meets the criteria to be classified as held
for sale, if earlier. It also occurs if the operation is abandoned.

EREREXBRARERT 2 —
By HEEMRSRAUEAEHE
Hih kB EERD  BRKR—IAR
XS RE DB LTEER
FIERHE—RREBIMRE D
ZBUEBEXRBZE—RETE—

o EA-EEEREENKRE
ZHB AT e

2 7 o 4 ST B M TR
B2 ER (MR BISEAEK
I 1 A e R F

BHEesBRERIEREER -

Where an operation is classified as discontinued, a single G EB ORI RBEKILLE 8

amount is presented on the face of the consolidated statement ERERAERRIEE —EEEY

of profit or loss, which comprises: EFREE

- the post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued operation; — B % EB 2 RTERT
and e 18

- the post-tax gain or loss recognised on the measurement — BERERIEKEEB L EE
to fair value less costs to sell, or on the disposal, of the S EMAE  FrEAFERE
assets or disposal group(s) constituting the discontinued ERAH AL ERER 2R
operation. BB o

2.27 Related parties 227
() A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is () MMEBATAL  BIZZALHZ

related to the Group if that person: AT 2 i #7 AN£ [B 5 B -

(1) has control or joint control of the Group; (1) BesmIEHlsk L AR HIAR S
(2) has significant influence over the Group; or 2)

WEAEE B INEKRT

I R
}é

(3) is a member of the key management personnel of Q) AXEEFIAEETAF
the Group or the Group’s parent. MNEEERERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.27 Related parties (continued)

(i) An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(1)  The entity and the Group are members of the same
group (which means that each parent, subsidiary
and fellow subsidiary is related to the others).

(2) One entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member).

(8) Both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party.

(4) One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(6) The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group.

(6) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (i).

(7) A person identified in (i)(1) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(8) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services
to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

2.28 Segment reporting

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

2 FESTHEEE)

22870 E ik &

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the consolidated financial statements, are identified
from the financial information provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the purposes of
allocating resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated
for financial reporting purposes unless the segments have
similar economic characteristics and are similar in respect
of the nature of products and services, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute the products
or provide the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are not individually
material may be aggregated if they share a majority of these
criteria.

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING

(a) Revenue

Revenue represents the services supplied to customers from
the provision of environmental and cleaning services and
interest income earned from the money lending business, as
follows:

REDWMREAHHREARSE S
DEHERBZEE  ITRARAKE
TESRTREEEEMRER—R A
FRAKRESEEL MO EE
R WRHEERBZ M ER -

EREXRZEEN TG RTBER
SEWMAR BRIEEHEOHER
BURERTE YEAFRUZE
m KRS IHE - BB SRER
DHEMMKIEFRRB TR AKRE
BREME - @R FFERZEZLD
BT & L KZBCERIR] T &5

3 WEKkDBEHEE

(a)

Wy

Woat 55 8 B 1R IR 15 MBS R IR TS (A
B PR MR A B A 7% IR O
MEWAIT

2018 2017
—E-N\F —_ET—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Continuing operations BESEER

Service income from environmental RIENBA 2 R
and cleaning 301,259 266,396
Interest income from money lending B 2 M E M A 18,592 3,828
319,851 270,224
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEEDH:HKE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

(b) 7 EBEE

The Group determines its operating segments based on the
reports reviewed by the chief operating decision maker, which
are used to make strategic decisions including resources
allocation and assessment of segment performance.

The segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and services and requires different business
strategies. No operating segments identified by the chief operating
decision-maker have been aggregated in arriving at the reportable
segments of the Group. The following summary describes the
operations in each of the Group’s reportable segments:

Continuing operations

Environmental and Provision of environmental and
cleaning cleaning services in Hong Kong
and the PRC

Provision of money lending business
in Hong Kong under the Money
Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163
of the Laws of Hong Kong)

Money lending

Investments Investments in financial assets

Discontinued operations

Auto beauty Provision of car beauty services in
Hong Kong

Management services  Provision of property and car park
management services in the PRC

The chief operating decision maker assess the performance
of the operating segments based on a measure of reportable
segment results. This measurement basis excludes central
administrative and other costs including directors’ emolument,
impairment loss on other receivables, other operating expenses
and finance costs.

Segment assets mainly exclude corporate assets, property,
plant and equipment and cash and cash equivalents that are
managed on a central basis. Goodwill and intangible assets are
allocated to reportable segments.

Segment liabilities mainly exclude corporate liabilities, bond
and convertible bonds.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%é,ﬁ\j i% ﬁ% WEI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WmkoM®E (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEFHE (E)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities () #EEE BEREE
2018
E-0E
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RRBERE BRIEEER
Environmental Money Auto  Management
and cleaning  Investments lending beauty services Sub-total  Unallocated Total

BERER R& it RS ERRH At K48 it
HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HK§'000 HKS 000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Thn Tin Tin Tin

Reportable segment revenue from REAFRFHTHE
external customers s 301,259

Reportable segment profit/ TREMBRA/
(loss) (E8) 11,195

Unallocated corporate expense  £2BLERX
Other income, other gains and EfA - £z

losses and impaiments REBINREE
Central adminisrafive costs RATHRA
Finance costs BENE
Loss before taxation REnER

Other segment information A BER

Amortisation of ntangble assets B EEEH 111
Depreciation of property, plntend 1%~ FE RS E

equipment 2418
Impaiment osses on intangble assets £/ AE R EEE 969
Netlossondlisposalof propery, &% - BERRG

plant and equipment LEREFE
Wirte-offof property, plant and nE BERRERE

equipment

EHERBERAR Gk 2018 e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued)

(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEEDH:HKE (&)

(b) 7 EBEHE ()
() ZEF&E BEREE(HE)

2017
IEtE
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
ot e BEIEESH
Environmental Money Ao Management
and cleaning Investments lending heauty Senvices Sub-total Unallocated Total
REREZ K& M FEXR EARE At AR i
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Fin Tén Fin Tén Fin Fin TEn Tin
Reportable segment revenue from REHNFRFHTHE
external customers ABlE 266,3% - 3828 3122 8,658 282,004 - 282,004
Reportable segment profit/ TREAPEA/
(loss) (B8 6,926 354 3,349 (1,075) (3980 5974 - 5974
Unallocated corporate expense A2 E A EEX
Other income, other gains and A - £tk
losses and impaimnents REENREE (6:353)
Central administrafive costs RATHAE (t7.221)
Finance costs BERL (601)
Loss before taxation REAER (18.807)
Other segment information At BER
Amortisation o ntengble assets ~ EF/AEEH 111 - - - - 111 - 111
Depreciation of property, plantand 1% BERREE
equipment 3070 - - 124 208 3402 178 3,580
Impaiment losses on goodil AEREER - - - - 3763 3,763 - 3763
Impaiment losses ondepositsand &% R E tENGA
other reoeivables WEER - - - - - - 6,366 6,366
Net reaised and unrealised gans on -~ RAFEFABEZ 28
financial assets at fair value EEJEERRARR
through proft or loss WaEEE - (489) - - - (489) - (489)
Netloss/(gain) on disposal of property, HE%1% - BE R
plant and equipment BB/ (ha) 58 15 - - 9 - 2% (t) 13
Wirte-offof property, plant and VER T E T
equipment 13 - - - - 13 - 13

PPS International (Holdings) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% WEI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WmkoM®E (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DEHRE (&)
(i) Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued) () #EEE BEEREE(H)
2018
“5-)N\E
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
BELEER BALEEER
Environmental Money Auto  Management
and cleaning  Investments lending beauty services Total
REREZ kg HE REZE EERH% st

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn TiEn

Assets BE

Segment assets HHEE 1143816 237,511

Unallocated comporate assets A AT EEE 82,101
319,612

Liabilities L

Segment liabilties HHEE (45,249) (48,589)

Unallocated corporate liabilties  ® AR G2 EE (120,596

(169,179)

Other segment information ~ EftAHEH
Addtions to segment FEABETDEE
non-current assets

2017
It a3
Continuing operations Discontinued operations
RENERH BEIHEERH
Environmental Money Auto Management
and g\e@ning Investments Iengiing \ beauty services Total
RERER k& e HEER BRRH h

HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK§'000
TEL TEL TiEL TiEL TiEL TiEL

Assets EE

Segment assefs NEE 102,805 172 76,586 - - 179,563

Unallocated comporate assets A AENEEE 31,647
211,210

Liabilities B

Segment liabities HB&E {47.577) ) (609) - - (48,199)

Unallocated corporate liabilfies KA EEE (11,593)
(69,785)

Other segment information ~ &7 FEH

Addtions to segment TR dERYEE

non-current assets 1,585 - - 83 5 1,673
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂj i% ﬁ% M{l-EI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

3 REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 3 WHEEDH:HKE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Segment reporting (continued) (b) DS (F)
(i) Geographical information and major customers (i) HEEXREEEF
The following table sets out information about the TR & AR () A =B k8 b
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue from BHEPzWam ki) NEE 2D
external customers and (i) the Group’s property, plant ¥ BMELRE BFEER
and equipment, intangible assets and goodwill (“specified mE(ETEHERBEE] T
non-current assets”). The geographical location of the HEER - IBEFRDEE
specified non-current assets is based on the physical P 72 1b [ 12 & 2= B BR PR 0 2h
location of the assets, in case of property, plant and (- BEELZENS)
equipment, and the location of the operation to which UREBAEME (RERE
they are allocated, in case of intangible assets and ERmEmMS)E D -
goodwill.
Revenue from Specified non-current
external customers assets
REMBEE Z W= EEFRRBEE
2018 2017 2018 2017

—E-N\F ZE—+F ZEBE-NF —ZT—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHETT

Hong Kong 58 Pl 265,002 10,139
The PRC H 28,326 17,002 3,470
319,851 282,004 13,609
Revenue from major customers, each of whom accounted RKEZTEREFPHNNE (58
for 10% or more of the total revenue, is set out below: 42U 25 10% 35 LA ) & 71 40
™
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHETT
Customer A EFEA 47,528
Customer B ®FB 30,864
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

4 OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 4 HftliA HWaREBEBEUR

AND IMPAIRMENTS B
2018 2017
—Z2-N\F —ZE—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Other income Haug A
Continuing operations FEREEL
Bank interest income H|ITHEHA 63
Sundry income FEIFUA 157
220
Other gains H Wz
Continuing operations BERSEER
Gain on disposal of property, plant and HEWE BERER
equipment, net W FE 4
Net realised and unrealised gains on BAVEFAEENSREE
financial assets at fair value through ZEEIR N AREIAWEFEE
profit or loss 489
493
Other losses and impairments Htt S BERRE
Continuing operations BERSEER
Impairment losses on deposits and e K& E b WG IEREE B
other receivables - (6,366)
Impairment losses on intangible assets mREEREESE (969) -
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEWE - BE K&
equipment, net ZEEFR (4,987) -
(5,956) (6,3606)
(3,945) (5,653)

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁ’%/ﬂ\j i% ﬁ;—‘:{ MTJ--E\I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION 5 BRBAEE
Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging: BREATEEE R THIEIE
(a) Finance costs: (@) RERA :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —TtF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
Continuing operations BELSEER
Effective interest on convertible bonds A]mRESZERFE
(note 20) (M E20) -
Effective interest on bond (note 22) BEH 2 BEEF B (HiE22) 800
Finance charges on obligations under BEMEEAERT
finance leases ZEEERA 43
843
(b) Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments (note 8)): b) EIREX(BREEEHMH
(FF&ES)) -
2018 2017
—2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Continuing operations HEREER
Salaries, wages and other benefits e ITEREMETR 171,869 162,930
Contributions to defined contribution TE BB RURIRET B A9 3R
retirement plan 6,025 5,809
Provision for long service payments RHRE S EE 295 492
178,189 169,231

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

5 LOSS BEFORE TAXATION (CONTINUED) 5 PBREAIEIE (E)
(c) Otheritems: (c) H#bEE :
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT T T
Continuing operations BEREEL
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B A S B
— current year —EBHFE 600
— prior year’s under-provision - BAEFEERGBETR 90
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#EE 111
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKAR 3,403
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WERERETE
equipment
— assets under finance leases —REMHEBRTEAE 393
— other assets owned by the Group —AEEBENEMEE 2,855
Operating lease charges: KEHEER
minimum lease payments HERBEMK 4,364
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries not HEWIIESBADRIEEE
classified as discontinued operations HZWB AR ZEE -
Net foreign exchange loss SNEE B 1B H 5 66
Write off of property, plant and equipment  #1% - B = K 35 i $4 13
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

6

INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING 6
OPERATIONS

(a) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or

loss represents:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 )

FREACEXRBHRENR

(a) REBHERPHBIEARE :

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax EIHi%{i 18 - & B REH
Provision for the year FNEAE 2,125
Current tax — PRC Enterprise BNEAFiIE — P E D EFBH
Income Tax
Provision for the year FNEE -
Over-provision in respect of prior years ERABEFERNBERE ()
4
Deferred tax credit (note 23(b)) EEBLEIK % (M & (23(b))
Origination and reversal of 7By 22 5 A R IR S B Bl
temporary differences (267)
Income tax expense FrIiSfiAx 1,854

Hong Kong Profits Tax

The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5%
(2017: 16.5%) of the estimated assessable profits of each
individual Hong Kong subsidiary for the year.

Income tax from other tax jurisdictions

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”), the Group is not
subject to any income tax in respective tax jurisdictions.

PRC Enterprise Income Tax

The provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax is calculated at
25% of the estimated assessable profit of each individual PRC
subsidiary for the year ended 30 June 2018.

No provision for PRC Enterprise Income Tax was made for the
year ended 30 June 2017 as the PRC subsidiaries either had
sustained tax losses or had no assessable profits.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

BEFEH
BEENGRHBEBENRFASEBH
B R RIE AT ERBE AR 16.6% (=
T—LF:16.5%) 5 H -

HMH B A LB T EH

REFEHELRRABEBAREHS
(RBERRES]) R KR -
R E B AR S B BDAE R B
TP EHE

o B 1 3 B 18 5

AR B 1 2 P AS B BB O B {E Bl e
EHBEARTREE —T— \EXA
=+ HIEFEMGFERR RN Z
25% &1

HRREBE-T—tEFXA=TH
FEPEMERRLERIHEA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

6 INCOME TAX RELATING TO CONTINUING
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss represents: (continued)

PRC Enterprise Income Tax (continued)

Under the PRC tax law, profits of the Group’s subsidiaries
in the PRC (the “PRC subsidiaries”) derived since 1 January
2008 is subject to withholding income tax at rates of 5% or
10% upon the distribution of such profits to foreign investors
or companies incorporated in Hong Kong or for other foreign
investors, respectively.

At 30 June 2018 and 2017, no deferred tax liabilities have
been recognised in respect of tax that would be payable on
the unremitted profits of the PRC subsidiaries derived since 1
January 2008 as the directors of the Company is in a position
to control the dividend policies of the PRC subsidiaries and no
distribution of such profits is expected to be declared from the
PRC subsidiaries in the foreseeable future.

Reconciliation between tax expense and
accounting loss at applicable tax rates:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

6 FEFEKEERBNAMEN (R

(a) mEBHERPHBIEE : ()

& ] P SH ()

RIEF BB - $EIEPIBHJ?§§"
a ([ EHEA )E_??/\i
—A— EF%E’MJ‘J/A DIKE B
A TFINEIREE R BB LM
SRR RS E B IMRE FH B
1R E 5% 3 10% TR HIFT S °

R-ZE-NEFR-_ZF—LtF XA
=t+R - t¥EME —FTENF—H
—BHELNTEKB L T*Eﬁ/m

MENRBERRTEHRERE
AEARRRESAE %‘JEPIMTE
IO BB MR E M E A
T\@ﬁéﬂﬁ*%ﬁ?ﬂ%@ﬁﬁ%@iﬁﬂ °

(b) ZERABRFEHNBERF R
BB ERNER

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHEx FHETT
Loss before taxation from continuing BriF B S ¥ TS TIERE 1B
operations (2,765) (13,752)
Notional tax credit on loss before taxation, BRFRAIEEMNZERIEE S
calculated at Hong Kong Profits Tax &E/’% SR E16.5%
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%) —t % :16. 5%) e (456) (2,269)
Tax effect of non-taxable income T—HD R NGO =7 (1,314) (303)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR S M R S 7,073 4,223
Tax effect of unused tax losses not RERKRB A IBEIE E’J kv
recognised 2 532 251
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries M B 2A R TR LXK 5 £ (423) (44)
Over-provision in prior years BEFEBEEE - @)
Income tax expense Frisfimx 1,854

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

7 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

Disposal of Elite Car Services Limited

On 11 January 2017, Go Million Limited (“Go Million”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (the “E-Car
Purchaser”), pursuant to which Go Million agreed to sell and
the E-Car Purchaser agreed to acquire the entire issued share
capital of Elite Car Services Limited, at a cash consideration of
HKS$1. Elite Car Services Limited and its subsidiaries (together,
“Elite Group”) are principally engaged in the provision of auto
beauty services in Hong Kong.

Disposal of Logon Clean Energy Group Limited

On 3 March 2017, the Company entered into a sale and
purchase agreement with an independent third party (the
“Logon Purchaser”), pursuant to which the Company agreed
to sell and the Logon Purchaser agreed to acquire the entire
issued share capital of Logon Clean Energy Group Limited, at
a cash consideration of HK$32,000,000. Logon Clean Energy
Group Limited and its subsidiaries (together, “Logon Group”)
are principally engaged in the provision of property and car
park management services in Shenzhen, the PRC.

Results of discontinued operations for the year
ended 30 June 2017

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

7 REEBRLEEEXRB 2FREF

(a)

(b)

(c)

i £ Elite Car Services Limited

RZE—tF—A+—H  &KQF
HNeEMBRARIEEAERAA (&
EHE—F2BIFE =) ([E-CarE
FDALEEwRZE Bt =8
RAEHERECarE HREIHE S
R (B 17 T Uk B Elite Car Services
Limited #) 2 & 2 2 17 IR 7K © Elite
Car Services Limited & £ Hf B 2 7
(i EiteEEH ) T2 HERSE
REALREEDRBE -

HEH#ZBEZEREEERAQ T
RZE—+HF=A=H" ARQFH
—BBUE=ZH ([BEZEH] T
VSEEBEWE B AQAER
HERELTEHFRBERRASNRE
32,000,000 78 7T YL i & 2 8 R et R
EBEERARNEIPEHITRA -
BB REREEBR AT REHK
BRR(SGBILLEE]) TERNT
BRYIMEREMEREESER
PR 7% 7% -

\E"‘—I

a2

BE-Z-tHFXA=1THL
FECRIEREERXE

HK$’000
T
Revenue g 11,780
Other revenue H bz 25
Expenses F (16,860)
Loss before taxation BB AT EE (5,055)
Income tax expense FISfim )
Loss from operating activities, net of tax KREKEEE ZEE Rz (5,060)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operations, S BRI R 2 W
net of nil tax (note 7(f)) MBREHIE (FE7() 7,178
Profit for the year from discontinued operations REBRIEEEE 2 FRER 2,118
Attributable to: AT AL
— owners of the Company —AKRBHEB A 2,166
- non-controlling interests —IEFE AR R (48)
2,118

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

7 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED 7 XRECKILREXEKZFERZBF

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) (%&)
(d) Cash flows from discontinued operations for the d BE-F—tFARA=1+THLHF
year ended 30 June 2017 ECALREER2HERE
HK$’000
FHET
Operating activities KRS 1,187
Investing activities HEERE (83)
Financing activities BhEESD (2,554)
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on INEIER BB HIR e RIS EEMN
cash and cash equivalents - (48)
(1,498)
(e) The assets and liabilities disposed at completion (e) RERAHEHENEERE
dates &
Elite Logon
Group Group Total
Elite £ E-g g S @t
HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
Property, plant and equipment ME - BB KEE 384 706 1,090
Goodwil Bk - 36,984 36,984
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M EWRIE 1,073 2,904 3,977
Cash and cash equivalents ReERREEEY 467 720 1,187
Trade and other payables 25 REMEMNFIA (245) (5,141) (5,386)
Deferred revenue R (4,989) (1,270) (6,259)
Current tax payable BIHEA e H4 18 - (4,504) (4,504)
Borrowings &% - (1,668) (1,668)
Net (liabilities)/assets (8f&) BEFHR (3,310) 28,731 25,421
Non-controlling interests E g 285 - 285
Net (liabilities)/assets disposed of BHE(BE) BEFE (3,025) 28,731 25,706

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 @



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

7 PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATIONS (CONTINUED)

(f

(9)

Gain on disposal of discontinued operations

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

7 REERLEKEZEB2FRNER
(&)
(H HECKLEEEKKE

Elite Logon

Group Group Total

Elite £ Egod 3 @t

HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET FET

Consideration received BRRE - 32,000 32,000

Net liabilities/(assets) disposed of BHEAR (BE)FHE 3,025 (28,731) (25,706)
Cumulative exchange loss reclassified 7 H &K@ A 71415 21
from equity to profit or loss upon SMNEBEREREN S

disposal of subsidiaries BEER - 884 884

Gain on disposal HE M= 3,025 4,153 7,178

*

The sale consideration was HK$1.

The gain on disposal from Elite Group and Logon Group are
included in the profit for the year from discontinued operations
for the year ended 30 June 2017 (note 7(c)).

Net cash flows on disposal of discontinued

O HERERIEBT -

HEEte BN ELEBEEZI
HONERUEREXBRBE-F
—tERA=THIEFEZ&MNEZ
5 (MEE7(c) °

() HEERLBEXBZRER

operations EFE
Elite Logon
Group Group Total
Elite 5§ -3 o
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FHET FHET FET
Consideration settled in cash DIReHEE 2 RE —* 32,000 32,000
Cash and cash equivalents BEHERSMNEEEEY
disposed of (467) (720) (1,187)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow Be (Rd) /mAFHE (467) 31,280 30,813

*

The sale consideration was HK$1.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

8

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 8 EEME
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEE B DG % 383(1) 15 ~ A7) (#
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, Part 2 of the Companies BEENRER) BAZE28 RGEM L
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation MRA - EEMHESFEENOT
and the GEM Listing Rules are as follows:
Contributions to
Salaries, allowance and Discretionary defined contribution
Fees benefits in kind bonuses retirement plan Total
He e BERENER BiERa EERFEAHHOHT a3t
2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017 2018 2017

Notes
liF

Present directors
Executive directors
Mr. Yu Shaoheng
Mr. Lai Tin Ming
Independent non-executive
directors
Mr. Kwong Tsz Ching, Jack
Mr. Meng Enhai
Mr. Wong Hiu Fong
Former directors
Executive directors
Mr. Chan Wai Kit
Ms. Ding Pingying
Ms. Mui Fong
Mr. Tse Man Yiu
Ms. Wang Jun
Ms. Wong Chi Yan
Mr. Yang Yifan
Mr. Yeung Yat Chuen
Mr. Ye Jingyuan
Non-executive director
Mr. Xu Xiaoping
Independent non-executive
directors
Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert
Mr. Huang Ke
Mr. Yu Xiufeng

il
UrEs
rATRE
BRALE
BUFHTES

Bz
ZRERE
IBMRL
AfES
HnEs
REAEE
TEERL
Erat
G
R4t
Chitves
ol 3
BREREE
ERRfE
FHTES
L
BURUfES

EECRE
AL
TRIEEE

~

N D3 © o~ o o

o

1

=~

[

17

BN CRLF ZR-NE CT4F RN CT4F RN CT4F CR

-\ Z3-+%

HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HKSOOD — HKS$000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HK$000  HKS'000

TEn  TEr  TEx  TEr  TER  TEr  TER  Tin

TEr  TER

406 424
120 120
31 34
127 121
406 424
306 323
8 Il
201 204
1617 1812
3 3
120 120
5 5
65 85
3032 3,786

EHERBERAR Gk 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

8

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Mr. Yu Shaoheng was appointed as the Chief Executive Officer on 28

November 2017.

Mr. Lai Tin Ming was appointed on 31 July 2018.

Ms

Ms

Mr.

Ms

Ms

Mr. Yang Yifan was appointed on 28 November 2017 and resigned on

. Meng Enhai was appointed on 31 July 2018.

. Wong Hiu Fong was appointed on 21 March 2018.

. Chan Wai Kit resigned on 11 July 2016.

. Ding Pingying resigned on 11 January 2017.

Mui Fong resigned on 28 November 2017.

Tse Man Yiu resigned on 11 January 2017.

. Wang Jun resigned on 19 September 2016.

Wong Chi Yan resigned on 18 July 2016.

28 June 2018.

Mr. Yeung Yat Chuen was appointed on 13 February 2018 and

resigned on 31 July 2018.

Mr. Ye Jingyuan resigned on 28 November 2017.

Mr.

Mr. Chui Chi Yun, Robert resigned on 31 July 2018.

Mr.

Mr.

Xu Xiaoping resigned on 4 July 2016.

Huang Ke resigned on 5 December 2016.

Yu Xiufeng retired on 29 December 2017.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

EEME (H)
P eE -

1.

10.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

REFEER_ZE—LF+—AZ+tN
RERERTHAE -

RRPAENR_ZT—-N\FLA=+—H
BRI

HEBEER-_E-NFELA=1+—8
EERE-

TEMEER_TE—N\F=ZA=-+—H
TEZAT -

BERLEN-_ZE—RFLA+—HE
THELTN-_E—+F—A+—HE
wELZER_E—+tF+—A=1+N\H
BHT -

WXREER —ZT—+F—A+—B#E
F -

FELEIRN-_ZE—RFAATNARHE -

st

TEBRL IR T RFEAT/\B#E

B—MEER —ZE—tF+—AZ+N
REZE IR_ZE-NEAZTN
BEHE

BEREER-Z—\F-A+=Ak
B WR-F—\GFLA=+—HFHE -

ERREER-_ZE—LF+—AZ+N
BEHE

N FRERZZE-RFLAMBEHE -

EECEER-_E-N\FLA=1+—1
BHE o

RN =T AF T+ ARARE -

FHREEENR-_T—+F+_A=-t+A
HAERME -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

9

10

INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, two (2017:
one) are directors whom emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other three (2017:

four) individuals are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7515 )
BEEHAL
TEEEFALTH ME(ZT—tF:
—R)REE EHFHAKEsHEE B
MAM=2(ZF—tF "R EAN
FENmERn T

Salaries, wages and other benefits

Discretionary bonuses

Contributions to defined contribution
retirement plan

¥e ITENHMBER

GEIEERESA

2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—tF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET THET
2,896

392

51

3,339

The emoluments of the other three (2017: four) individuals with the

highest emoluments are within the following band:

BREM=%2(ZT—1F :HR)ES
FATHFHHNBN T EE -

HK$NIl — HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000

T8 L2 1,000,000/ 7T

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A ANE

3

1,000,001 %8 7T £ 1,500,000 /%8 7T 1

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share

The calculation of basic (loss)/earnings per share is based on
the (loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue,

calculated as follows:

(i) (Loss)/profit attributable to owners of the Company

10 R (B8) 27

(a) BREX(FE) &EF

SRER(BR) /B REAA
A AR (BIR) /%R R B B
FERRIET DB EMT

() ARAEEAE (BB &

(Loss)/profit attributable to
owners of the Company

(15,552)

F
Continuing operations Discontinued operations Total
RESEER BRIEEER @
2017 2018 2017 2018 2017
“T—t+%5 ZB-N\f CZE—+Ff ZE-Nf ZZT—+t%f
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TER T TER T

(8,289) (13,386)

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 @




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e HRRHE
10 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED)

(a) Basic (loss)/earnings per share (continued)

(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 )

10 B8R (&8) 27 (8)
(a) BREX(FE) EF (&)

(i) ZERNEFTE

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
’000 000
TR Fhx
(Restated)
(&%)
Issued ordinary shares at beginning FHEBITERR
of the year 2,700,000 1,800,000
Effect of rights issue on 16 February —E—t+HE-A+NEHRK
2017 (note 26(a)(iii)) B8 (B3 26(a)(iii) 466,632
Effect of share consolidation on —E—+tFtRA=Z+tEHR
27 July 2017 (note 26(a)(ii)) DE R 2 (FRE 26()(i) (2,430,000) (2,039,969)
Effect of rights issue on 9 July 2018 ZE-NFtANBHERDH
(note 34(a)) 2 (51 34(a) 23,299 19,560
Weighted average number of ordinary 3% 38 i AN 4E F 15 1
shares 293,299 246,223

As mentioned in note 34(a), the Company completed the
Rights Issue subsequent to the end of the reporting period
but prior to the date the consolidated financial statements
were authorised for issue. Since there is a bonus element
in the Rights Issue, retrospective adjustment has been
made to the weighted average number of ordinary shares
for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.

(b) Diluted (loss)/earnings per share

The diluted (loss)/earnings per share for the years ended 30
June 2018 and 2017 is the same as the basic (loss)/earnings
per share as the assumed exercise of the share options and
conversion of convertible bonds outstanding during the years
ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 have anti-dilutive effect.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

11 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

11 Y BERRE

Furniture  Equipment
and and Motor ~ Computer  Leasehold
fixtures  machinery vehicles  equipment improvement Total
GRREE RERES "E EfiRE  HEXE @it
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
Cost: A
At1 July 2016 RZE-~¥tA—-H 2,665 14,748 22,496 109 2,035 42,053
Additions HE 340 728 704 126 3,048 4,946
Written off i (1) (76) - (30 - (117)
Disposals HE @ (32) - - - (34)
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAF (181) (807) (5,604) 63) (712) (7,367)
Exchange realignment B 5 AR (4 (28) (1) - - (33)
At30June 2017 and 1July 2017 R-ZE—+F~A=+EHR
R = 2,807 14,533 17,595 142 4,371 39,448
Additions HE 388 908 - 539 2,644 4479
Written off iids 26) (16) - (199) - (241)
Disposals HE (314) - (1,339) (357) (5,553 (7,557)
Disposal of subsidliaries HERBAT (1,234) (3,745) - 1) - (5,070)
Exchange realignment R AR 6 7 1 21 - 35
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NEXA=TH 1,627 11,687 16,263 55 1,462 31,004
Accumulated depreciation: ZitHE
At 1 July 2016 RZZE-~$tA-H 1,450 10,299 17,860 2 439 30,070
Charge for the year FELM 430 1,096 1,301 36 717 3,580
Written off g (11) 69) - (30) - (104)
Eliminated on disposals &R @ 7 - - - 9
Eliminated on disposal of HERBARRHH
subsidlaries (89) (212) (2914) (1) (361) (3587)
Exchange realignment BT () @ - - - Ul
At30June 2017 and 1July 2017 RZE—+F~A=Z+ER
—Z—+&£+A-H 1773 1,111 16,247 17 795 29,043
Charge for the year FEXM 316 970 582 108 1519 3,490
Written off g3 () (16) - (29) - (44)
Eliminated on disposals e £3 i (30) - (1,333) (35) (852) (2,250)
Eliminated on disposal of HENB AR
subsidiaries (1,231) (3,705) - (32) - (4,968
Exchange realignment R o 5 (1) 2 1 - 7
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NEXA=1H 828 8,359 15,498 31 1,462 26,178
Carrying amount: RER:
At 30 June 2018 R=B-NEXA=TH 799 3,328 765 24 - 4,916
At 30 June 2017 RZZE—t+&~A=1A 1,084 3422 1,348 125 3,576 9,505

RZZE—N\EXA=1H X£EEE
BEMEMF AENREEL A 765,000
BT (ZZT—+4F :1,187,000/87T) °

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 @

At 30 June 2018, the carrying amount of the Group’s motor vehicles
held under finance leases was approximately HK$765,000 (2017:
HK$1,187,000).



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

12 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 12 BF&EE
Money
Customer Contract lender
relationship backlog license Total
EFB% REREHN BEABR @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(note (a)) (note (b))
(BT () (B 3E (b))
Cost: |2
At 1 July 2016 R-E— /\Etﬂ*El 1,118 333 969 2,420
Disposal of subsidiaries HENE QA (1,118) - - (1,118)
At 30 June 2017, 1 July 2017 R=-Z—+&XA=1+H"
and 30 June 2018 “Z—tHtH-HE
—E-NFXA=TH - 333 969 1,302
Accumulated amortisation =~ Rt #85 R FE :
and impairment:
At 1 July 2016 RZZE—RFE+H—H 1,118 19 - 1,137
Charge for the year FEZH - 111 - 111
Eliminated on disposal of HERHIHERB AR
subsidiaries (1,118) - - (1,118)
At 30 June 2017 and RZZE—+FA=+H
1 July 2017 kZFE—tF+H—H - 130 - 130
Charge for the year FEZH - 111 - 111
Impairment loss (note (c)) HERE (M) - - 969 969
At 30 June 2018 R-ZE-NFEXA=+H - 241 969 1,210
Carrying amount: EREE
At 30 June 2018 R-E-NFEXA=1H - 92 - 92
At 30 June 2017 RZZE—+FH=1H - 203 969 1,172

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “Administrative
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Notes:

(@  Contract backlog has been allocated to the CGU, Environmental and
cleaning — PRC, for impairment testing purposes. Details of impairment
test was disclosed in note 13.

(b)  The money lender license under a brand name “Profit Management”
entitles the Group to undertake the money lender’s business using
the money lender license for 1 year from the date of acquisition and
to renew annually with insignificant cost. The money lender license is
therefore considered having indefinite economic useful life.

(c)  On 30 June 2018, the management realised that the performance of
money lending business under the brand name “Profit Management”
was worsen than expected due to tough market competition. After
the assessment on the respective date, the management determined
to recognise a full impairment in respect of the decline of operating
performance. As a result, the impairment loss of HK$969,000 was
recognised in “Other income, other gains and losses and impairments”.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )

13 GOODWILL 13 BE

Auto Management Environmental

beauty services and cleaning Total
REER EERB RERBR @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FET
Cost: A
At 1 July 2016 R—E—R"FEtH—H 9,159 40,747 2,932 52,838
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWEB ’A G (9,159 (40,747) - (49,908)
At 30 June 2017, 1 July 2017 R=Z—t&XA=+H "
and 30 June 2018 —E2—tEtR-AkK
—E-NEXA=TH - - 2,932 2,932
Accumulated impairment:  E3HEE :
At 1 July 2016 RZZ—R"F+tHA—H 9,159 - - 9,159
Impairment loss EEE - 3,763 - 3,763
Eliminated on disposal of HEME A AR
subsidiaries 9,159) (3,763) - (12,922)
At 30 June 2017, 1 July 2017 R=-E—+tFX<A=+H"
and 30 June 2018 “E2—tEtR-ARK
—E-N\EXA=TH - - - -
Carrying amount: BREE:
At 30 June 2018 and 2017 R=-E-N\FR
—E—tHFEXB=1H - - 2,932 2,932
Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill BEHENRSELBEURENR
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s CGUs identified according to BHEDRBETIEEEARREED D
country of operation and operating segment as follows: REAEBECHANREEEEN :
2018 2017
—E2-NF —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Environmental and cleaning — PRC IRBERBEZR—F m 2,932
The Group tests goodwill annually for impairment, or more frequently NEBEGFEITHEREN fﬂ i 7 2
if there are indications that goodwill might be impaired. LIRBERR - Ale EAZHEITAR -
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Impairment test for CGUs containing goodwill
(continued)

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on the
value-in-use calculation under the income approach, which includes
the discounted cash flows sourced from the financial budgets
approved by the management covering a five-year period, and the
post-tax discount rate of approximately 19.9% (2017: 16.9%) that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and
the risks specific to the CGU.

Cash flow projections during the budget period are based on the
expected revenue from existing and potential customers throughout
the budget period. The cash flows beyond that five-year period
have been extrapolated using a steady 3.0% (2017: 3.0%) per
annum growth rate. The growth rate does not exceed the long term
average growth rate for the market.

The recoverable amount of the CGU for the year ended 30 June
2018 has been referenced to the valuation report prepared by GC
Appraisals Service Company Limited (2017: Norton Appraisals
Limited), an independent professional valuer.

The key assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations for the
CGU are as follows:

Budgeted market share  The values assigned to the assumption
reflect past experience, except for the
growth factor, which is consistent with
the directors’ estimation of the revenue
from existing and potential customers.
The directors believe that planned
revenue growth per year for the next five
years is reasonably achievable.

In order to maintain successive business
operations of the CGU, the directors
believe that there is no particular difficulty
in renewal of the service contracts of the
existing customers in the CGU.

Number of service
contracts

The directors of the Company believe that any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable amount is
based would not cause the carrying amount of the CGU to exceed
its recoverable amount.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

13 GOODWILL (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

13 BHE (&)

BEHENRSELBEURENR
(&)

REeEAEBMAIRE S8 DRIERAE
PHFEREEFEARET HPBIE
RIEEEEBHEZ RERFHE MK
BEMMIBEERES R MEERREY
10.9% (ZZT —+tF : 16.9% ) < R IR BF
MEHEBRERAERYREELBME
BRR 27 -

WA M2 RS REA BN S AR
#1000 2 A ROBTEE 5 as 1
i BT AR RAEE3.0%
ST 30%) MEERERE -
S RELRBI TS RBTHRERE -

BE T \FRA=THLFERS
ELBUNAKCSREI2EEBILE
XHEMSEFERBAERAA (ZF
—tF  ERERFEERAF) HEK
HEREEE -

AERSEABNCERAEERAZ
EEMRERAOT -

BEMGHNE BIAETZEER
BBt ER  RIEREA
=N HEAFEREHRE
BBERBEREF K
ZihET— - EEME
ARAEFFFNOE
e AEGEMN
BIRKE -

RFEAANEE SEFASELFEM
MREXGEE BF
BiE EBRCELE
NRENREEFPW
ARTG A KIS R 2 o

ARAREERR AJRESENTER
RZERMAIRAREE HER TG EK
ReEt B RmERBHEAIROISHE -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-EI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES 14 BEZEWRE
2018 2017
—E-N\E —EF—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Trade receivables, net of allowance for B S EWFIE - bR REREE
doubtful debts of HK$Nil (2017: HK$Nil) ZET(ZT—tF : TBT) 49,841
(a) Ageing analysis (a) FRER AT
As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of RmER HREZEHEINE
trade receivables, based on the invoice date, is as follows: SEBGRIBRESITAT -
2018 2017
—E2-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
0 - 30 days 02 30H 40,314
31 - 60 days 31E60H 7,304
61 — 90 days 61290 H 2,032
Over 90 days BB 90 H 191
49,841
Trade receivables are normally due on presentation of billing. ESREWFIERENEEZYAH
Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note HE - FRASEEEBRR 2 & —
27(a). B BEHRIE27() ©
(b) Impairment of trade receivables (b) BEZEWRFIERE
Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded B RWFIA 2 BEBEEBEE
using an allowance account unless the Group is satisfied ARACER - AR E I E %K IE
that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the RS B IERIBR AN - ERZIBERT
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors directly (see BB R E B R E R SR sE (R
note 2.10()). No impairment losses were recognised on trade HaE2.100)  BEZE—N\FRZ
receivables for the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017. E—tFRA=ZTHIEFERE

JEU AR SRR SRR B 1R o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂj i% ﬁ% M{l-EI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

14 TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) 14 B 5 EWRFIE (&)
(c) Trade receivables that are not impaired (c) RBEEZEKRRIE
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither WEBFEIHEAFERARECES
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as JEWRIE 2 BRER DA LT -
follows:
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHEIT
0 — 30 days past due 0ZE 30 H#EH 40,314
31 — 60 days past due 31 %60 H i & 7,304
61 — 90 days past due 61290 H i1 & 2,032
Over 90 days past due B 1% 90 H #1 &f 191
49,841
Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate B 5B I R RE & BB S &
to a number of independent customers that have a good ZZERNEBRBFRIFRZSDEN
trading record with the Group. Based on past experience, BUBEF -BEEMRE REAT
management believes that no impairment allowance is KEE HNEERG I EE XEE
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been BHESRDER BRI BEWKD - i H
a significant change in credit risk and the balances are still AR A RME R E R -

considered fully recoverable.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

15 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

15 BT BNAREREMERKE

2018 2017

—E-N\E —E—+F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT T

Deposits (note (a)) ¢ (M5 @@) 11,862
Prepayments FETFIE 1,612
Other receivables H b e W s IE 180
13,654

Less: impairment loss (note (b)) R EEE (BT EE (o) (7,366)
6,288

The amount of the Group’s deposits, prepayments and other
receivables that are expected to be recovered or recognised
as expenses after more than one year is HK$2,193,000 (2017:
HK$1,183,000). All of the remaining balances are expected to be
recovered or recognised as expenses within one year.

(a) Deposits

The Group has tendered for certain environmental services
contracts and deposited sums of approximately HK$1,618,000
(2017: HK$835,000) as tender deposits at 30 June 2018. The
tender deposits are interest-free and repayable at the end of
the tender.

TEHERN—FrkExERAERASZ 2
AEBZ S - AR RE R E MR RIE
% /52,193,0008 L (ZE—tF ¢
1,183,000 7T) ° 82 N 2 FS 45 A TR B S
R—FRKEHEREFAT -

(@ &£

R-ZZE—N\FRNA=Z+H A&EEH
EREZEETRARRBEEL W
W& HBEH1,618,0008 L (=8
—+4F : #9835,0007% 7T) {E BIFIZ
B o REZZREATHE AR

I REFEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

15 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 15 &% BN RERHMGEWRIE
RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED) (#&)

(b) WEEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

(b) Impairment loss

On 3 July 2015, the Company entered into a memorandum
of understanding (“MOU”) with two independent third parties
regarding a proposed acquisition of the entire interest in a PRC
entity. Pursuant to the MOU the Company has paid refundable
deposit of HK$10,000,000 to the two independent third parties.
The refundable deposit was unsecured, interest-free and
refundable upon completion or termination of the acquisition
according to the agreed terms. The MOU was eventually
lapsed and the directors endeavour to retrieve the refundable
deposit. However, after putting all efforts the Company has
only received a partial refund totalling HK$3,634,000 from the
independent third parties during the year ended 30 June 2017.
Having considered the aging of the balance and the Group’s
continuous reminder of the refund, the directors were of the
opinion that there was a material uncertainty over the recovery
of the remaining deposit. Consequently, a full impairment loss
of the remaining deposit of HK$6,366,000 was recognised.

During the year ended 30 June 2016, the Group recognised an
impairment loss on a deposit of HK$1,000,000 for the purchase
of a trademark from a vendor. Having considered that the
trademark has not been delivered to the Group in accordance
with the agreed terms and the amount of HK$1,000,000 has
not been refunded to the Group from the vendor despite the
Group’s continuous reminders of the refund, the directors were
of the opinion that there was a material uncertainty over the
recovery of the deposit. Consequently, a full impairment loss of
HK$1,000,000 was recognised.

During the year ended 30 June 2018, the purchase deposits
of HK$7,366,000 were fully written off as the directors were
of the opinion that the probabilities to recover the purchase
deposits were remote as those independent third parties were
in financial difficulties to repay the purchase deposits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

16 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

The Group’s loans and interest receivables arise from the money
lending business of providing loans in Hong Kong by two wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Company. The Group seeks to maintain
strict control over its outstanding loans and interest receivables to
minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

16 BWERRFE

AEBNEKREREMNETIAAREZ
MEEZEMBRRNEBREEROK
BEBREL - NEBHIRKBEKREE
FEU B SR B B M R ARAEH] - AR E
HAOEERR BUSREREEEEH

management. BE o
2018 2017
A “E—tF
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
ExBL REHD @i BE¥#s  MEHH et
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$O000  HKE000
TR TR THET TET T
Secured loans by: PAT B & B AR
ZEREN:
- mortgage —%1E 1,902 1,902 - - -
— personal guarantees —(EAAER 95,000 96,196 75,000 450 75,450
Unsecured loans RBERER 15,000 15,047 - - -

111,902

Loans receivable are interest-bearing at rates ranging from 10.2%
t0 22.0% (2017: 18.0% to 21.6%) per annum and repayable on
maturity date under the terms in contractual agreements or on
demand in writing by the Group.

113,145 75,000 450 75,450

ERERZFMNEAENT10.2% 2
22.0% (ZZ—+tF 1 18.0% £21.6%) 7t
B UVHAEEREGRBEERIETH
FEAE S A E MR EREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂj i% ﬁ;—% MTJ-EI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

16 LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES 16 EWEFEFE (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Ageing analysis (a) FRER AT
Ageing analysis is prepared based on contractual due date: RSB BEERINEARR
2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Loan Interest Loan Interest
portion portion Total portion portion Total
EREs HMEHD @t Ex#s  MEHH Bt

HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000  HKS000
TE#r  TEx TEx TErT AT TEXR

Neither past due nor impaired £ £ # 5l (& 111,902 883 112,785 75,000 - 75,000
Less than 1 month pastdue ~ BH PR —1EA 360 360 - 450 450
111,902 1,243 113,145 75,000 450 75,450
The credit quality of loans and interest receivables that are 47 380 HA ol R (B 1Y JE U E SR R ) B Y
neither past due nor impaired has been assessed by reference EEBELEZ68BRT S FELLY
to historical information about counterparty default rates. The ZBEERENG -BBERZTB
existing counterparties do not have defaults in the past. 0 8RR o
In respect of interest receivables which have been past due, HRABMBMERFE HeBEEB
the amounts mainly represent occasional delay in repayment AEREHER WEEBERREH
and they were fully settled subsequent to the end of the REBEE At EBERAE
reporting period. Accordingly, the management is of the TR EERELRERE -
opinion that no impairment allowance on these balances is
necessary.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED
BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION

(@ Cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank deposits
comprise cash at the bank and on hand:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (A& 7515 )

17 RERREEEY  ZRHERT
FREEMBREREER

@ RELRSFEVRIRHRITE
RERBRITRFERE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHT T T

13,721 12,948
116,749 52,932

130,470 65,880
(12,979) (12,948)

Deposits with banks |ITIFER

Cash at bank and on hand RITRFEES

Restricted bank deposits (note) SRR BIRITER (H5E)

Cash and cash equivalents in the FEMBIRAR RS
consolidated statement of financial LIRS EED
position

117,491 52,932

Note: The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks
as security for due performance under several environmental
service contracts. The restricted bank deposits of
approximately HK$1,378,000 (2017: HK$10,843,000) that
relate to environmental service contacts with expiry date over
one year after the end of the reporting period are presented as
non-current assets.

HieF - ZIRERITERIERRITIHEN
Re 1EAZBBITETRER
BEHMER S RNIFRERK
B—FRIBNBREREEDHZ
IR )8R 17 17 3% 491,378,000 7%
7L (ZZ —+ 4 : 10,843,00078
L) D2V ABIERBEE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

17 RERASEEY  SZRHEBRT

17 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED

BANK DEPOSITS AND OTHER CASH FLOW
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

(b) The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which
cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows
from financing activities.

EFREREABREREBER (&)

(b) Ti%éiﬁ;zli%%ﬂiéfiéébﬁﬁﬁiﬁ’ﬂ
BEEY  BRERSNIREH
mﬁéxé%ﬂﬁﬁ?imﬁﬁﬁﬁiﬁém
EXARAKRERERNAERGFZA
ﬁi/ﬂui%m/\*ﬁﬁlﬂﬁ/ﬁﬁjﬁﬁﬁ

EEEE’%/MLEE}]E\ ff!\ °

Liability
component of
convertible Finance
bonds leases Bond Total
AERES
naERs mERE &% @it
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET
(note 20) (note 21) (note 22)
(KFzx20) (fiFzE21) (Pf3E22)
At 1 July 2017 R-EB—tHE+HA—H - 1,021 9,442 10,463
Changes from financing MERSHEST .
cash flows:
Proceeds from issue of BITAHRRES
convertible bonds Fri§5k1a 43,767 - - 43,767
Transaction costs for ABRREHFRZHA
convertible bonds (732) - - (732)
Capital element of finance ENREHERSHNER
lease rentals paid Bin - (428) - (428)
Interest element of finance ENREHERSHNTE
lease rentals paid win - (29) - (29)
Interest paid BEHE - - (700) (700)
43,035 (457) (700) 41,878
Other changes: Hih g
Finance charges on obligations ft & S &EE T
under finance leases ZREER - 29 - 29
Effective interest on convertble A # % (& % 2 BFZ 5 8
bonds (note 20) (BF#E20) 5915 - - 5,915
Effective interest on bond BH 2 EBRFIE
(note 22) (BF#E22) - - 809 809
5,915 29 809 6,753
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NEXA=1+H 48,950 593 9,551 59,094
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

18 TRADE PAYABLES

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

18 B 5 ENFIA

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FTET FHEIT

Trade payables g S EMNFIE

-|!l!a 14,880

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade
payables, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

RBERR REFZAHEZIINES R
NRERER ST

2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHxT FET

0 - 30 days 0&30H

31 - 60 days 31E60H
61 —90 days 61£290H
Over 90 days H#E90 H

14,212
461

83

124

14,880

Included in the Group’s trade payables at 30 June 2017 was
an amount due to Niko Cleaning Services Limited (“Niko”) of
approximately HK$914,000.

Niko is owned as to 60% by Mr. Fan Shek Cheong Allan (“Mr. Fan”)
and 40% by Ms. Fan Sheung Ting, Maria (“Ms. Fan”). Mr. Fan is
the father-in-law of Mr. Wong Yin Jun, Samuel (“Mr. Wong”), who
was a key management personnel of the Group until 17 April 2017.
Ms. Fan is the daughter of Mr. Fan and lawful wife of Mr. Wong.
Therefore, Niko was considered as a related party of the Group until
17 April 2017.

AEEBR-_Z—tFRA=THEZE
fF FRIAF £9914,000 8 TN T 1 &8
BRBAERRR(THS]) -

SoRlEEAEEE ([BEE]) BB
i 17 22 £ (S8 22 £ 1) BB 60% K 40% #
moBAERAEETEZERARTLTE
BEE(TEXRED Z2ER - BRERE
FENLRERERENGEZZF - FHit -
E-TtLtFOATEEARL hEK
BRAREZ —R#EET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

19

20

ACCRUALS, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND OTHER
PAYABLES

19

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 )

BHER BRESREMEN

b/ G|

2018
—E-N\f
HK$’000
FiT

2017
—E—tF
HK$'000
FHETT

Provision for long service payments RHRESBE
Provision for untaken leave RIBE FR R E
Provision for claims RERE

Accrued salaries [EstE 2

Other accruals HiE &R
Deposits received Bz e

Other payables H b~ 508

4,119
2,670
4,285
12,302
5,175
448
4,114

33,113

As at 30 June 2018, included in other payables of the Group
was the cash received of approximately HK$59,857,000 for the
subscription application of the Company’s rights shares during the
year. The Rights Issue has been completed subsequent to the end
of the reporting period (see note 34(a)).

CONVERTIBLE BONDS

Pursuant to the subscription agreement and supplemental extension
letter dated 15 June 2017 and 16 August 2017 respectively,
the Company has conditionally agreed to issue the zero coupon
convertible bonds of principal amount of HK$50,000,000 (the
“Convertible Bonds”) to Wui Wo Enterprise Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands and is wholly-owned by
Mr. Yu Weiye, a controlling shareholder of the Company as defined
in the GEM Listing Rules at the date of the subscription agreement
(the “Subscriber”) up to 20 December 2017. The maturity date
of the Convertible Bonds is the first anniversary from the date of
issue of the Convertible Bonds. The subscription of the Convertible
Bonds was completed on 21 August 2017 with the net proceeds of
approximately HK$49,164,000 received.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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R-ZBE—N\EXA=1H KEEHM
ENFERETFALBEZRERLQR
1% {% 0 1 Y ER B9 IR & %9 59,857,000 74
JC o MR E R E A RE K (RN
34(a)) °

AR ES

REBSHSNAE-_ZT—tFXA+HA
EZZE—tFNATEBHREWHZE
DHFERSE AR EBKGERER
EMCEBERAG(—HREBHERR
HEZMKIH QA RREBHZEBAH
AARBZERRKE (FE RGEM ETR
AN REHEEE2ERA) ([READE
777K 4 %8 /450,000,000 7% JT Y Z B 7] #4
ES (rAI®mEKRES]) EE-F—+
FH+-A=-+BAEL - A BREESFND
HAAENRESZEITH R E —
EEFH A BRESHREZRAZE
—+tFNA-+—HEX  BRABR
THHEA 49 549,164,000 7T °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

20 CONVERTIBLE BONDS (CONTINUED)

The Subscriber of the Convertible Bonds has the right to convert
into a maximum of 128,205,128 conversion shares at a conversion
price of HK$0.39 per conversion share (adjusted for the Share
Consolidation and the Rights Issue completed on 27 July 2017 and
9 July 2018 respectively). If the Convertible Bonds have not been
converted, they will be redeemed by the Company respective on 20
August 2018, being the maturity date of the Convertible Bonds.

The Convertible Bonds have been split as to the liability and equity

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

20 TTERRES (&)
ABRBRESFNREBEAGRZERIZRK
EH039B T EHBREERARS
128,205,128 I A& i 15 (KRR 15 & HF
MER (DR ZE—tFLtA=++t
BT NFEtANBZTK) EHF
) o WAl ES T EER - QiR A
NAIR - NF/\NAZ+8 (BlA[#
ESZEIEA) HEELD

AMEESCHD AT BE R

components as follows: o
Liability Equity
component component Total
=Rt o st
HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
FET FHET FHET
At 1 July 2017 RZE—+tFtH—H - - -
Issue of the Convertible Bonds BT MRES 43,767 6,233 50,000
Transaction costs R G A (732) (104) (836)
Effective interest expense ERFB M 5,915 - 5,915
At 30 June 2018 WZZE-NFSRA=TH 48,950 6,129 55,079
The equity component is presented as convertible bonds reserve s E D Z—Eﬁg SN2V AR BRESF
within equity. The effective interest rate of the liability component for o HE—_E—N\EA=THIIEE -
the year ended 30 June 2018 is 14.24%. BEILDHERFNEE14.24%
Mr. Yu Shaoheng, director of the Company, is the son of Mr. Yu VIN/N T%%f?\ SRAEAEFREELEY
Weiye. Therefore, the Subscriber is considered as a related party to BFoRHI REAGEANER 2B
the Group and the Convertible Bonds to the Subscriber constituted Bty - mAREBAZEITAIRKRESEK

a related party transaction.

IR S -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁé/ﬁgj i% ﬁ;—% MTJ--E\I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

21 OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 21 MEHEERAE
At 30 June 2018, the Group had obligations under finance leases RNZE—N\FNA=1+H KEHEE
repayable as follows: ERmEHEREHINWOT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —T—+tF
Present Present
value of the Total value of the Total
minimum minimum minimum minimum
lease lease lease lease
payments payments payments payments
BEHE BEHE ®EHE mEHEE
NERE REHE HIBHAE BB
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TET THT
Within 1 year —FR 428 457
After 1 year but within 2 years E-FREE-FRA 297 312
After 2 years but within 5years £ -FREFRER 296 303
1,021 1,072
Less: total future interest expenses 1, : H & | S5 4% (61)
Present value of lease obligations i & & ER & 1,021
22 BOND 22 &%
On 20 November 2014, the Company issued an unlisted corporate R-ZE—WNF+—A=-+H ' AQaE
bond at a principal amount of HK$10,000,000 which is unsecured, 1784 % % 410,000,000 TR FE LT
bears a fixed interest rate of 7% per annum and is fully redeemable NEESF ZEFAERRF  RETH
by the Company after 7 years from the issue date at its principal EEFT%FELBEHTABREFR
amount of HK$10,000,000. 72N A B Al 4% B K € 4 %8 10,000,000 78
TLEIEE o
The movement of the unlisted corporate bond is set out as below: FEEMRARMEFEEHTIWOT -
2018 2017
—ZE2-NF —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
At beginning of the year NG 9,342
Effective interest expense BERFERAX 800
Interest paid ERFE (700)
At end of the year RER 9,442
The effective interest rate of the unlisted corporate bond is 8.52% FEMAFREF2ERF K B852%
(2017: 8.52%) per annum. ZE—E£F 1 852%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 23 Z8UBMRRAERNNEFEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial (@) #ReMBMR R R EIEATIIESE -
position presents:

2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Hong Kong Profits Tax EBMEH
— Provision for the year —FREE 2,125
— Provisional tax paid — B EHE (1,373)
— Balance of profits tax provision —BEFEMNEHIEEE
relating to prior year e -
752
PRC Enterprise Income Tax BTG
— Provision for the year —FREE -
- Exchange realignment —[E 5 -
752
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

23 INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(CONTINUED)

(b) Deferred tax liabilities recognised

(c)

The component of deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements during the year are as follows:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

23 HmEMBARRRANAES (F)

(b) ERADELEBEEE

FARGA P BRI KT ERBHIE
IR EAKRE D REFIWT

Depreciation

allowance Fair value
in excess of adjustment
the related  on intangible
depreciation assets Total
HHAETE BREE
HTERE NFERAR wat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FET
At 1 July 2016 RZZE—R"FtH—H 765 79 844
Credited to profit or loss from continuing T A E L & £ IEH
operations (note 6(a)) (BzE6() (239) 28) (267)
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 RZZB—+FRA=TH
R_F—+F+A—H 526 51 577
Credited to profit or loss from continuing T A E L & £ 1B
operations (note 6(a)) (FiF7E6(0)) (223) (28) (251)
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NFRA=1H 303 23 326

Deferred tax assets/liabilities not recognised

At 30 June 2018, the Group has not recognised deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of approximately
HK$2,978,000 (2017: HK$1,386,000) as it is not probable
that future taxable profits, against which the assets can be
utilised, will be available in any relevant tax jurisdiction or entity.
Of the total tax losses, approximately HK$2,978,000 (2017:
HK$1,386,000) will expire within 5 years under the current tax
legislation. Other temporary differences are not material.
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(c) RERELEHHEE AFE

R-ZE—-NFEXNAE=+H #HRAE
ERAAEREE ZAEREXETET
K] RE B R 2R FE 2R Biom 7 7] 2 A
BE  WASBEWER RFTHIEE
18492,978,000/8 L (ZE —+F ¢
1,386,000/8 7 ) HERIEET B E E -
TRIEE B4 5+ - 492,978,000/ T
—Z—+4 1,386,000 7T) 5 1E
BERORERAFTFANER - HME
=R AEK -



The Group operates the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
(“MPF Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance for employees employed under the jurisdiction
of the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance (the “Ordinance”). The
MPF Scheme is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, certain
subsidiaries of the Group and the eligible employees are each
required to make monthly mandatory contributions to the plan at
5% of the employees’ relevant income subject to a cap of monthly
relevant income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the scheme vest
immediately.

The Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC also participate in defined
contribution retirement schemes covering its full-time PRC
employees. The schemes are administered by the relevant
government authorities in the PRC. The Group and the PRC
employees are required to make contributions based on certain
percentages of the applicable payroll costs as stipulated under the
requirements in the PRC and the relevant government authorities
undertake to assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing
and future retired employees of the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The total expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss of approximately HK$6,025,000 (2017: HK$6,013,000) for
the year ended 30 June 2018 represents contributions payable to
these plans by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the plans.

At 30 June 2018 and 2017, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under the
Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on termination
of their employment. The Group is only liable to make such
payments when the termination meets the required circumstances
specified in the Ordinance and the employees’ entitlement is not
covered by the aforesaid MPF Scheme. At 30 June 2018, the
Group’s contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon do not exceed the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met. Consequently,
provision for long service payments of HK$4,082,000 (2017:
HK$4,119,000) is resulted and included in accruals as disclosed in
note 19.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

24 DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT PLANS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

24 EREMFERAREE

REERIFZEE B A IERTES T 2R
BIREESEEEG (ZIEF)) fEE
EHERERAEERIBHEAEETE
([BEE:TE)) -8B 8l AmRBE L
RHEAERE 2 EEETURKE B - B
BESHE  AEBETHEBARKRA
BERXEES A ARBHMEATESTEK
PIETHATZEEBBURA Z5%M
ETEMEH 50 R ERAS ARE
I A 30,0007 7T M FF 8] 1E H 2 3k B0
BFERE -

AEBRFREZHBARTAEGTER
BEE2ETHEMHIERNKE - &F5t
SATEERBNHEAERE AEE K&
RS AR B TEMREERE
BRAZETADLFERHER  MERE
BT #4 B R G AR R AR SR B R B B 2 )
ZERBAEEMARERKER ZERKEN
Bff-

REZ-_Z—N\FXA=ZTHILFE
Rzt EakEte2mEERERNE
B D RI496,025,00058 7T (Z 8 —+4F -
6,013,000 70) « H B KK E L5181 R
BIFTARM L R EN T2 ST 8 A HER -

RE—NFER-_T—F+FA=+H"
AEBETREREETKZIEHIEBET 218
ERBFH WEERREERIEZE
RHESRBERES AEBEEATRIE
HEZEPIEE 2B T HEELR
FoMEEBABZSBEIL TR Lilgis
SFERE N N\FXA=1+H "
REEMBESTEER CHARER
ETRIBA M RRE RERTT A ZIRAIIEE 2
BRAZETEAE -BEE EEARBARY
- 2 B 5 4,082,000 7T (Z & — +4F ¢
4,119,000 7T) Wt AMIFE19FT# TR 19
JEStERA -
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TRANSACTIONS

The Company conditionally operates a share option scheme (“Share
Option Scheme”) for the purpose of attract, retain and reward the
eligible persons and to provide the eligible persons an incentive or
reward for their contribution to the Group and by enabling such
persons’ contribution to further advance the interests of the Group.
The Share Option Scheme was adopted on 28 May 2013 and shall
be valid and effective for a period of ten years commencing from
the date of adoption, after which period no further options will be
offered or granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect in all other respects with respect
to options granted during the life of the Share Option Scheme.

The eligible persons of the Share Option Scheme include directors,
consultants or advisers and any other person who has contributed
to the Group (the “Eligible Persons”).

The subscription price of the share options shall be a price
determined by the board of directors and shall be at least the
highest of (i) the closing price per share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the offer date; (i) the average of
the closing prices per share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date; or (i) the nominal value of the share.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the Eligible Persons
concerned for such period as determined by the board of directors,
being a date not later than ten business days after the offer date
by which the Eligible Persons must accept the offer or be deemed
to have declined it, provided that no such offer shall be open for
acceptance after the tenth anniversary of the date of adoption of the
Share Option Scheme or after the Share Option Scheme has been
terminated in accordance with the provisions of the Share Option
Scheme.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

25 URESEEUROABEBRMTRR
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TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

A share option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified
by the board of directors to the grantee which the board of directors
may in its absolute discretion determine, save that such period shall
not be more than ten years from the date of acceptance of the offer
(subject to the provisions for early termination in accordance with
the Share Option Scheme).

The amount payable by the grantee to the Company on acceptance
of the offer shall be a nominal amount to be determined by the
board of directors.

The maximum number of shares of the Company in respect of which
the share options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme
is not permitted to exceed 10% of the shares in issue at the date of
the annual general meeting of the Company on 29 December 2017
at which the Company passed an ordinary resolution to refresh the
maximum number of the shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all the share options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme.

The maximum number of the shares in respect of which share
options may be granted under the Share Option Scheme together
with any options outstanding and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company in issue shall not exceed 30% (or such higher percentage
as may be allowed under the GEM Listing Rules) of the total number
of the shares in issue from time to time.

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted to each of Eligible Persons (including
both exercised and outstanding options under the Share Option
Scheme) in any twelve-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company. Where any further grant of
the share options to each of Eligible Persons would result in excess
of such limit shall be subject to the approval of the shareholders at
general meeting with each of Eligible Persons and his associates
abstaining from voting.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
A
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M{I‘E‘I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 UEREZELRHABERNARR

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) % (&)

(a) The terms and conditions of the grants that existed and the () RBEZZE—+tFA=THLF
movements under the Share Option Scheme during the year EERETEE T FENE T NIE
ended 30 June 2017 were as follows: AR R g

Outstanding
Contractual atthe  Cancelled Lapsed Outstanding Exercisable
Category of Date of grant Period during which options life of share ~ Exercise  beginning during during  attheend  attheend
participants of share options  are exercisable options price  of the year the year theyear  oftheyear  of the year
SEEEH RLERERS BRETTRS BRESHES RE FOHRGE  FAEHE  FAAN FRERGE ERIOR
HK$
B
Former directors
AftER
Mr. Chan Wai Kit 1112/2015 14/12/2015 - 10/12/2025 10 years 023 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) - -
REREE ZF-R% ZE-REtZAtEAZE TE
T-A+t-B  -E-EE+-A1H
Ms. Wong Chi Yan 1/12/2015 14/12/2015 - 10/12/2025 10 years 023 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) - -
HEERT “Z-1ft+  ZE-RET-ATEAZ 5
ZAt-H “E-RFTZATH
Mr. Zhang Xiaozheng ~ 11/12/2015 14/12/2015 - 10/12/2025 10 years 023 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) - -
FNEEE “Z-n%t ZE-RFf-ATEAR TE
ZAt-A “ZCRFTZATA
Ms. Wang Jun 1112/2015 14/12/2015 - 10/12/2025 10 years 023 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) - -
TELL “E-nft “E-RF+-AfRAZ TF
ZAt+-A ZEZRFTZATA
Ms. Li Qingchen 1/12/2015 14/12/2015 - 10/12/2025 10 years 023 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) - -
FERRT “Z-1f+  ZE-RET-ATEAZ 5
ZAt-H “E-RFTZATH
Mr. Xu Xiaoping 1112/2015 14/12/2015 - 10/12/2025 10 years 023 10,000,000 - (10,000,000) - -
BONEEE ZE-REtT ZE-RETCATEAZR TE
ZAt-H “ECRETZATA
Employees
&g
In aggregate 1112/2015 16/12/2015 - 10/12/2025 10 years 023 37,500,000 (37,500,000) - - -
ait “Z-n%t ZE-RFfCAtSAER TE
ZAt-A “ZCRFTZATA
Total 97,500,000  (37,500,000) (0,000,000 - -
@t
Weighted average
exercise price 0.23 0.28 0.23 N/A N/A
METATRE TER TER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

25 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 25 UERHZELURHABERNARR

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(b) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted was measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted was measured based on Trinomial Option
Pricing model. The contractual life of the share option was
used as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
were incorporated into the model.

7 (#%)
(b) BBREAFERRBRR

h B I R O 2 B WBUIR 75 & F
E2EZmE L EREZ R ER
E-MRLBEREZAFEMRBR
ZHEAMEEEEAELGE B
A D FIMAZBRA 2B ARIE
ZBRACBEERPITE2ES -

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES 26 EXRNHE

(a) Share capital

(i) Authorised and issued share capital

(a) B
() ZEREZR{TRA

Number of
shares Amount
BHEE &5
'000 HK$'000
F % T T
Authorised: EIE
Ordinary shares LmAR
At 1 July 2016, 30 June 2017 and RZE—RFLtH—H"
1 July 2017 of HK$0.001 each “E—tFNAZ=ZtTHEK
—E—+F+H—H
A% E0.001 57T 100,000,000 100,000
Share consolidation (note (ii)) f& 10 & B (B 7 (i) (90,000,000) -
At 30 June 2018 of HK$0.01 each RZZE—NFXNA=1+H
FREE0.015 T 10,000,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: ERITRAR
Ordinary shares LE
At 1 July 2016 of HK$0.001 each RZZTE—RFtA—H
SRR MEE0.001 T 1,800,000 1,800
Issue of shares pursuant to rights RIFHEAR TR G
issue (note (iii)) CBf = (i) 900,000 900
At 30 June 2017 and 1 July 2017 of M-ZT—+tHFA=+HEK
HK$0.001 each —E—+F+HA—H
R MEE0.001E T 2,700,000 2,700
Share consolidation (note (ii)) f& 10 & B (BT 7 (i) (2,430,000) -
At 30 June 2018 of HK$0.01 each RZZE—NFRNA=1+H
HREE.01E T 270,000 2,700
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRRMEE

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(@) Share capital (continued)

(ii)

Share consolidation

By an ordinary resolution passed at the extraordinary
general meeting held on 26 July 2017, every 10 issued
and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each were
consolidated into 1 new ordinary share of HK$0.01
each (the “Share Consolidation”). Following the Share
Consolidation which has become effective on 27 July
2017, the authorised share capital of the Company was
HK$100,000,000 divided into 10,000,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each, of which 270,000,000 ordinary
shares were in issue and fully paid.

(iii) Issue of shares pursuant to rights issue in 2017

On 16 February 2017, the Company issued 900,000,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each at a subscription price
of HK$0.054 per ordinary share on the basis of one new
share for every two existing shares held, resulting in net
proceeds of approximately HK$46,886,000.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves

@

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

Under the Companies Law, Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of the
Company are distributable to the shareholders of the
Company provided that immediately following the date
on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall in the ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The amount represents the difference between the
nominal amount of shares issued by the Company and
the aggregate amount of share capital of subsidiaries
acquired under common control pursuant to the
group reorganisation in preparation of the listing of the
Company’s shares on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 17
June 2018.

Contribution surplus

The amount represents the amounts due to shareholders
capitalised before the listing of the Company’s shares on
GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)
(b) Nature and purpose of reserves (continued)

(iv) Convertible bonds reserve

The convertible bonds reserve represents the amount
allocated to the unexercised equity component of the
Convertible Bonds issued by the Company recognised
in accordance with the accounting policy adopted for

convertible bonds in note 2.15.

(v) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with accounting policy set out in note 2.24.

(vi) Share option reserve

The share option reserve represents the fair value of the
actual or estimated number of unexercised share options
granted to the eligible participants of the Share Option
Scheme recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments in note 2.20(jii).

(c) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing products and
services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing

access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by
a sound capital position, and makes adjustments as to the
capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The capital structure of the Group mainly consists of net
debt, which include convertible bonds, bond and obligations
under finance leases, and equity attributable to owners of the
Company. The Group considers the cost of capital and the
risks associated with each class of capital to monitor its capital
structure on the basis of a gearing ratio. The ratio is expressed
by as a percentage of total debts over the total equity. The
Group’s overall strategy remains unchanged during the years

ended 30 June 2018 and 2017.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

26 CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

27

(c)

(d)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

26 EXRf#E (R)

Capital management (continued) (c) EXEE (&)
The gearing ratios at 30 June 2018 and 2017 are as follows: RZE-—NFRERZZTE—EF XA
—THMNEEARLEENAT :

2018 2017

—E-N\F —T—tF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FEx FHET

Total debts (EOrEcY: 59,094 10,463

Total equity R 150,398 151,502

Gearing ratio BEGELE 39.3% 6.9%

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to
externally imposed capital requirements.

Distributability of reserves

At 30 June 2018, the aggregate amounts of reserves available
for distribution to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$59,008,000 (2017: HK$120,061,000).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in
the normal course of the Group’s business. The Group’s exposure
to these risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks are described
below.

(a)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and
other receivables, loans and interest receivables and cash
and cash equivalents. The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in
the consolidated statement of financial position. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 2RI Ez4REREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

(a) FERERE (&)

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability to
pay, and take into account information specific to the customer
as well as pertaining to the economic environment in which
the customer operates. Trade receivables are usually due on
presentation of billing. Normally, the Group does not obtain
collateral from customers.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics
of each customer. The default risk of the industry and country
in which customers operate also has an influence on credit risk
but to a lesser extent. At the end of the reporting period, the
Group had a certain concentration of credit risk as 24% (2017:
19%) and 50% (2017: 53%) of the total trade receivables was
due from the largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively. Management does not expect any significant
losses from trade debtors that have not been provided for
other than impairment loss on bad and doubtful debts as set
out in note 14. Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are set out in note 14.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

For loans and interest receivables, the Group manages and
analyses the credit risk for each of the new and existing
borrowers before standard payment terms and conditions are
offered. If there is no independent rating, the Group assesses
the credit quality of the borrower based on the borrower’s
financial position, past experience and other factors. For loans
principal exceeding a predetermined amount, the Group
holds collateral against these loans and interest receivables in
the form of guarantee executed by the guarantor. Individual
risk limits are set based on the value of collaterals provided
by borrowers, if required, and internal or external ratings in
accordance with limits set by the directors. The credit quality
classification of loans and interest receivables at 30 June 2018
and 2017 using the Group’s credit rating system is set out in
the table below:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

27 ¢WMIACSRRAREERAE

18 (&)

(a) FERR (&)

BREKEREMEME  AEER
RMPIRE SRR SRR B &
IMEEHRRBEERAZEER
B REBLAE  AREESR
BERAZH BN - BEER K
HEAXFEERAZEELE R -
WEAEESBELERLAEME
REBAERABRLER AR
BREFRREREME 2 ERR -
{51 B ez PR AR 8 48 KA P IR AR 4K
i (MERBR) ZBEUNRERRE
SRR 2 MEP I ER AT A T
EoTREIR-_F-NER=-F
—tFRNA=tHERAEEEE
AR EETREER LR B ZE

BEEE 8
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHEIT

Performing 1T
Doubtful RAR
Loss E518

112,785 75,000
360 450

113,145 75,450

The Group considers the loans and interest receivables as
doubtful if the repayment of principal and/or of interest has
been overdue and principal, accrued interest and/or future
interest may not be fully secured by the collaterals. The Group
considers the loans and interest receivables as loss if the
repayment of principal and/or of interest has been overdue for
more than 12 months and the collection of principal and/or of
interest in full is improbable.

The Group estimates and recognises impairment losses for the
loans and interest receivables considered as “doubtful” and
“loss”, taking into account of the fair values of collaterals which
are inadequate to cover the loans and interest receivables. The
amount of doubtful and loss of loans and interest receivables
were HK$360,000 (2017: HK$450,000) as at 30 June 2018.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 2RI Ez4REREERAF
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a) Credit risk (continued)

(a) FERERE (&)

The Group performs collective assessment of the loans
receivable considered as “performing” by grouping together
all its receivables with similar credit risk characteristics. The
impairment review is carried out on all those loans and interest
receivables based on the historical impairment rates. Since the
historical impairment rate is zero during the current year, the
management therefore considers that the collective impairment
loss is HK$NIl (2017: HK$NIl) as at 30 June 2018.

The amount of provision for impairment is monitored by the
management on a quarterly basis.

At 30 June 2018, the Group had significant concentration
of credit risk as the loans and interest receivables totaling
HK$113,145,000 (2017: HK$75,450,000) were due from 6
(2017: 3) borrowers. The directors consider that the credit risk
arising from the loans receivable is significantly mitigated by the
collaterals held, if required.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from loans and interest
receivables are set out in note 16.

Substantially all the Group’s cash and cash equivalents are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the majority of
counterparties are financial institutions with high credit ratings
assigned by international credit rating agencies and stated-
controlled financial institutions with good reputations.

The Group’s investments which are classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss together with
certain deposits, are placed with securities brokers, which
management believes it is of high credit quality.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Liquidity risk

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 )

27 ¢WMIACSRRAREERAE
8 ()

(b) REE SRR

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to cover
expected cash demands. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines
of funding to meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities
at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which is based on contractual undiscounted cash
flows (including interest payments computed using contractual
rates or, if floating, based on rates current at the end of the

AEEETENEEEBAEELD
BT EER  BERESAEKEN
RERFEEFARNERRESH
Ko AGREZHRREHRERER
HESHR  NEREERTRER
TREBMEHAERERE AR
NEREHRPHESHFE -

FREMAEES B A ER S
K2BTFANBMA KA O
RS E (DIERA A K E L
(13 8) HA 3R o5 B3R 2 317 6
SHEZFEH R RARE A

reporting period) and the earliest date the Group can be TR EHRR
required to pay:
2018 2017
“E-N\E “EtE

Total More than More than Total More than More than
contractual Within fyearbut  2yearsbut contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1yearor less than less than Camying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cashflow  ondemand 2years 5years amount cash fow on demand 2 years 5 years
EHRER 1EULE  2FNER ANRER 18hIER 2ENLR
BEE RETEAE 15RIEER 250R 555 BEE HeRELE 1ERIRER 2EHUA SENA
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$ 000

T Tz TR TR TR TiEL T TiEL TiEL TiEn

Trade payables BHEMHE 10872 14,880 14,880 14,880 - -
Accruals and other EHERRA

payebles EfE 9203 9203 0,665 30,665 20,665 - -
Bond fEE 700 9442 13,092 700 700 11,692
Convertible bonds TaRES 50,000 50,000 - - - - -
Obligations under finance AT &4 &

eases 615 312 1,021 1,072 457 312 303

165,912 153,917 58,008 61,709 48,702 1,012 11,99

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 eRiTACSREAKREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Interest rate risk (c) FI=REM

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from restricted
bank deposits, loans receivable, convertible bonds, bond and
obligations under finance leases. Borrowings issued at fixed
rate and variable rates expose the Group to fair value interest
rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk respectively. The
Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by management is
set out below.

(i) Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s net deposits/(borrowings) at the end of the
reporting period:

REEZ M EEREEREZRH
RITER - BRER - AR ES -
BEHRBEEEAE REBRTF
BBEHZERD IS AREEBEAZA
FEMEERR LR RENXRER
AEEEEEBERZNEAAH
RTEX -

() FEAEE

TR LA K B R 5 A 2
R (15 FELAIRAE -

2018 2017
—E-N\F e
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BRA= BRI %
% HK$’000 % HK$'000
FTER FET
Fixed rate deposits/ EEER (%K)
(borrowings)
Restricted bank deposits ZRERITER 0.05% - 0.05% -
1.40% 12,979 0.80% 12,948
Loans receivable FE W E 3R 10.20% - 18.00% —
22.00% 111,902 21.60% 75,000
Bond B5 8.5% (9,551) 8.5% (9,442)
Convertible bonds AR ES 14.24% (48,950) N/A -
Obligations under finance &8 & fl & &I
leases 1.5% (593) 1.7% (1,021)
65,787 77,485
Variable rate deposits BEER
Bank deposits and ROFRRBITRE
cash at bank 117,491 0.1% 52,932
Total net deposits BERARE 183,278 130,417
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c) Interest rate risk (continued)
(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 30 June 2018, it is estimated that a general increase/
decrease of 50 basis points in interest rates, with all other
variables held constant, would have no significant impact
to the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated losses.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 50 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the end of the next annual reporting period.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2017.

(d) Currency risk

The Group’s business activities and its assets and liabilities
were denominated in HK$ and Renminbi (“‘RMB”). The
management considers the Group is not exposed to significant
foreign currency risk as most sales, income, purchases and
expenses are denominated in the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The Group currently does
not have a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should
the need arise.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR 27 2RI Ez4REREERAF

VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS B (%)
(CONTINUED)
(e) Categories of financial instruments e) EMIASE
2018 2017
—E-N\F T F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHET
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables: B R EBGRIEA
— Trade receivables —E WA 61,730 49,841
— Deposits and other receivables —i&e K E A ERGRIE 3,089 4,676
— Loans and interest receivables —EWEREF A 113,145 75,450
— Restricted bank deposits —ZRHIRITFR 12,979 12,948
— Cash and cash equivalents -ReRREEEY 117,491 52,932
308,434 195,847
Financial liabilities cHeE
Financial liabilities measured BEEKATTECSRIABE
at amortised cost
— Trade payables —B S EMNKE 10,872 14,880
— Accruals and other payables —JEFHE A K H A ER FIE 92,477 33,113
- Bond — &5 9,551 9,442
— Convertible bonds — AR E 48,950 -
— Obligations under finance leases — B E M EAE 593 1,021

162,443 58,456

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018 e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

27 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR
VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value measurement

0]

(ii)

Financial instruments measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial instruments
measured at fair value at the end of the reporting period
on a recurring basis shall be categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference to
the observability and significance of the inputs used in the
valuation technique as follows:

—  Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

—  Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level
1, and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available.

— Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2, or
transfers into or out of Level 3.

Financial instruments carried at other than fair
value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially
different from their fair values at 30 June 2018 and 2017.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

28 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES NOT CLASSIFIED
AS DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

On 21 September 2016, the Group disposed of the entire
equity interest in Champion Luck Investment Limited
(“Champion Luck”) for a cash consideration of approximately
HK$2,783,000.

On 1 June 2018, the Group disposed of the entire
equity interest in Celestial Faith Investments Limited and
its subsidiaries (together “Celestial Group”) for a cash
consideration of approximately HK$195,000.

On 21 June 2018, the Group disposed of the entire equity
interest in Innoquant Fintech (Shenzhen) Limited (“Innoquant
Fintech”) for a cash consideration of HK$1.

The assets and liabilities disposed at completion date:

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

28 HEX D EACRIEREXEL
Y Bt 2 A
(a) RZZE—R"FNLA=-+—H &*&
BHERBEREERAA (B
FEDHE2HEKRE REREBAOR
2,783,000/ 7T °

b) RA=ZZE—NFANA—HB KAEEH
ERREBEREBRAGILEMBA
A (I RAEE®E]) e PRE -
REREHAE195,0008 7T

(c) R=ZZE—N\FXNAZ+—H K&
BrEnEESET ORI BERAER
RAI(BEET]) NEIRE R
EREEB1BT -

(d REXBEHECHEEERBE

2018 2017

2% -t

Celestial Innoquant Champion

Group Fintech Total Luck

REE BEET Mt o

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000

FEx FExT BT FEL

Property, plant and equipment  #)% - /= & % 2,690

Trade receivables 2 5 IE -
Deposits, prepayments and &%~ B FE R E

other receivables i FE MR IR 93

Cash and cash equivalents ReRBEZEY -

Trade payables EC) ANk -
Accruals, deposits received ~ EEFE R « B WL E

and other payables Ko E A e 5008 -

Net assets disposed of EHEEETE 2,783
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
%’%/E\ZI- ﬁ% ﬁ% MqEI (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

28 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES NOT CLASSIFIED 28 HEWH /7 BARCKRIEKEXER

AS DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (CONTINUED) Y BB 2 | (4&)
(e) Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (e) HEMBARZEE
2018 2017
—E-N\§ —E—+tF
Celestial Innoquant Champion
Group Fintech Total Luck
RBE BEET st i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET FER FET
Consideration received BURE 2,783
Net assets disposed of BHEEEFE (2,783)
Cumulative exchange loss ~ RHENB AR
reclassified from equity to 1§ 2FEIMNEEIE
profit or loss upon disposal ~ FEZREH 5B
of subsidiaries 2E# (1,110) (R[0)] (1,120) -
Loss on disposal of TEHEADRA
subsidiaries BB (1,193) (10) (1,203) -
*  The sale consideration is HK$1. * HEREA1ET -
() Net cash flow on disposal of subsidiaries N HEMBARZRAEREFRHE
2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+F
Celestial Innoquant Champion
Group Fintech Total Luck
REE EEET @t i
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FTER FTET FET TET
Consideration received BERRE 2,783
Cash and cash equivalents 2 &R & &
disposed of ReEEY -
Net cash (outflow)/infow 34 () ,/
MAEE 2,783
*  The sale consideration is HK$1. * HEREA1ET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

29 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

20 KEMEERE

30

At 30 June 2018, the total future minimum lease payments under

non-cancellable operating leases are payable as follows:

RZZE-NFRA=+H RETAK
HEEHEZ RARKERENRABEL

T~
2018 2017
—E-N\E —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHExT FHT
Within 1 year —F R 6,305
After 1 year but within 5 years —FEERAFR 7,202
13,507

The Group is the lessee in respect of its office premises, warehouse
and staff quarters held under operating leases. The leases run for
an initial period of 1 to 3 years (2017: 1 to 3 years), with an option
to renew the leases when all terms are renegotiated. None of the

leases includes contingent rentals.

AEELSREREHERBINLE
X REREIBEZAMA-GRHE
EZNPHR R —E=F(ZT—1%F:
—E=F) FMEEBBNERMAGK
HEEHEE - HEHERSSAESE -

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 EXBEHAIXZ KT

AND BALANCES

(a) Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group,
including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as

(@) TEEBAEEHFM

AEBETEEEABHMEIEME
BFIRBEZENARBESTRE

disclosed in note 8, is as follows: FIBEMT
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Directors ==
Fees we 3,532
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind o RUMEREYEF 10
Discretionary bonuses BIETEEL 231
Contributions to defined contribution TE R TR IRET B A 3R
retirement plan 13
3,786
Senior management SHREEAE
Salaries, allowance and benefits in kind e ERAEYER 3,322
Contributions to defined contribution JE A FORIRET S A9 31
retirement plan 15
3,337
7,123

HBRZERAMRXRE #2018



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR MR

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

30 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 30 EABEBAXZ NEREE (&)

AND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

(b) Financing arrangements (b) MEZH
On 21 August 2017, the Company has issued the Convertible AN 20FT T R —+F
Bonds to the Subscriber as disclosed in note 20. The NAZ+—H  ARAFAREAE
Subscriber is wholly-owned by Mr. Yu Weiye who is the father TAMBRES REALBREEL
of Mr. Yu Shaoheng, director of the Company. S2EHEE MAEELERLER
REERBTZ RENLE -
(c) Other related party transactions (c) HtBEBARS
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the notes to these FAN - BREKETBEHREM T E MM
consolidated financial statements, the Group entered into the TR EEN  REBEFTZATE
following material related party transactions during the year: RNEBAR S -
2018 2017
—ZE-NEF —TE—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHEIT
Subcontracting charges to a related ENEEAR I ez B8

company, Niko

3,720

Niko is owned as to 60% by Mr. Fan and 40% by Ms. Fan.
Mr. Fan is the father-in-law of Mr. Wong, who was a key
management personnel of the Group until 17 April 2017. Ms.
Fan is the daughter of Mr. Fan and lawful wife of Mr. Wong.
Therefore, Niko was considered as a related party of the Group
until 17 April 2017.

(d) Balances with related parties are disclosed in note 18, the
Convertible Bonds in note 20 and the Company’s statement of
financial position in note 31(a).

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

31 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)
31 KARHMBER
(a) M#HMARRE

2018 2017
—E-N\EF —E—+tF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - WE L&A 33
Investments in subsidiaries R B R FIRE -
33
Current assets REBEE
Deposits, prepayments and other Ze - BERER
receivables E B W IR 2,078 1,937
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEW B B A &) IE 135,819 157,139
Cash and cash equivalents Be MRS EEY 78,231 1,421
216,128 160,497
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals EEEA 62,017 1,716
Amounts due to subsidiaries A B BB A R R IE 27,811 26,611
Convertible bonds AmRES 48,950 -
138,778 28,327
Net current assets REBEEZFE 77,350 132,170
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERE 77,388 132,203
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bond (EC 9,551 9,442
NET ASSETS EEZEE 67,837 122,761
Capital and reserves EXRFHE
Share capital &N 2,700 2,700
Reserves ] 65,137 120,061
TOTAL EQUITY AR 67,837 122,761
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ﬁé/ﬁjj i% iﬁ% M{I‘E‘I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 705175 )

31 FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY 31 &ATEBEER (&)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Movements in components of equity (b) R 2EF
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual components RANE [E A A &) 2 {8 Bl 7 2 2B o &
of equity during the year are as follows: B BT

Share  Convertible  Share option  Accumulated
Share capital premium  bonds reserve reserve losses Total
s kaE THRESRE  BRERR ZitE# st
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
i3 TiEL Tin Tihn Tin Tin Tin
(note 26()i))  (note 26(b)iv)  (note 26(0)(v)
(ko) (PE2eio)i)  (HiEE26())

At 1 July 2016 R=B-~EtA-R 1,800 108,014 - 4,306 (21,814) 92,806

Loss and total comprehensive loss EREE R 2 EEE

for the year 2% - - - - (16,931) (16,931)
Issue of shares pursuant torights 1R B R ETR A
st 26l 90 47,700 . . . 18600
Transaction costs for rights issue IR A A 26(a)i - (1,714) - - - (1,714)
Release Lpon lapse and RERELMRF#E
cancellation of share options B 25 - - - (4,306) 4,306 -
900 45,986 - (4,306) (12,625) 29,955
At 30 June 2017 RZZ-t§7AZ1H 2,700 154,500 - - (34,439) 122,761
At 1 July 2017 R-E-tEtf-A 2,700 154,500 - - (34,439 122,761
Loss and total comprehensive loss FREE L2 |
for the year ag - - - - (61,053 (61,053
Issue of convertiole bonds EuiaREs 20 - - 6,233 - - 6,233
Transaction costs for convertidle AR EER B A
bonds 0 - - (104 - - (104
- - 6,129 - (61,053) (64,924)
At 30 June 2018 RZE-NERAZ1A 2,700 154,500 6,129 - (95,492) 67,837
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32 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which
principally affected the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

Particulars
of issued
Place of and paid up
Name of company operations capital
BRORAR
DEER 2EMEY Rzt
Incorporated in the British Virgin Islands:
REBEBARBESEMAL :
Silver Marker Limited Hong Kong US$t
&k 1%
Bransfield Assets Limited Hong Kong US$3 and
&% HK$100,000,001
REH'
10,000,001 # 7
Incorporated in Hong Kong:
REBEMKL
Pollution & Protection Services Limited HongKong  HK$18,557,800
ERRERBARAT & 185578008
Profit Management Limited Hong Kong HK$100
RMERERAF BE 1007t
Union Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000
EMHHERAA A 10,0007

32 MEBLARZER

TREFEETEZFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) ( LAY 7T515R)

AEEXE BE

KBENHBRARZHE - FRREEH

SN

2018
“B-0\%
Proportion of
effective
ownership
interest
BEREER
Rl

Direct

E#

Indirect

A%

Fr BBy AR E & EA -

2017
ZE1F
Proportion of
effective
ownership
interest
ERRAE
G all
Direct  Indirect Principal activity
L ik TEER
100% - Investment holding
REER
- 100% Investment holding
REER
- 100% Provision of
environmental and
Cleaning services
RARIE LB 2R
- 100% Provision of money
lending services
RAEHRERS
- 100% Provision of money
lending services
RERERH
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32 SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Particulars

of issued

Place of and paid up

Name of company operations capital

BRORAR

NAER EEfEYL RAFtE
Incorporated in the PRC:

RAEIEREKY

Shenzhen PPS Green City Services Limited The PRC  RMB10,000,000

(note 1) s ARE

A EBG AT REER A (M) 10,000,000

Shanghai PPS Sheng Mao Environmental The PRC ~ RMB10,000,000

Senvices Limited i ARE

LEERARRZREERAF

Note:

1. Disposed during the year ended 30 June 2018.

10,000,000

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA T3 )

32 BRI ZER (F)

1. REE-_ZT—-N\FXA
& o

2018 2017
“E-NE S 3
Proportion of Proportion of
effective effective
ownership ownership
interest interest
BERERR ERERRE
R i
Direct Indirect Direct  Indirect Principal activity
EE & Bk fifE TEER
- 100% Provision of
environmental and
cleaning services
RIERS B2 RH%
- 90% Provision of
environmental and
cleaning services
RARIE LB 2R
Mzt -
=THIEFER
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33 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(a)

(b)

Performance bonds

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

33 RAEE

(a)

Guarantees on performance bonds
in respect of environmental service
contracts

M FELR

IRIBIRF A N EHIRE

The Group had bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds
issued for due performance under several environmental
service contracts.

At 30 June 2018, restricted bank deposits of approximately
HK$12,979,000 (2017: HK$12,948,000) were pledged
to banks as security for (i) bank facilities of approximately
HK$12,916,000 (2017: HK$12,920,000) granted to the Group;
and (i) bankers’ guarantees on performance bonds issued.

The effective period of performance bond is based on the
service period and the contract terms as specified in these
environmental service contracts. The performance bonds may
be claimed by customers if services rendered by the Group
fail to meet the standards as specified in these environmental
service contracts.

Litigations - Injury compensations

During the years ended 30 June 2018 and 2017, the Group
may from time to time be involved in litigations concerning
personal injuries by its employees or third party claimants.
In the opinion of the directors, the Group does not have any
significant contingent liabilities arising from these litigations.
All potential claims made by these employees and third party
claimants not covered by insurance have been accounted for
in the balance of “provision for claims” under accruals, deposits
received and other payables (see note 19) in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(b)

BRRE
2018 2017
—E-N\F —E—+F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FER FAET
12,920
AEERBERBTE TRERBEE

#IFTE M BARBRHERITER -

RZZE—N\FRA=+H "  ZRH
RITF 412,979,000 L (= F
— -+ 4F : #712,948,0005 7T) O K
T IRITIEANERAEB NIRRT
& #412,916,0008 75 (=8 —+
F 112,920,000 7T) ¢ K (i) % B
HVRTE ZRITHER 2 IR -

B #) IR 2 B MR TR B AR 75 A
RETRERBEAQTANE HH
ME ° i AR B a0 IRTS R ae iz
ERFRERGE ORI REFEE
AIE PR RRBEORE -

FA-EERE

REBEEZZT-—N\FERZTE—EFX
B=+AHALFE AEBEARETH
ESANHEEEXRE=FRRAE
HEBEAZENHR -EERAE
AEBUVEBZEFDTEEEM
ERIAEGE - ZSEERF=T
HRARHINAAEBERRIL R
RBEAR - WE AR S BN
KEFER Bl REMER
RER [RERE] 2 HE (R
19) o
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34

35

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as disclosed below, the Group does not have other significant
events after the end of the reporting period.

(a) Rights issue

On 9 July 2018, the Company completed the Rights Issue on
the basis of one rights share for every one existing share held,
270,000,000 rights shares were issued at the subscription
price of HK$0.18 per share (the “Rights Issue”). Net proceeds
from the Rights Issue is approximately HK$46,724,000, after
deducting related expenses of approximately HK$1,876,000.

(b) Redemption of the Convertible Bonds

As the Convertible Bonds (see note 20) have not been
converted up to the maturity date, it had been redeemed by
the Company on 20 August 2018. After the redemption of the
Convertible Bonds on 20 August 2018, there are no convertible
bonds remained outstanding.

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including expectations
of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the judgements and
other uncertainties affecting application of those policies and
the sensitivity of reported results to changes in conditions and
assumptions are factors to be considered when reviewing the
consolidated financial statements. The principal accounting policies
are set forth in note 2. The Group believes the following critical
accounting policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements.
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34 HEHERERE

35

BRTIXAEEI  NEERREHE
REW EBEEMEMBEANER -

(@) #tR

RZZFBE—N\FLANHE  ARAE
BB —REAEROERE —RER
Binz HETKER  URBES
1% 0.18 7% JT % 17270,000,000 % #
BE Rt (TEEAR]) - LB AERE R
491,876,000 1% - HARFTS 5178
SEREH) 546,724,000 7T °

BEABRRES

MR AR ES (RHE20) #E
B RAREBS®  BRARANR-F
—NEFENRZ+BEEHEERD - N
T-NENAZTHBEORABERE
& - WEAL W KRB R 2 AT
&5 o

(b)

Bt st R H

fii 5t R HI BT & R ADETT T - B OUBE
EREABEE (REERLERTY
KR EHOARTE) BIEKE -

EEHSAVBRRE TEEEIE
SHHENER FESTRREMASR
EmrE R EMmTRERE  ARM2

BEETOBRIXBAREBRETE

TESBERERMHE2 - AEERE
TIEBGHBRSRERREAMH
WREFRANRE B AT RAE -
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35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS 35 £:t{&st & % (&)
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Impairment loss on intangible assets

The carrying amounts of intangible assets that are not yet
available for use are reviewed annually in order to assess
whether the recoverable amounts have declined below the
carrying amounts. When such a decline has occurred, the
carrying amount is reduced to recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the greater of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value in use. In determining the value
in use, the expected cash flows generated by the intangible
assets are discounted to their present value, which requires
significant judgement relating to the level of future cleaning
service and interest revenue and the amount of service costs.
The Group uses all readily available information in determining
an amount that is a reasonable approximation of the
recoverable amount, including estimates based on reasonable
and supportable assumptions and projections of environmental
and cleaning revenue and the amount of service costs, and
discount rate.

Impairment loss on goodwill

Determining whether goodwill is impaired requires an
estimation of the value in use of the cash-generating units to
which goodwill has been allocated. The value in use calculation
requires the directors to estimate the future cash flows
expected to arise from the cash-generating unit and a suitable
discount rate in order to calculate present value. Details of the
impairment loss calculation and assessment are set out in note
13.

(a)

(b)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

BREERESR

RARRHERZ B EEZREE
SRFRF  UFEARESER
BEHKEENEEE EHEA LM
THBERE - REESRE A WD

TR

AU [B] & BE A X AR R B B AR B
FREEzZESE EEEMREE
B EHEVEEELZRERE
DR EERE METHRERY
R HB R IR KA B M a8 K BR 75 X
A BEHEAHE - AEEE A
—YIAREBZEN  BEEAKREE
BRENBRZESH  BERESE
RBHZBHREER EEHRES
B et N IR AN S BEA R BRI -

BERESE
ErEafftRER  BHESIR
mEZReESENZFREEE
HEsr st EEAEER  E5E
HETTEBREBRESELEEN Z KRR
WEMRBEAEITIRE  LAFTEIRE -
BEEB B E R A IBEAN
FF13
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35 ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

188

Impairment loss on loans and interest receivables
and trade and other receivables

Impairment loss on loans and interest receivables and trade
and other receivables is assessed and provided based on
management’s regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgement is exercised
by the management when assessing the credit worthiness and
past collection history of each individual borrower/customer.
Any increase or decrease in the impairment losses for bad and
doubtful debt would affect the Group’s financial performance
in future years.

Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement on the
future tax treatment of certain transactions and interpretation
of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates tax implications of
transactions and tax provisions are set up accordingly. The tax
treatment of such transactions is reconsidered periodically to
take into account all changes in tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deduction differences. As those deferred tax
assets can only be recognised to the extent that it is probable
that future profit will be available against which the unused tax
credit can be utilised, management’s judgement is required to
assess the probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that future
taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

35 &&TfhEr R ¥ E (&)

(c)

(d)

BRERRAIBEUREZRE
ftb B WK IR 2 BB B 1R

ERREEFBIARE S REME
WREZRERE  HRBEEEE
TE HAER B AR e 0 AT B AT AR R (B o
FRIR 2 AT RE M T 1 R B o
REHEEBIES EFP2ZEEB RS
BRI EEESHFLAE
HET o RIFFRBE R R AET IR, -
HEFEARBRRBFE IMBER
IH .

Fre®t

EEMSRBRESRHETRSZ
REBFB LT A RBBHRA 22
BELHE AKREEERFERS
ZRBHE - WHRREHIEHR BB -
BHRZZHERET A EMNEHR
ER - A RFAAMREEDIEE -

BLERBEED AR AH AR R
RERIHMEZEER - ARZFE
ENIRE EE R £ e A R KEF
UtERARPAHRARREHE 2B
T HER - E R ERN A ARKE
AR A M 2 A B ME RS R HI I -
BEENEEERRT  MAlse

R IR B AR B B R AE TR B A
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ﬁéﬂjﬁﬁ% M;J-%I (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7T31)7R )

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW 36 B#Z-—Z— N\EXA=1+HLtHF

STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED EEeBEMEERERZEBRTR -
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED FEARRBUREELEZEE
30 JUNE 2018
Up to the date of issue of these consolidated financial statements, HERGAVBHRETIZEEH &g
the HKICPA has issued a number of amendments, new standards AEASEEMEBEEHE_T—N\F
and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 30 ANAZTHLEFERRERBRZFL
June 2018 and which have not been adopted in these consolidated BRI AR E TIEETAR 5
financial statements. These include the following which may be LERIRZRE - ERBEFEUNTAIREHEARE
relevant to the Group: BEzEE:
Amendments to Share-based payment: Classification and BV BREEL RO RO
HKFRS 2 measurement of share-based payment F 25 (BFTA) RRGz2DER
transactions’ ATE
Annual improvements to  HKFRS 12 Disclosure of interests in other BB ELER BBV BHHREER
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 entities — Clarification of the scope of —E-MEEZ F129KRERHE
cycle the standard’ T-RFEBr MmERBCEZD
FEL#E BIBEEHE
HKFRS 15 and Revenue from contracts with customers BEMBHRELER BERPEHKRERE
amendments to and clarifications to HKFRS 15! F15KREBH  BHBERELR
HKFRS 15 BHRELERFEIS  F155R2EF
S (IBETAN)
HKFRS 16 Leases? BB EER HE?
E165%
HKFRS 9 Financial instruments' BEMBHREER S@T A"
FE 9%
HK(FRIC) 23 Uncertainty over income tax treatments? S (BRI BHR  FIERERE 2 T
EREZEY E 12
B 235
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. ! RZZE-N\F-A—BzERBZF

JZ HAR A -

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. 2 RZE—NF—A—BzE&RABzF
EERRI R -

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the NEE EE TG LS R A R AT
impact of these amendments and new standards is expected to BRAEAMMBEHEA ZE 25
be in the period of initial application. So far the Group has identified REECDHRFTEA R ATELHZEEUTE
some aspects of the new standards which may have a significant WMERERKEAFE AT HE - BE®
impact on the consolidated financial statements. Further details BoE—FFBEIBOT -BHRAEH
of the expected impacts are discussed below. As the Group has M AR TE AR L FT Al - AN & AT R E
not completed its assessment, further impacts may be identified in RFBAE—FEE  WHNREREAE
due course and will be taken into consideration when determining MBI EERAEMZETRTE LR
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before their B EREBR A EARHKBAERES
effective date and which transitional approach to take, where there ERERZRETE -

are alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting for
financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments: Recognition
and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for
classification and measurement of financial assets, calculation
of impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, HKFRS incorporates without substantive changes
the requirements of HKAS 39 for recognition and derecognition
of financial instruments and the classification of financial liabilities.
Expected impacts of the new requirements on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements are as follows:

(a) Classification and measurement

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories for
financial assets: measured at (1) amortised cost, (2) fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) as follows:

e  The classification for debt instruments is determined
based on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of the asset. If a debt instrument is
classified as FVTOCI then effective interest, impairments
and gains/losses on disposal will be recognised in profit
or loss.

o For equity securities, the classification is FVTPL regardless
of the entity’s business model. The only exception is if
the equity security is not held for trading and the entity
irrevocably elects to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as FVTOCI then only
dividend income on that security will be recognised in
other comprehensive income without recycling.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments (continued)

(a)

(b)

Classification and measurement (continued)

Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group expects that
its financial assets currently measured at amortised cost and
FVTPL will continue with their respective classification and
measurements upon the adoption of HKFRS 9.

The classification and measurement requirements for financial
liabilities under HKFRS 9 largely unchanged from HKAS
39, except that HKFRS 9 requires the fair value change of
a financial liability designated as FVPTL that is attributable
to changes of that financial liability’s own credit risk to
be recognised in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). A more detailed analysis is
required to determine the extent of the impact.

Impairment

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred
loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit loss” model.
Under the expected credit loss model, it will no longer be
necessary for a loss event to occur before an impairment loss
is recognised. Instead, an entity is required to recognise and
measure expected credit losses as either 12-month expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on the asset and the facts and circumstances. This new
impairment model may result in an earlier recognition of credit
losses on the Group’s trade receivables, loans and interest
receivables, and other financial assets. However, a more
detailed analysis is required to determine the extent of the
impact.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )

36 BE-Z—N\EXA=Z1THLHE
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36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for recognising
revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS 15 will replace
the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18, Revenue, which covers
revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the accounting
for revenue from construction contracts. The Group is currently
assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its consolidated
financial statements. Based on the preliminary assessment, the
Group has identified the following areas which are likely to be
effected:

(a) Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed in note
2.23. Currently, revenue arising from the provision of services
is recognised over time, whereas revenue from the sale of
goods is generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the contract.
HKFRS 15 identified 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as being transferred over
time:

(@ When the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance, as the entity performs;

(b)  When the entity’s performance creates or enhances an
asset (for example work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or enhanced; and

(c)  When the entity’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed
to date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e TR MR

36 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(a)

(b)

Timing of revenue recognition (continued)

If the contract terms and the entity’s activities do not fall into
any of these 3 situations, then under HKFRS 15 the entity
recognises revenue for the sale of that good or service at a
single point in time, being when control has passed. Transfer
of risks and rewards of ownership is only one of the indicators
that will be considered in determining when the transfer of
control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-reward approach
to the contract-by-contract transfer-of-control approach, it is
possible that the point in time when revenue is recognised may
be earlier or later than under the current accounting policy.
However, further analysis is required to determine whether this
change in accounting policy may have a material impact on the
amounts reported in any given financial reporting period.

Significant financing component

HKFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the transaction price for
the time value of money when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether the payments
from customers are received significantly in advance or in
arrears.

Currently, the Group would only apply such policy when
payments are significantly deferred, which is currently not
common in the Group’s arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such a policy when
payments are received in advance.

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers
(continued)

(c) Sales with a right of return

Currently when the customers are allowed to return the
products, the Group estimates the level of returns and makes
an adjustment against revenue and cost of sales.

The Group expects that the adoption of HKFRS 15 will not
materially affect how the Group recognises revenue and cost of
sales when the customers have a right of return. However, the
new requirement to recognise separately a return asset for the
products expected to be returned will impact the presentation
in the consolidated statement of financial position as the Group
currently adjusts the carrying amounts of inventory for the
expected returns, instead of recognising a separate asset.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 2.9, currently the Group classifies leases into
finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the lease
arrangements differently, depending on the classification of the
lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor and others
as the lessee.

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their right and obligations under a lease.
However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no longer
distinguish between finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account for all leases
in a similar way to current finance lease accounting, i.e. at the
commencement date of the lease the lessee will recognise and
measure a lease liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use”
asset. After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding balance
of the lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset,
instead of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease term.
As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to apply this
accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where the lease term
is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value assets, in which
case the rental expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW
STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 JUNE 2018 (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases (continued)

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for property, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in both assets
and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the expense recognition
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period of
the lease. As disclosed in note 29, at 30 June 2018 the Group’s
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases amounted to HK$4,542,000, a significant portion of which
is payable between 1 and 5 years after the reporting date. Some
of these amounts may therefore need to be recognised as lease
liabilities, with corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16
is adopted. The Group will need to perform a more detailed analysis
to determine the amounts of new assets and liabilities arising from
operating lease commitments on adoption of HKFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical expedient and
adjusting for any leases entered into or terminated between now
and the adoption of HKFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

As a result of the Rights Issue which were completed on 9 July
2018 (see note 34(a)), the (loss)/earnings per share for the years
ended 30 June 2018 and 2017 have been retrospectively adjusted.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA 7515 )
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FIVE-YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

EEMBERE

RESULTS S

Revenue from continuing REBERDEI LS
and discontinued operations ~ #7%2 Wi

(Loss)/profit for the year FR(ER) &5 F

Attributable to: AN AL
Owners of the Company RAFEE A
Non-controlling interests RS

Dividends paid EARL =N

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE

Total assets BEE

Total liabilities meR

Total equity R

2018
—E-N\F
HK$'000
TERT

319,851

(8,177)

(8,289)
112

(8,177)

319,612
(169,179)

150,433

@ PPS International (Holdings) Limited Annual Report 2018

2017 2016 2015 2014
—E—+F TR —E-—HFE —TNOF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FET FAET FHET
282,004 269,438 202,192 193,098
(13,488) (51,205) (27,249) 13,094
(13,386) (51,058) (27,205) 13,094
(102) (147) (44) -
(13,488) (51,205) (27,249) 13,094
- - - 2,000
211,210 200,882 127,406 93,887
(59,785) (82,459) (50,766) (29,420)
151,425 118,423 76,640 64,467
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